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MISSION

Return ing Value to Our Credit-Driven Economy

VISION

To be the leading partner and employer of choice in the financial services industry by demonstrating high-

performance culture sophisticated systems operational excellence and spirit of responsibility to ultimately

benefit our associates shareholders clients consumers vendors and the community

VALUES

SOLUTIONS-DR IVEN

We are committed to resolving debt and enhancing our credit driven economy by finding the best possible

resolutions to the most complex issues

INTEGRITY

We are honest and accountable as we work with our associates shareholders clients consumers

vendors and the community

RESPECT

We value our relationships with all stakeholders and foster an environment of mutual respect

VISIONARY

We have an entrepreneurial spirit and long-term vision that enables us to seize and maximize opportunities

EXCELLENCE

We are committed to achieving the highest level of performance throughout the organization

WHO WE ARE

Asset Acceptance Capital Corp is leading purchaser and collector of charged-off consumer debt with roots in

the practice of purchasing delinquent receivables dating back more than 45 years We provide credit grantors

such as credit card issuers consumer finance companies retail merchants utilities and others an efficient

alternative to traditional third-party contingent collections in recovering defaulted consumer debt

Our disciplined approach to purchasing debt leveraging more than 35 years of static pool data and more than

35 million purchased accounts has produced long-term track record of increases in cash collections In

addition our long-term view on collections backed by experienced and well-trained account representatives

strategic office locations around the country and proven legal strategy continues to allow us to differentiate

ourselves As we continue to scale our business for the next phase of growth we expect to remain at the

forefront of the accounts receivable management industry by leveraging our breadth of purchasing and

unparalleled collections expertise

In addition to our mission vision and values we ask every member of our team to live by the Collectors

Pledge of our industry association ACA International

COLLECTORS PLEDGE

believe every person has worth as an individual

believe every person should be treated with dignity and respect

will make it my responsibility to help consumers find ways to pay their debts

will be professional and ethicaL

will commit to honoring this pledge

2010 ACA International Education Foundation



RENEWED FOCUS

2010 was undoubtedly one of the most dynamic and transformative years

in Asset Acceptances recent history During the year we took bold steps

to position our company for growth in 2011 and beyond by streamlining

our business model eliminating underperforming assets and accelerat

ing our purchasing and collection activities Importantly we had significant

achievements against our long-term growth initiatives during this time

These efforts began to bear fruit as we recorded year-over-year improve

ments in cash collections in both the third and fourth quarters in addition

to significant improvements in operating expenses and Adjusted EBITDA

We are increasingly confident that this is an important inflection point for

our business both in terms of our financial results and the momentum we

have begun to realize across our business When reflecting on the year we

cant help but acknowledge that the progress we made can in large part

be attributable to the hard work and dedication of our valued employees

Their energy motivation and commitment to excellence continue to pro

vide our company with competitive advantage and would like to thank

them for their efforts during the past year

2010 REVJEW

For the full-year 2010 Asset Acceptance reported net loss of $1.6 million

and revenues of $198.4 million Our financial results over the last two years

were adversely impacted by large impairments in 2009 and our ongoing

efforts to enhance our cost structure and eliminate underperforming assets

during 2010 The non-cash impairments taken in 2009 were done to bet

ter align our revenue recognition particularly on older vintages which had

yields that did not reflect the current economic climate Efforts to imple

ment more conservative yield structure served to improve our financial

results as we recognized minimal impairments during 2010 As result of

the transformational initiatives we incurred $4.2 million in restructuring

charges during 2010 primarily related to the closure of three collections

offices which we expect will result in combined annual savings of $7.5

million In addition we incurred charge of $5.3 million resulting from

the termination for performance of relationship with third party pro

vider We expect to save $7.5 million over the next three years as result

of this action

Full-year collections were $328.8 million decrease of $5.2 million or

1.6% from $334.0 million for 2009 We invested $136.3 million in new

purchased receivables net of buy-backs with an aggregate face value of

$3.8 billion during the year This level of purchasing represents 12.7%

increase from 2009

We worked diligently to increase our purchasing and maintain the mo
mentum generated early in the year which we expect will lead to higher

collections over the long-term As reminder we made the decision to

significantly increase our portfolio purchasing in the second half of 2009

specifically during the fourth quarter As we moved through the year we

continued to place greater focus on earlier-stage delinquencies which

historically have higher short-term liquidation rates and provide longer

time horizon to engage in the collection process Given the
availability of

portfolios and the favorable pricing environment we were able to be more

selective when analyzing and acquiring portfolios during the year

CoUecfion Trends
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Purchasing Trends Alongside implementing number of initiatives during 2010 we also in

$M creased our focus on enhancing the strength and experience of our man

agement team Specifically we appointed Reid Simpson as Chief Financial

570000
Officer and Todd Langusch as Chief Information Officer Although Reid and

Todd have only been with Asset Acceptance for short time their efforts

have already begun to positively impact our business

One thing we take very seriously at Asset Acceptance is our commitment

to integrity and respect It is our mission to be honest and accountable as

we work with our associates shareholders clients customers and vendors

while fostering an environment of mutual respect In addition to this mis

sion we are an industry leader in following good collections practices and

in helping our colleagues maintain the highest standards We ask every

member of our team to live by the Collectors Pledge of our industry as

sociation ACA International This pledge acknowledges that every person

should be treated with dignity and respect that it is our responsibility to

help customers find solutions to pay their debts and to act in professional

and ethical manner at all times

2010 CAPSTONE YEAR

During 2010 we spent considerable amount of time energy and capi

Collections by Channel tal to position our business for growth in 2011 and beyond Our success

during the year and expectations for long-term value creation are deeply

rooted in our strategic growth plan that focuses on enhancing our business

model and improving profitability by Positioning the Company for Growth

Improving our Competitive Positioning Optimizing our Capital Structure

and Enhancing our Financial Discipline

POSITIONING OUR COMPANY FOR GROWTH

We were able to make significant progress on our initiative to position our

company for growth during the year In the last twelve months we suc

cessfully expanded our collections capacity through productivity enhance

ments increased purchasing completed our analysis of the optimal staffing

level for our collections operations and made considerable progress against

our offshore partnership growth initiatives With these important enhance

ments completed we are now focused on maximizing pefformance through

effective channel management and are able to put more of our energy to

wards the other three key components of our strategic growth plan

MPROVE OUR COMPETTJVE POSITIONING

We continued our efforts to improve our competitive positioning during

2010 by streamlining our operations and aggressively aligning our cost

structure During the irst half of the year we increased the utilization of

analytical tools to make our associates more effective in their collection ef

forts optimize the cost to collect and increase overall productivity

We also spent censiderablw amount of time cond ucting detailed analysis

of our business to identify underperforming assets that are not essential to

achieving our long-term goals

Qi Q2 Q3 Q4
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During the second half of the year we began the process of divesting these

assets To that end we announced our exit from the purchase and collection

of heaithcare receivables conducted by our PARC subsidiary and the sale of

our healthcare portfolio As result we closed our Deerfield Beach Florida

office which simplified our technology footprint and narrowed our manage

ment focus In addition we closed our Chicago Illinois and Cleveland Ohio

collection offices which had both consistently underperformed compared to

other offices in our network These closures are expected to enhance pro

ductivity and profitability
without sacrificing top-line collection capa bilities

Combined these actions are expected to result in annualized savings of $7.5

million beginning in 2011

Another important development was our decision to acquire the assets of

BSI eSolutions LLC the vendor that provides the COGENT software suite

which is our primary collection platform This acquisition helped to expedite

the implementation of this software during 2010 and provides noteworthy

operational and IT benefits And finally we terminated relationship with

an underperforming third party service provider which is expected to reduce

our operating expenses by $7.5 million over the next three years While these

decisions were difficult as they impacted some of our associates we believe

they were necessary for the long-term success of our business

While we made significant progress against this initiative during the last year

we believe that additional opportunities remain to further improve our com

petitive positioning The intellectual property we acquired from BSI should

lead to further enhancements in productivity specifically as it relates to rev

enue diversification Although we are in the early stages of identifying ways

in which we can further leverage these IT capabilities we are encouraged by

what we have found to date Additionally we made significant investment to

enhance our analytics during 2010 The two major changes enacted were

efforts to improve both our intellectual capital by hiring associates with ad

vanced degrees and experience in the field of statistics and enhancing our

modeling capabilities by improving our technology platform We are very

excited about the potential these investments will have on our business

going forward

OPTIMIZING OUR CAPITAL STRUCTURE

We are continually focusing on maintaining capital structure that not only

supports our business over the long-term but also provides the necessary

flexibility to enhance purchasing and in turn drive cash collections Dur

ing the second quarter of 2010 we successfully amended our credit facility

which nearly doubled our purchasing capacity This increased our financial

flexibility and allowed the business to make significant progress towards our

purchasing goals in 2010 as well as fund our long-term growth strategy

Obviously our financial position is important and we will work to ensure that

our business has the appropriate capital structure to support our growth ini

tiatives in 2011 and beyond Going forward we will continue to evaluate and

leverage opportunities in the marketplace to expand and create flexibility in

our capital structure

We continued our

efforts to improve

our competitive

positioning during

2010 by streamlining

our operations and

aggressively aligning

our cost structure
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ENHANCING OUR FINANCIAL DISCIPLINE

Lastly we continue to dentify ways to enhance and improve our financial

discipline across the organization The key tenants of this inibative are im

provements in cash collections revenues and expense forecasting capa

bilities To date Reid has done an excellent job of analyzing our operations

to help improve our processes in our finance organization as well as re

view cost improvement opportunities throughout the business As we look

forward to 2011 we are focused on continuing to optimize our financial

performance through effective capital management across the enterprise

efficient purchasing and continued cost improvement initiatives

optir istc that the best CONCLUDING THOUGHTS

In summary 2010 wasa year of discipline execution and achievement for

our company We enter 2011 with much stronger foundation and strong

momentum The progress made on our long-term plan and steps taken

throughout the year to position our business for growth has helped to create

platform for long-term shareholder value creation We worked very hard

during 2010 to transform our business model and expect these efforts to

impact our financial performance in 2011 and beyond

Looking ahead we will continue to focus on purchasing growth productiv

ity improvements enhancing core systems capabilities identifying diversi

fied revenue streams and improving our financial strength and flexibility

While we understand that there is much work to be done we believe 2011

will be period of continued execution and is shaping up to be strong

year of growth and opportunity

We are excited about the prospects for our business and our industry am

proud to be part of this great Company and remain excited and optimistic

that the best is yet ahead for Asset Acceptance

We would like to again thank all of our employees for their dedication and

hard work and our shareholders for their trust and continued support of

our company

Sincerely7c
Rion Needs

President and Chief Executive Officer
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PARTI

Item Business

General

We have been purchasing and collecting defaulted or charged-off accounts receivable portfolios from

consumer credit originators since the fonnation of our predecessor company in 1962 Charged-off receivables are

the unpaid obligations of individuals to credit originators such as credit card issuers consumer finance

companies healthcare providers retail merchants telecommunications and other utility providers Since these

receivables are delinquent or past due we are able to purchase them at substantial discount We purchase and

collect charged-off consumer receivable portfolios for our own account as we believe this affords us the best

opportunity to use long-term strategies to maximize collections From January 2001 through December 31

2010 we purchased 1182 consumer debt portfolios with an original charged-off face value of $43.3 billion for

an aggregate purchase price of $1.1 billion or 2.57% of face value net of buybacks

When considering whether to purchase portfolio we conduct quantitative and qualitative analysis of the

portfolio to appropriately price the debt This analysis includes the use of our proprietary pricing and collection

probability model and draws upon our extensive experience in the industry We have developed experience

across wide range of asset types at various stages of delinquency having made purchases across more than 20

different asset types from over 150 different debt sellers since 2001 The delinquency stage refers to the date the

debt was charged off and the number of agencies that previously attempted to collect the debt We selectively

deploy our capital in the fresh primary secondary and tertiary delinquency stages defined as

fresh accounts are typically 120 to 180 days past due have been charged-off by the credit originator

and are being sold prior to any post charged-off collection activity These accounts typically sell for the

highest purchase price

primary accounts are typically 180 to 360 days past due have usually been previously placed with one

third party collector and typically receive lower purchase price and

secondary and tertiary accounts are typically more than 360 days past due have been placed with two

or more third party collectors and receive even lower purchase prices

We have long-standing history in the industry have built relationships with debt sellers and provide post-

sale service Unlike some third party collection agencies that attempt to collect the debt for period of only six to

twelve months we generally take long-term approach to the collection effort as we are the owners of the debt

We apply an approach that encourages cooperation with the debtors to make lump sum payment in full or to

formulate repayment plan Through our strategy of holding the debt for the long-term we have established

methodology of converting debtors into paying customers For those debtors who we believe have the ability to

repay the debt we may proceed with legal remedies to obtain collections In addition our approach allows us to

invest in various collection management and analysis tools that may be too costly fr short-term oriented

collection agencies In many cases we continue to receive collections on individual portfolios for more than ten

years from the date of purchase

In addition the Company finances the sales of consumer product retailers through its Consumer Credit LLC

subsidiary and licenses collection software application through its Legal Recovery Solutions LLC LRS
subsidiary

History

Our business originated in 1962 and became publicly traded company in February 2004 for the purpose of

purchasing and collecting charged-off consumer receivables Currently the Company purchases and holds

portfolios of all asset types except for healthcare



On April 28 2006 the Company completed stock purchase transaction of Premium Asset Recovery

Corporation PARC to expand its existing healthcare receivable portfolio collections activities Under the

terms of the agreement the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of PARC On July 29 2010 the

Company conmiitted to exit the healthcare accounts receivable purchase and collection activities conducted by

PARC Subsequently our PARC subsidiary was dissolved on December 15 2010

In July 2010 the Company formed LRS as new wholly-owned subsidiary On July 21 2010 LRS

completed an acquisition of substantially all of the assets of BSI eSolutions LLC BSI which was software

technology company providing products and services to the debt collection industry including the collection

platform we were implementing to replace our legacy system LRS continues to provide services and license the

software to other entities The results of operations for LRS since the acquisition were not material

Set forth below is diagram depicting our current operating corporate structure

As used in this Annual Report all references to us mean Asset Acceptance Capital Corp AACC
Delaware corporation and all wholly-owned subsidiaries referred to in our financial statements as the

Company

Purchasing

Typically we purchase our portfolios in response to request to bid received from prospective seller Our

acquisitions team cultivates relationships with known and prospective sellers of portfolios We have purchased

portfolios from over 150 different debt sellers since 2001 including many of the largest consumer lenders in the

United States While we have no policy limiting purchases from single debt seller we purchase from diverse

set of debt sellers and our purchasing decisions are based upon constantly changing economic and competitive

conditions as opposed to long-term relationships with particular debt sellers Depending on market conditions

and opportunities presented by certain debt sellers we may enter into forward flow contracts Forward flow

contracts commit debt seller to sell steady volume of charged-off receivables to us for fixed percentage of

the face value over specified time period which typically ranges between three and twelve months

We purchase our portfolios through variety of sources including consumer credit originators private

brokers and occasionally from debt resellers Debt resellers are debt purchasers that sell accounts at some point in

time after purchase Generally portfolios are purchased either in competitive bids through mix of sealed bids or

on-line auctions or through privately-negotiated transactions between the credit originator or other holders of

consumer debt and us

Each potential acquisition begins with quantitative and qualitative analysis of the portfolio In the initial

stages of the due diligence process we review basic data on the portfolios accounts This data typically includes

the account number the consumers name address social security number phone numbers outstanding balance



date of charge-off last payment and account origination to the extent the debt sellers provide this data We
analyze this information and summarize it based on certain key metrics such as but not limited to state of

debtors last known residence type of debt time remaining on the credit bureaus and time remaining within the

statute of limitations In addition we generally obtain certain qualitative factors relating to the portfolio from the

sellers

As part of our due diligence we evaluate the portfolio utilizing our proprietary pricing model This model

uses certain characteristics of the portfolio historical analysis of similarportfolios potential portfolio recoveries

and collection expense estimates to formulate bid range We also consult with our collections management to

help ascertain collectability potential collection strategies and our ability to integrate the new portfolio into our

collection platform

Once we have compiled and analyzed available data we consider market conditions and determine an

appropriate bid price or bid range The recommended bid price or bid range along with summary of our due

diligence is submitted to our investment committee for approval After appropriate approvals and acceptance of

our offer by the seller of the portfolio purchase agreement is negotiated Buyback provisions are generally

incorporated into the purchase agreement for bankrupt fraudulent paid prior or deceased accounts and typically

the credit originator either
agrees to repurchase these accounts or replace them with acceptable accounts within

certain time frames generally within 90 to 180 days Upon execution of the agreement we receive title to the

accounts and the transaction is funded

The following table categorizes our purchased receivables portfolios acquired from January 2001 through

December 31 2010 by major asset type

Face Value of

and accounts in thousands Charged-off No of

Asset Type Receivables1 Accounts

General Purpose Credit Cards $22250582 53.2% 8857 26.3%

Private Label Credit Cards 6418362 15.3 8295 24.7

Telecommunications/Utility/Gas 3150253 7.5 7984 23.8

Healthcare 2465023 5.9 4101 12.2

Installment Loans 1658409 4.0 326 1.0

Health Club 1445929 3.4 1145 3.4

Auto Deficiency 1032887 2.5 182 0.5

Other2 3426098 8.2 2733 8.1

Total $41847543 lOftO% 33623 100.0%

Face value of charged-off receivables represents the cumulative amount of purchases net of buybacks The

amounts in this table are not adjusted for payments received settlements or additional accrued interest that

occur after purchase This table also excludes the purchase of single portfolio in June 2002 with face

value of $1.2 billion at cost of $1.2 million or 0.1% of face value consisting of approximately

3.8 million accounts which would have been included in Other

Other includes charged-off receivables of several debt types including student loan mobile home

deficiency and retail mail order

The age of charged-off consumer receivables portfolio the time since an account has been charged-off by

the credit originator and the number of times portfolio has been placed with third parties for collection purposes

are important factors in determining the price at which we will offer to purchase portfolio Generally there is

an inverse relationship between the age of portfolio and the price at which we will purchase it This relationship

is due to the fact that older receivables are typically more difficult to collect The consumer debt collection

industry places receivables into the fresh primary secondary or tertiary categories depending on the age and



number of third parties that have previously attempted to collect on the receivables We will purchase accounts at

any point in the delinquency cycle We deploy our capital within these delinquency stages based upon the

relative values of the available debt portfolios

The following table categorizes our purchased receivables portfolios acquired from January 2001 through

December 31 2010 by delinquency stage

Face Value of

and accounts in thousands Charged-off No of

Delinquency Stage Receivables1 Accounts

Fresh 2933369 7.0% 1603 4.8%

Primary 5119226 12.2 4845 14.4

Secondary 10699377 25.6 8765 26.1

Tertiary 23095571 55.2 18410 54.7

Total $41847543 100.0% 33623 100.0%

Face value of charged-off receivables represents the cumulative amount of purchases net of buybacks The

amounts in this table are not adjusted for payments received settlements or additional accrued interest that

occur after purchase This table also excludes the purchase of single portfolio in June 2002 with face

value of $1.2 billion at cost of $1.2 million or 0.1% of face value consisting of approximately

3.8 million accounts which would have been included in Tertiary

We also review the geographic distribution of accounts within portfolio because collection laws differ

from state to state and therefore may impact collectability In addition economic factors vary regionally and are

factored into our purchasing analysis The following table illustrates our purchased receivables portfolios

acquired from January 2001 through December 31 2010 based on geographic location of the debtor

Face Value of

and accounts in thousands Charged-off No of

Geographic Location Receivables1 Accounts

Texas2 5898661 14.1% 5382 16.0%

California 5058413 12.1 3844 11.4

Florida2 4176843 10.0 2482 7.4

New York 2518352 6.0 1454 4.3

Michigan2 2145485 5.1 2539 7.6

Ohio 1785535 4.3 2304 6.9

Illinois 1640457 3.9 1753 5.2

Pennsylvania 1507663 3.6 1045 3.1

New Jersey2 1415932 3.4 1187 3.5

North Carolina 1270294 3.0 794 2.4

Georgia 1191000 2.8 921 2.7

Arizona2 867199 2.1 634 1.9

Other3 12371709 29.6 9284 27.6

Total $41847543 100.0% 33623 100.0%

Face value of charged-off receivables represents the cumulative amount of purchases net of buybacks The

amounts in this table are not adjusted for payments received settlements or additional accrued interest that

occur after purchase This table also excludes the purchase of single portfolio in June 2002 with face

value of $1.2 billion at cost of $1.2 million or 0.1% of face value consisting of approximately

3.8 million accounts

Collection sites located in this state

Each state included in Other represents less than 2.0% of the face value of total charged-off receivables



Collection Operations

Our collection operations seek to maximize the recovery of our purchased charged-off receivables in cost-

effective manner We have organized our collection process into legal and non-legal collection channels Within

these departments we have specialized teams that handle certain types of collections and we utilize third party

partners in both of these channels to supplement internal capacity or expertise We also utilize network of data

providers to periodically obtain updated account information to facilitate our collection activities

Call Center Collection Channel

Once portfolio is purchased we analyze the portfolio data to develop an effective collection strategy This

analysis includes series of data preparation and information acquisition steps to provide the
necessary account

data to ensure the accuracy and effectiveness of collection efforts Portfolio accounts are assigned sorted and

prioritized based on account status demographics balance sizes and various proprietary and external

collectability indicators

Our account representatives handle substantially all collection activity related to the accounts they service

Such activities include manual and automated outbound dialer calling activity inbound call management skip

tracing or debtor location efforts settlement and payment plan negotiation These activities are tracked and

measured on an individual account representative basis and regular coaching occurs to increase performance Our

performance-based collection model is driven by bonus program that allows account representatives to earn

bonuses based on their achievement compared to collection goals In addition we monitor our account

representatives for compliance with federal and state debt collection laws

When an initial telephone contact is made with debtor the account representative is trained to go through

series of questions in an effort to obtain accurate location and financial information on the debtor the reason

the debtor may have defaulted on the account the debtors willingness to pay and other relevant information that

may be helpful in securing satisfactory settlement or payment arrangements If full payment is not available the

account representative will attempt to negotiate settlement In an effort to maximize recoveries we maintain

settlement guidelines that account representatives supervisors and managers must follow Exceptions are

handled by management on an account-by-account basis If the debtor is unable to pay the balance in full or settle

within allowed guidelines monthly installment plans are encouraged in order to have the debtor resume regular

payment habit Our experience has shown that debtors often respond to this approach which can result in

settlement in full in the future

We periodically undertake skip tracing procedures to locate debtors Skip tracing efforts are performed

individually at the account representative level and in batch process by third party information providers The

information received is either manually or systematically validated and used in our efforts to locate debtors

Using these methods we periodically refresh and supply updated account information to our account

representatives to increase contact with the appropriate parties In addition the detailed account information that

is stored within the collection platform facilitates account segmentation and inventory modeling which improves

our collection strategies

In addition to our internal call center collection operations we have developed network of third party

collection agencies to service accounts that exceed our internal capacity or that have specific skills we believe

will yield better outcome than working the accounts internally For example we may consider outsourcing

small balance or aged segments of accounts while our account representatives focus on other populations of

larger or fresher accounts These third parties include both domestic and off-shore agencies including an agency

in India which we engaged to collect on our behalf utilizing our collection platform These varying collection

channels allow us to pursue what we believe is the most effective collection strategy for each account while

managing capacity



Legal Collection Channel

We analyze purchased accounts to identify those eligible for our legal process at both the time of purchase

and throughout the collection cycle Accounts are analyzed to determine whether the debtor has the ability but

not the willingness to pay If payment ability is verified we will pursue legal judgment against the debtor

however throughout the legal process we attempt to resolve the account with the debtor prior to obtaining

judgment Once judgment is obtained our legal department pursues various collection strategies to secure

payment Our in-house legal collection department utilizes call center account representatives collection

attorneys support staff and skip tracers Our legal forwarding department is comprised of account

representatives support staff and associates managing activities with outside attorneys

For accounts in states where we have local presence and in some cases adjacent states we prefer to pursue

an in-house legal strategy as it provides us with greater ability to manage the process We currently have

in-house capability in nine states In each of these states we have designed our legal policies and procedures to

maintain compliance with state and federal laws while pursuing available legal options We will pursue selective

expansion into different geographic regions if analysis indicates it is favorable to do so

Our legal forwarding department is organized to address the legal recovery function for accounts principally

located in states where we do not have local or adjacent presence This department also handles excess capacity

and processes accounts we believe can be better served using third party law firms We utilize independent law

firms throughout the country in our network who collect for us on contingent fee basis The legal forwarding

department actively manages and monitors our legal collection process handled by these firms

Our legal channel also includes our bankruptcy and probate departments The bankruptcy department files

proofs of claims for receivables that are included in consumer bankruptcies filed under Chapter resulting in

liquidation and discharge of debtors debts and Chapter 13 resulting in repayment plans based on the financial

wherewithal of the debtor of the U.S Bankruptcy Code The probate department and our network of third party

law firms submit claims against estates involving deceased debtors having assets that may become available to us

through probate claim

Seasonality

Refer to Part II Item under the caption Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of OperationsSeasonality for the effect of seasonality on our business

Competition

The consumer debt collection industry is highly competitive and fragmented We compete with wide range

of other purchasers of charged-off consumer receivables third party collection agencies other financial service

companies and credit originators that manage their own consumer receivables Some of these companies may
have substantially greater numbers of associates and financial resources and may experience lower account

representative turnover rates than we do Furthermore some of our competitors may obtain alternative sources of

financing the proceeds from which may be used to fund expansion and to increase their number of charged-off

portfolio purchases Barriers to entry into the consumer debt collection industry are low Companies with greater

financial resources may elect at future date to enter the consumer debt collection business Furthermore current

debt sellers may change strategies and cease selling debt portfolios in the future

Competitive pressures
affect the availability and pricing of receivable portfolios as well as the availability

and cost of qualified account representatives In addition some of our competitors may have entered into forward

flow contracts under which consumer credit originators have agreed to transfer steady flow of charged-off

receivables to them in the future which may restrict those credit originators from selling receivables to other

purchasers and limit the supply of receivables available to us



We face bidding competition in our acquisition of charged-off consumer receivables We believe successful

bids are predominantly awarded based on price secondarily based on service and relationships with the

individual debt sellers and the debt buyers ability to fund the deal In addition there continues to be

consolidation of issuers of credit cards which have been principal source of our receivable purchases This

consolidation has decreased the number of sellers in the market and could eventually give the remaining sellers

increasing market strength on the price and terms of the sale of charged-off accounts

Technology Platform

We believe that information teclmology is critical to our success Our key systems have been purchased

from outside vendors and with our input have been tailored to meet our particular business needs During 2010

we acquired the assets of BSI the vendor that developed our collection application including the software source

code We believe this acquisition allows us to further enhance our collection platform and improve productivity

in an efficient and cost effective manner We maintain full-time staff of technology professionals who monitor

and maintain our information technology and communications structure We utilize centralized data center

model This leverages economies of scale in providing distributed computing capabilities

The collection software in use today enables us to

automate the loading of accounts in order to expedite collecting after purchase

segment the accounts to optimize collection strategies

interface with third party letter production and mailing vendors credit reporting services and

information service providers to effectively communicate with debtors and obtain efficiencies in our

operations

integrate with our automated dialer to increase the number of contacts with our debtors

connect to document imaging system to allow our associates with appropriate responsibilities to

view scanned documents on accounts from their workstations while working on an account

limit an associates ability to work outside of company guidelines

query the appropriate database for any purpose
which may be used for collection reporting or other

business matters

establish parameters to comply with federal and state laws and

provide comprehensive data feeds to ouE business intelligence application for decision science

analytics

In order to minimize the potential impact of disaster or other interruption of data or telephone

communications that are critical to oUr business we have

diesel generator sufficient in size to power our entire Warren Michigan headquarters including our

centralized systems

back-up server sufficient in size to handle our collection platform located in separate data center

replication of data from the primary system to the backup system

an ability to have inbound phone calls rerouted to other offices

fire suppression systems in our primary and back-up data centers

redundant data paths to each of our call center offices and data centers

daily back-up of all of our critical applications with the tapes transported offsite to secure data

storage facility and

data replication in our primary server to preserve data in the event of failure of storage component



In addition we have state-of-the-art dialer systems for incoming and outgoing calls that include call

recording and messaging technology

Regulation and Legal ComplianceCollection Activities

We have robust Compliance Department under the oversight of our Office of the General Counsel Our

Compliance Department assists with training our staff in relevant areas including extensive training on the Fair

Debt Collection Practices Act and other relevant laws and regulations Our Office of the General Counsel
distributes guidelines and procedures for collection personnel to follow when communicating with customers
customers agents attorneys and other parties during our recovery efforts This includes

approving all written

communications to account debtors In addition our Office of the General Counsel regularly researches and
provides collections personnel and our training department with summaries and updates of changes in federal and
state statutes and relevant case law so that they are aware of and maintain compliance with changing laws and

judicial decisions

Federal state and local statutes establish specific guidelines and procedures which debt collection account

representatives must follow when collecting consumer accounts It is our policy to comply with the provisions of
all applicable federal state and local laws in all of our recovery activities and as such we have established

comprehensive procedures for compliance Failure to comply with these laws could lead to fines suits and
disruption of our collection activities that could have material adverse effect on us

Federal state and local consumer protection privacy and related laws and regulations extensively regulate
the relationship between debt collectors and debtors Significant federal laws and regulations applicable to our
business as debt collection company include the following

Fair Debt Collection Practices Act FDCPA This act imposes obligations and restrictions on the

practices of consumer debt collectors including specific restrictions regarding communications with

debtors inØluding the time place and manner of the communications This act also gives consumers
certain rights including the right to dispute the validity of their obligations

Fair Credit Reporting Act/Fair and Accurate Credit Transaction Act of 2003 The Fair Credit

Reporting Act FCRA and its amendment entitled the Fair and Accurate Credit Transaction Act of
2003 FACT Act place requirements on credit information furnishers regarding verification of the

accuracy of information furnished to credit reporting agencies and requires such information furnishers
to investigate consumer disputes concerning the accuracy of such information The FACT Act also

requires certain conduct in the cases of identity theft or unauthorized use of credit card and direct

disputes to the creditor We furnish information concerning our accounts to the three major credit-

reporting agencies and it is our practice to correctly report this information and to investigate credit-

reporting disputes in timely fashion

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act This act authorized the creation of the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau CFPB The CFPB will have authority to regulate and
examine the Company While the CFPB will have wide ranging authority over the Company it is not

yet possible to know what its specific impact will be as it has not yet implemented any rules or

regulations governing our business

The Financial Privacy Rule Promulgated under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act this rule requires that

financial institutions including collection agencies develop policies to protect the privacy of
consumers private financial information and provide notices to consumers advising them of their

privacy policies It also requires that if private personal information concerning consumer is shared
with another unrelated institution the consumer must be given an opportunity to opt out of having such
information shared Since we do not share consumer information with non-related entities except as

required by law or except as allowed by the rule in connection with our collection efforts our
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consumers are not entitled to any opt-out rights under this rule Both this rule and the Safeguards Rule

described below are enforced by the Federal Trade Commission which has retained exclusive

jurisdiction over enforcement of them Consumers do not have private cause of action for violations

of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act

The Safeguards Rule Also promulgated under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act this rule specifies that we

must safeguard financial information of consumers and have written security plan setting forth

information technology safeguards and the ongoing monitoring of the storage and safeguarding of

electronic information

Electronic Funds Transfer Act This act regulates the use of the Automated Clearing House ACH
system to make electronic funds transfers All ACH transactions must comply with Federal Reserve

Regulation and the rules of the Electronic Payments Association formerly the National Automated

Check Clearing House Association NACHA This act Regulation and the NACHA regulations

give the consumer among other things certain privacy rights with respect to the transactions the right

to stop payments on pre-approved fund transfer and the right to receive certain documentation of the

transaction

Telephone Consumer Protection Act In the process of collecting on accounts we use automated dialers

to place calls to consumers This act and similar state laws place certain restrictions on users of

automated dialing equipment who place telephone calls to consumers and

U.S Bankruptcy Code In order to prevent any collection activity with bankrupt debtors by creditors

and collection agencies the U.S Bankruptcy Code provides for an automatic stay which prohibits

certain contact with consumers after the filing of bankruptcy petitions

Additionally there are state and local statutes and regulations comparable to the above federal laws and

other state and local-specific licensing requirements which affect our operations State laws may also limit

interest rates and fees methods of collections as well as the time frame in which judicial actions may be initiated

to enforce the collection of consumer accounts Court rulings in various jurisdictions also may impact our ability

to collect

Although we are not generally credit originator the following laws which apply typically to credit

originators may occasionally affect our operations because our receivables were originated through credit

transactions

Truth in Lending Act

Fair Credit Billing Act

Equal Credit Opportunity Act

Retail Installment Sales Act and

Credit Card Accountability Responsibility and Disclosure Act of 2009

Federal laws which regulate credit originators require among other things that credit card issuers disclose

to consumers the interest rates fees grace periods and balance calculation methods associated with their credit

card accounts Consumers are entitled under current laws to have payments and credits applied to their accounts

promptly to receive prescribed notices and to require billing errors to be resolved promptly Some laws prohibit

discriminatory practices in connection with the extension of credit Federal statutes further provide that in some

cases consumers cannot be held liable for or their liability is limited with respect to charges to the credit card

account that were result of an unauthorized use of the credit card These laws among others may limit our

ability to recover amounts due on an account whether or not we committed any wrongful act or omission in

connection with the account If the credit originator fails to comply with applicable statutes rules and
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regulations it could create claims and rights for consumers that could reduce or eliminate their obligations to

repay the account and have possible material adverse effect on us Accordingly when we acquire charged-off
consumer receivables we typically require credit originators to represent and warrant that the receivables were

originated and serviced in compliance with applicable laws and indemnify us against certain losses that may
result from their failure to comply with applicable statutes rules and regulations relating to the receivables before

they are sold to us

There are federal and state statutes concerning identity theft or unauthorized use of credit card Some of
these provisions place restrictions on our ability to report information concerning receivables which may be

subject to identity theft or unauthorized use of credit card to consumer credit reporting agencies Additional

consumer protection and privacy protection laws may be enacted that would impose additional requirements on
the

recovery of consumer credit card or installment accounts Any new laws rules or regulations that may be

adopted as well as existing consumer protection and privacy protection laws may adversely affect our ability to

collect on our charged-off consumer receivable portfolios In addition our failure to comply with these

requirements could adversely affect our ability to recover the receivables and increase our costs

It is possible that some of the receivables were established as result of identity theft or unauthorized use
In such cases we would not be able to recover the amount of the charged-off consumer receivables As

purchaser of charged-off consumer receivables we may acquire receivables subject to legitimate defenses on the

part of the consumer Most of our account purchase contracts allow us to return to the credit originators within
an agreed upon amount of time certain charged-off consumer receivables that may not be collectible at the time
of purchase due to these and other circumstances Upon return the credit originators or debt sellers are required
to replace the receivables with similar receivables or repurchase the receivables These provisions limit to some

extent our losses on such accounts

Associates

As of December 31 2010 we employed 1258 associates including 1206 associates on full-time basis
and 52 associates on part-time basis

Training

We have comprehensive training program that incorporates standardized collection methodology Our

program emphasizes quality in collection tactics including compliance with laws and regulations and contains

structured model that is used to enhance collection activities We also provide development training program
for our new account representatives and continuing education opportunities for all associates via the Companys
learning center Our training includes several learning approaches including classroom interactive activities

computer-based training and on-the-job training

New collection account representatives are required to complete an eight-week training program The

program is divided into two four-week modules The initial four-week module has weekly objectives using
various learning activities The first week includes federal state and local collection laws with particular

emphasis on the FDCPA and the FACT Act telephone collection techniques and core company policies

procedures and practices The second week includes structured learning of our collection software and
information technology tools including call simulations and role play During weeks three and four new hires

form collection team and supervised collection calls are made Instruction and guidance is shared with new
associates to improve productivity Training includes discussion of challenges faced by associates and debriefing
of the activities performed Interactive activities are used to enhance collection and organization skills

The second four-week training module transitions the collection team to the collection floor where they are

assigned productivity goals and work under the direction of supervisor This team of new hires continues to

receive closely monitored training and reviews key elements from the first session
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New legal account representatives are required to complete four-week training program The first two

weeks are the same for legal account representatives as for non-legal collection account representatives The

second week of training focuses on the legal processes and procedures collections software and also includes

supervised collection calls Weeks three and four include closely supervised implementation of assigned duties

by the legal department

All account representatives are tested annually on their knowledge of the FDCPA and other applicable laws

Account representatives not achieving our minimum standards are required to complete FDCPA review session

and are then retested In addition annual supplemental instruction in the FDCPA and collection techniques is

provided to all of our account representatives

Item 1A Risk Factors

This Report includes forward-looking statements as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

of 1995 In addition we may make other written and oral communications from time to time that contain

forward-looking statements All statements regarding our expected financial position strategies and growth

prospects and general economic conditions we expect to exist in the future are forward-looking statements The

words anticipates believes feels expects estimates seeks strives plans intends outlook
forecast position target mission assume achievable potential strategy goal aspiration

outcome continue remain maintain trend objective and variations of such words and similar

expressions or future or conditional verbs such as will would should could might can may or

similarexpressions as they relate to us or our management are intended to identify forward-looking statements

We caution that forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions risks and uncertainties

which change over time Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statement is made and we do

not undertake to update forward-looking statements to reflect facts circumstances assumptions or events that

occur after the date the forward-looking statements are made Actual results could differ materially from those

anticipated in forward-looking statements and future results could differ materially from historical performance

The risk factors contained below could cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking

statements and future results could differ materially from historical performance

Our access to capital through our credit agreement is critical to our ability to continue to grow If our

available credit is materially reduced or the credit agreement is terminated and we are unable to replace it

on favorable terms or at all our ability to purchase charged-off receivables and our results of operations

may be materially and adversely affected

We believe that access to capital through our credit agreement has been critical to our ability to maintain our

operations Our inability to obtain financing and capital as needed or on terms acceptable to us would limit our

ability to acquire additional receivable portfolios and to operate our business We have $100.0 million

revolving line of credit that expires June 2012 and $150.0 million term loan facility that matures on June

2013 If our available credit is materially reduced or the credit agreement is terminated as result of

noncompliance with covenant or other event of default and if we are unable to replace it on relatively favorable

terms or at all our ability to purchase charged-off receivables to generate collections and cash flow and our

results of operations may be materially and adversely affected

All of our receivable portfolios are pledged to secure amounts owed to our lenders under our credit

agreement In addition our credit agreement imposes number of restrictive covenants on how we operate our

business These include financial covenants As of December 31 2010 we had the ability to borrow an additional

$55.8 million under the most resthctive of these financial covenants Our ability to meet these financial

covenants is predicated on our ability to continue to generate revenues and other financial results at levels
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sufficient to satisfy the requirements of our credit agreement Failure to satisfy any one of these covenants could
result in all or any of the following consequences each of which could have material adverse effect on our
ability to conduct business

acceleration of
outstanding indebtedness

our inability to continue to purchase charged-off receivables needed to operate our business or

our inability to secure alternative financing on favorable terms if at all

In addition our credit agreement contains limitations and restrictions as to our ability to seek additional
credit from other lenders and requires that portion of proceeds from issuance of our stock be used to pay down
our term loan facility

Failure to comply with government regulation could result in the suspension or termination of our ability
to conduct business and the imposition of financial penalties

The collections industry is regulated under various federal and state laws and regulations Many states and
several cities require that we be licensed as debt collection company The Federal Trade Commission state

Attorneys General and other regulatory bodies have the ability to investigate consumer complaints against debt
collection companies and to recommend enforcement actions and seek monetary penalties If we fail to comply
with applicable laws and regulations it could result in significant penalties or the suspension or termination of

our ability to conduct collection operations which could materially adversely affect us

We may not be able to resolve the investigation by the Federal Trade Commission FTC to our
satisfaction

The FTC is
conducting an investigation into our debt collection practices under the Fair Debt Collection

Practices Act the Fair Credit Reporting Act and the Federal Trade Commission Act which may result in

decree that would impose injunctive relief and civil money penalty on the Company If we are unsuccessful in

our efforts to resolve the matter on satisfactory terms an action by the FTC may result in limitations on the
manner in which we conduct our debt collection practices that may materially harm our business and reduce our

profitability and
prospects

Our ability to recover on our charged-off consumer receivables may be limited under federal state and
local laws

Federal and state consumer protection privacy and related laws and regulations extensively regulate the

relationship between debt collectors and debtors Federal and state laws may limit our ability to recover on our
charged-off consumer receivables regardless of any act or omission on our part Some laws and regulations
applicable to credit card issuers may preclude us from collecting on charged-off consumer receivables we
purchase if the credit card issuer previously failed to comply with applicable law in generating or servicing those
receivables Additional consumer protection and privacy protection laws may be enacted that would impose
additional or more stringent requirements on the enforcement of and collection on consumer receivables

New federal state or local laws or regulations such as regulations adopted by the new federal Bureau of
Consumer Financial Protection under the 2010 Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or
changes in the ways these rules or laws are interpreted or enforced could limit our activities in the future or

significantly increase the cost of regulatory compliance Any new laws such as the Credit CARD Act of 2009
that limits fees and interest charges on credit card holders rules or regulations that may be adopted as well as
existing consumer protection and privacy protection laws may adversely affect our ability to collect on our
charged-off consumer receivable portfolios and may have material adverse effect on our business and results of
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operations In addition federal and state governmental bodies are considering and may consider in the future

other legislative proposals that would regulate the collection of consumer receivables The FTC has proposed

amendments to the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act that if enacted may adversely affect our business and

results of operations Although we cannot predict if or how any future legislation would impact our business our

failure to comply with any current or future laws or regulations applicable to us could limit our ability to collect

on our charged-off consumer receivable portfolios which could reduce our profitability and harm our business

In addition to the possibility of new laws being enacted it is possible that regulators and litigants may

attempt to extend debtors rights beyond the current interpretations placed on existing statutes These attempts

could cause us to expend significant financial and human resources in either litigating these new

interpretations or ii alter our existing methods of conducting business to comply with these interpretations

either of which could reduce our profitabiliiy and harm our business

significant portion of our collections depend on our success in individual lawsuits brought against

consumers and our ability to collect on judgments in our favor

We generate significant portion of our revenue by collecting on judgments that are granted by courts in

lawsuits filed against debtors decrease in the willingness of courts to grant such judgments change in the

requirements for filing such cases or obtaining such judgments or decrease in our ability to collect on such

judgments could have material and adverse effect on our results of operations The FTC has issued report

encouraging states to impose specific greater restrictions on litigation to collect consumer debt As we increase

our use of the legal channel for collections our short-term margins may decrease as result of an increase in

upfront court costs and costs related to counter claims We may not be able to collect on certain aged accounts

because of applicable statutes of limitations We may be unable to obtain account documents for some of the

accounts we purchase which may negatively impact our ability to collect those accounts Courts in some

jurisdictions require that copy of the account statements or applications be attached to the pleadings in order to

obtain judgment against the account debtors If we are unable to produce account documents these courts will

deny our claims We may be subject to adverse effects of regulatory changes that we cannot predict

We are subject to ongoing risks of litigation including individual and class actions under consumer credit

collections and other laws

We operate in an extremely litigious industry and currently are and may in the future be named as

defendants in litigation including individual and class actions under consumer credit collections and other laws

Negative attention and news regarding the debt collection industry and individual debt collectors may

have negative impact on debtors willingness to pay the debt we acquire

The following factors may cause consumers to be more reluctant to pay their debts or to pursue legal actions

against us

Annually the FTC submits report to Congress which summarizes the complaints it has received

regarding debt collection practices The report contains the total number of complaints filed the

percentage of increases or decreases from the previous year
in addition to an outline of key types of

complaints

Print and television media publish stories about the debt collection industry which cite specific

examples of abusive collection practices These stories are also published on websites which can lead

to the rapid dissemination of the story adding to the level of exposure to negative publicity about our

industry

The Internet has websites where consumers list their concerns about the activities of debt collectors and

seek guidance from other website posters on how to handle various situations

Advertisements by anti-collections attorneys and credit counseling centers are becoming more

common and add to the negative attention given to our industry
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As result of this negative publicity debtors may be more reluctant to pay their debts or could pursue legal

action against us regardless of whether those actions are warranted These actions could impact our ability to

collect on the receivables we acquire and impact our ability to operate profitably

Instability in the financial markets continued economic weakness or new economic recession may affect

our access to capital and our ability to purchase and collect receivables High unemployment rates may
negatively affect our collections of charged-off consumer receivables

Our success depends on our continued ability to purchase and collect charged-off consumer receivables The

unemployment rate in the United States remains elevated compared to historical levels Residential real estate

values remain depressed negatively affecting consumers ability to pay debts Individual consumers have been

experiencing high delinquency rates on various consumer loans and decreased availability of credit We have

experienced the impact of these economic factors on our collections Continued depression or further declines in

real estate values continued high levels of unemployment and continuing credit and liquidity concerns could

further reduce our ability to collect on our purchased consumer receivable portfolios and would adversely affect

their value Financial pressure on the distressed consumer may lead to regulatory restrictions on our collections

and increased litigation filed against us We may be unable to predict the likely duration or severity of any
adverse economic conditions and the effects they may have on our business financial condition results of

operations and cash flows

If we are not able to purchase charged-off consumer receivables at appropriate prices or in sufficient

amounts the resulting decrease in our inventory of purchased portfolios of receivables could adversely

affect our ability to generate cash collections and income

If we are unable to purchase charged-off consumer receivables from credit originators in sufficient face

value amounts at appropriate prices our business may be harmed The availability of portfolios of consumer

receivables at prices which generate an appropriate return on our investment depends on number of factors

both within and outside of our control including

our ability to borrow to fund purchases

the absence of significant contraction in the levels of credit being extended by credit originators

the absence of significant contraction in the levels of consumer obligations

charge-off rates

continued growth in the number of industries selling charged-off consumer receivable portfolios

continued sales of charged-off consumer receivable portfolios by credit originators

debt sellers willingness to sell portfolios to us

competitive factors affecting potential purchasers and credit originators of charged-off receivables

including the number of firms engaged in the collection business and the capitalization of those firms

as well as new entrants seeking returns that may cause an increase in the price we are willing to pay
for portfolios of charged-off consumer receivables or cause us to overpay for portfolios of charged-off

consumer receivables

In addition we believe that credit originators and debt sellers are utilizing more sophisticated collection

methodologies that result in lower quality portfolios available for purchase which may render the portfolios

available for sale less collectible

Because of the length of time involved in collecting charged-off consumer receivables on acquired

portfolios and the volatility in the timing of our collections we may not be able to identify trends and make

changes in our purchasing or collection strategies in timely manner
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significant portion of our portfolio purchases during any period may be concentrated with small

number of sellers

We expect that specific percentage of our portfolio purchases for any given fiscal year may be

concentrated with few large sellers some of which also may involve forward flow arrangements The

consolidation of major banks in recent years has resulted in fewer sellers of charged-off consumer receivables

We cannot be certain that any of our significant sellers will continue to sell charged-off receivables to us on

terms or in quantities acceptable to us or that we would be able to replace such purchases with purchases from

other sellers

significant decrease in the volume of purchases from any of our principal sellers would force us to seek

alternative sources of charged-off receivables We may be unable to find alternative sources from which to

purchase charged-off receivables and even if we could successfully replace such purchases the search could take

time the receivables could be of lower quality cost more or both any of which could materially adversely affect

our financial performance

Our operations could suffer from telecommunications or technology downtime or from not responding to

changes in technology

Our success depends in large part on sophisticated telecommunications and computer systems The

temporary or permanent loss of our computer and telecommunications equipment and software systems through

casualty or operating malfunction including outside influences such as computer viruses could disrupt our

operations In the normal course of our business we must record and process significant amounts of data quickly

and accurately Any failure of our information systems or software and their backup systems would interrupt our

operations and harm our business Computer and telecommunications technologies evolve rapidly We may not

be successful in anticipating managing or adapting technological changes on timely basis which could reduce

our profitability or disrupt our operations and harm our business In addition we rely significantly on various

outside vendors for the software used in operating our current collections platform Our business operations

would be disrupted and our results of operations may be harmed if they were to cease operations or significantly

reduce their support to us

We are subject to examinations and challenges by tax authorities

Our industry is relatively new and unique and as result there is not set of well defined laws regulations

or case law for us to follow that match our particular facts and circumstances for some tax positions Therefore

certain tax positions we take are based on industry practice tax advice and drawing similarities of our facts and

circumstances to those in case law relating to other industries These tax positions may relate to tax compliance

sales and use franchise gross receipts payroll property and income tax issues including tax base and

apportionment Challenges made by tax authorities to our application of tax rules may result in adjustments to the

timing or amount of taxable income or deductions or the allocation of income among tax jurisdictions as well as

inconsistent positions between different jurisdictions on similarmatters If any such challenges are made and are

not resolved in our favor they could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

We are dependent on our management team for the adoption and implementation of our strategies and the

loss of their services could have material adverse effect on our business

Our future success depends on the continued ability to recruit hire retain and motivate highly skilled

management The continued growth and success of our business is particularly dependent upon the continued

services of our Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers Our performance also depends on our ability

to retain and motivate our other executives The loss of the services of one or more of our executive officers or

other key associates could disrupt our operations and impair our ability to continue to acquire or collect on

portfolios of charged-off consumer receivables and to manage and expand our business We do not maintain key

person
life insurance policies for our executive officers or key associates
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We generally account for purchased receivable revenues using the interest method of accounting in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles which requires making reasonable estimates of
the timing and amount of future cash collections If the timing is delayed or the actual amount recovered
by us is materially different from our estimates it could cause us to recognize impairments and negatively
impact our earnings

The estimates used in the interest method Interest Method to calculate the projected internal rate of

return IRR on our portfolios are primarily based on historical cash collections and
payer dynamics If actual

future cash collections are materially different in amount or timing than the remaining collections estimate

earnings could be affected either positively or negatively Higher collection amounts or cash collections that

occur sooner than projected will have favorable impact to revenue due to reversal of impairments or increases
in yields and revenues Higher than projected collections could also have short term impact of increased

amortization which results in lower net income Lower collection amounts or cash collections that occur later

than projected will have an unfavorable impact and result in an impairment of the purchased receivable balance
Impairments may cause reduced earnings or volatility in earnings which could have the effect of depressing the

price per share of our common stock and reducing our consolidated tangible net worth and put pressure on the
financial covenants in our credit facilities Refer to Critical Accounting PoliciesRevenue Recognition on

page 51 for further information regarding the Interest Method and estimates

We may not be able to collect sufficient amounts on our charged-off consumer receivables which would

adversely affect our results of operations our ability to satisfy debt obligations our purchase of new
portfolios and our future growth

Our business consists of acquiring and collecting receivables that consumers have failed to pay and that the
credit originator has deemed uncollectible and has charged-off The credit originators or other debt sellers

generally have
attempted to recover on their charged-off consumer receivables before we purchase such

receivables often using combination of in-house
recovery and third party collection efforts Because there

generally have been multiple efforts to collect on these portfolios of charged-off consumer receivables before we
attempt to collect on them our attempts to collect may not be successful Therefore we may not collect

sufficient amount to cover our investment associated with purchasing the charged-off consumer receivable

portfolios and the costs of running our business which would adversely affect our results of operations In

addition if cash flows from operations are less than anticipated our ability to satisfy our debt obligations

purchase new portfolios and achieve growth and profitability may be materially and adversely affected

There can be no assurance that our success in generating collections in the past will be indicative of our

ability to be successful in generating collections in the future

We are highly dependent on revenues generated from our purchased receivable collection activities Entry
into new markets or other attempts to diversify our business model may not be successful

Substantially all our operating revenues are generated from collections on charged-off purchased
receivables Although we use multiple collection approaches changing economic factors or collection laws for

example may impact our ability to collect regardless of the collection approach we pursue Although
management may seek opportunities to diversify we may noLbe successful

We experience high turnover rates for our account representatives We may not be able to hire and retain

enough sufficiently trained account representatives to support our operations

Our ability to collect on new and existing portfolios and to acquire new portfolios is substantially dependent
on our ability to hire and retain qualified associates The consumer accounts receivables management industry is

labor intensive and similar to other companies in our industry we experience high rate of associate turnover
For 2010 our annual turnover rate was 79.6% and our collection department associate turnover rate was 111.7%
Based on our experience account representatives who have been with us for more than one year are generally
more productive than account representatives who have been with us for less than one year In 2010 our turnover
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rate for all associates employed by us for at least one year was 51.6% and 76.1% for collection department

associates We compete for qualified associates with companies in our industry and in other industries Our

operations require that we continually hire train and in particular retain account representatives In addition we

believe the level of training we provide to our associates makes them attractive to other collection companies

which may attempt to recruit them higher turnover rate among our account representatives will increase our

recruiting and training costs may require us to increase associate compensation levels and will limit the number

of experienced collection associates available to service our charged-off consumer receivables If this were to

occur we may not be able to service our charged-off consumer receivables effectively which could reduce our

ability to operate profitably

Significant increases in interest rates could adversely impact our financial position results of operations

and cash flows

Our credit agreement bears interest at 200 to 250 basis points over prime or 300 to 350 basis points over the

London Inter Bank Offer Rate Although portion of our outstanding borrowings have fixed rate of interest

resulting from swap agreement portion is not fixed In addition in the future we may amend our credit

agreement which could significantly impact the rates of interest we pay As result of these factors fluctuations

in interest rates may adversely impact our financial position results of operations and cash flows

We face intense competition that could impair our ability to achieve our goals

The consumer debt collection industry is highly competitive and fragmented We compete with wide range

of other purchasers of charged-off consumer receivables third party collection agencies other financial service

companies and credit originators and other owners of debt that manage their own charged-off consumer

receivables Some of these companies may have substantially greater numbers of associates and financial

resources and may experience lower account representative turnover rates than we do Furthermore some of our

competitors may obtain alternative sources of financing the proceeds from which may be used to fund expansion

and to increase their number of charged-off portfolio purchases Bathers to entry into the consumer debt

collection industry are low Companies with greater financial resources than we have may elect at future date to

enter the consumer debt collection business Competitive pressures affect the availability and pricing of

receivable portfolios as well as the availability and cost of qualified debt collection account representatives In

addition some of our competitors have signed forward flow contracts under which consumer credit originators

have agreed to transfer steady flow of charged-off receivables to them in the future which could restrict those

credit originators from selling receivables to us

We face bidding competition in our acquisition of charged-off consumer receivable portfolios We believe

successful bids generally are awarded based predominantly on price and to lesser extent based on service and

relationships with debt sellers Some of our current competitors and possible new competitors may have more

effective pricing and collection models more efficient operating structure greater adaptability to changing

market needs and more established relationships in our industry than we have Moreover our competitors may
elect to pay prices for portfolios that we determine are not reasonable and in that event our volume of portfolio

purchases may be diminished There can be no assurance that our existing or potential sources will continue to

sell their charged-off consumer receivables at recent levels or at all or that we will continue to offer competitive

bids for charged-off consumer receivable portfolios In addition there continues to be consolidation of issuers

of credit cards which have been principal source of our receivable purchases This consolidation has decreased

the number of sellers in the market and consequently could over time give the remaining sellers increasing

market strength in the price and terms of the sale of charged-off credit card accounts and could cause us to accept

lower returns on our investment in that paper than we have historically achieved

If we are unable to develop and expand our business or adapt to changing market needs as well as our

current or future competitors we may experience reduced access to portfolios of charged-off consumer

receivables in sufficient face-value amounts at appropriate prices As result we may experience reduced

profitability which in turn may impair our ability to achieve our goals
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We mayacquire charged-off receivable portfolios in industries in which we mayhave little or no
experience if we do not successfully collect on these portfolios revenue may decline and our results of

operations may be materially and adversely affected

We may acquire portfolios of charged-off consumer receivables in industries in which we have limited

experience some which may have specific regulatory restrictions with which we have no experience Our limited

experience in these industries may impair our ability to effectively and efficiently collect on these portfolios
Furthermore we need to develop appropriate pricing models for these markets and there is no assurance that we
will do so effectively When pricing charged-off consumer receivables for industries in which we have limited

experience we attempt to adjust our models for expected or known differences from our traditional models
However our pricing models are primarily based on historical data for industries in which we do have
experience This may cause us to overpay for these portfolios and consequently our profitability may suffer as
result of these portfolio acquisitions

Our operating results and cash collections may vary from quarter to quarter

Our business depends on the ability to collect on our portfolios of charged-off consumer receivables
Collections within portfolios tend to be seasonally higher in the first and second quarters of the year due to

consumers receipt of tax refunds and other factors Conversely collections within portfolios tend to be lower in

the third and fourth quarters of the year due to consumers spending in connection with summer vacations the

holiday season and other factors Operating expenses are seasonally higher during the first and second quarters of
the

year due to expenses necessary to process the increase in cash collections However revenue recognized is

relatively level due to our application of the Interest Method for revenue recognition In addition our operating
results may be affected to lesser extent by the timing of purchases of portfolios of charged-off consumer
receivables due to the initial costs associated with purchasing and integrating these receivables into our system
Consequently income and margins may fluctuate from quarter to quarter

Our collections may decrease if bankruptcy filings increase or if bankruptcy laws change

During times of economic recession the amount of charged-off consumer receivables generally increases
which contributes to an increase in the number of personal bankruptcy filings Under certain bankruptcy filings
debtors assets are sold to repay creditors but since the charged-off consumer receivables we are attempting to

collect are generally unsecured or secured on second or third priority basis we often would not be able to

collect on those receivables Our collections may decline with an increase in bankruptcy filings or if the

bankruptcy laws change in manner adverse to our business in which case our financial condition and results of
operations could be

materially adversely affected

Our common stock trades at relatively low average daily volume Consequently sales of our common
stock by one or more of our larger shareholders could depress the price of our common stock

The majority of our shares of common stock are held by relatively few shareholders As of February
2011 our directors executive officers and beneficial owners of 5% or more of our common stock controlled

approximately 85.8% in total of our outstanding shares Our largest shareholder AAC Quad-C Investors LLC
Quad-C which controls 35.7% of our common stock and our fourth largest shareholder Nathaniel

Bradley IV our chairman who controls 12.4% of our common stock have an agreement with the Company
obligating it to register their shares with the SEC for sale In May 2008 Quad-C exercised that right as to all of
its shares and there is currently on file with the SEC an effective shelf registration statement permitting Quad-C
to engage in public sale of its shares sale of its shares of the Companys common stock by Quad-C or other

significant holders may have the effect of depressing the price per share of our common stock because of the

relatively low
trading volume in our shares
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The recognition of impairment charges on goodwill would adversely impact our financial position and

results of operations

We are required to perform impairment tests on our goodwill annually or at any time when events occur

which could affect the fair value of these assets Our determination of whether an impairment has occurred is

based on comparison of the assets fair value with its book value Several factors are considered when

calculating fair value some of which involve significant management estimates Significant and unanticipated

changes in circumstances such as adverse changes in business climate declining expectations of cash flows or

operating results adverse actions by regulators unanticipated competition or changes in technology or markets

could require an impairment in future period that could substantially affect our reported earnings and reduce

our consolidated net worth and shareholders equity

We have anti-takeover provisions any of which may discourage takeover attempts and could reduce the

market price of our common stock

Provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws and Delaware law could have the effect of

discouraging takeover attempts which certain shareholders might deem to be in their interest For example our

board of directors is divided into three classes and each class is elected for three-year term This provision

could make it more difficult for our shareholders to remove members of our board of directors and may also

make it more difficult for third party to acquire us even if the acquisition would be beneficial to shareholders

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

We do not have any unresolved staff comments

Item Properties

The following table provides information relating to our operating facilities as of February 18 2011

Approximate

Location Square Footage Lease Expiration Date Use

Warren Michigan 200000 May 31 2016 Principal executive offices and call

center with collections and legal

collections

Riverview Florida 52280 May 31 2016 Call center with collections and

legal collections

Brooklyn Heights Ohio 30443 October 31 2011 Legal collections

Tempe Arizona 24960 May 31 2015 Call center with collections and

legal collections

Chicago Illinois 20905 November 30 2012 Legal collections

San Antonio Texas 17445 November 30 2014 Call center with collections and

legal collections

Sparks Maryland 5100 August 31 2012 Legal collections and software

development and support

Richmond Virginia 1374 July 31 2011 Legal collections

Woodbury New Jersey 288 Month-to-Month Legal collections

Deerfield Beach Florida 240 Month-to-Month Legal collections

Prior to December 31 2010 we closed our call center collection operations in our Chicago Illinois and

Brooklyn Heights Ohio also referred to as Cleveland offices We currently maintain legal collection

operations in those offices while we look for alternative space
for those groups We intend to settle these two

leases prior to their normal termination dates and at the end of the year
had restructuring accrual of $1.1

million to cover those expected costs We believe that our existing facilities are sufficient to meet our current

needs and that suitable additional or alternative space will be available on commercially reasonable basis
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Item Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business we are involved in numerous legal proceedings We regularly initiate

collection lawsuits using both our in-house attorneys and our network of third party law firms against

consumers and are occasionally countersued by them in such actions Also consumers occasionally initiate

litigation against us in which they allege that we have violated federal or state law in the process of collecting

on their account It is not unusual for us to be named in class action lawsuit relating to these allegations with

these lawsuits routinely settling for immaterial amounts We do not believe that these ordinary course matters

individually or in the aggregate are material to our business or financial condition However there can be no

assurance that class action lawsuit would not if decided against us have material and adverse effect on our

financial condition

As previously reported the FTC commenced an investigation into our debt collection practices under the

Fair Credit Reporting Act the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and the Federal Trade Commission Act The

FTC staff forwarded draft pleadings and proposed consent decree to the Company for consideration The

Company and its counsel continue to have discussions with the FTC staff to resolve this matter We do not

believe that the resolution of this matter will have material adverse effect on our business

Item Reserved

There are no items to be disclosed under this section

Supplemental Item Executive Officers of the Company

The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers

Name Age Position

Rion Needs 48 President and Chief Executive Officer

Reid Simpson 54 Senior Vice President-Finance Chief Financial Officer Assistant

Secretary and Treasurer

Deborah Everly 38 Senior Vice President and Chief Acquisitions Officer

Mark Cavin 52 Vice President-Collections

Deanna Hatmaker 46 Vice President-Human Resources and Corporate

Communications

Edwin Herbert 60 Vice President-General Counsel and Secretary

Darin Herring 42 Vice President-Legal Collections and Business Transformation

Todd Langusch 39 Vice President and Chief Information Officer

Rion Needs President and Chief Executive OfficerMr Needs joined our Company in July 2007 as

Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer In January 2009 he was promoted to President and Chief

Executive Officer and the Board of Directors appointed Mr Needs to serve as Director Prior to joining us
Mr Needs held various positions at American Express since 1985 most recently as Senior Vice President and

General Manager of Purchasing Services Mr Needs prior positions at American Express also included Senior

Vice President of Global Finance Operations and Business Transformation and Senior Vice President and

General Manager of Corporate Travel

Reid Simpson Senior Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer Assistant Secretary and
TreasurerMr Simpson joined our Company in May 2010 as Senior Vice President-Finance Chief Financial

Officer Assistant Secretary and Treasurer From 2007 to 2010 Mr Simpson served as the Executive Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer of Aircell LLC leading provider of in-flight mobile broadband services

to the commercial and business aviation industries in the United States Prior to joining Aircell Mr Simpson

served as Chief Financial Officer of eCollege from 2004 to 2007 Mr Simpson is currently board member of

Datamark Inc provider of enrollment marketing services to the higher education market Mr Simpson has

over 25 years of experience in finance roles including other Chief Financial Officer positions
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Deborah Everly Senior Vice President and Chief Acquisitions OfficerMs Everly joined our

Company in May 1995 Ms Everly was named our Director of Marketing and Acquisitions and promoted to

Assistant Vice President in 1997 In 1998 she was promoted to Vice President-Marketing and Acquisitions and

in 2007 she was promoted to Senior Vice President and Chief Acquisitions Officer Ms Everly has been in the

accounts receivable management industry since 1991

Mark Cavin Vice PresidentCollectionsMr Cavin joined our Company as Vice President-

Collections in December 2009 Prior to joining us Mr Cavin was President of Collection Intelligence Inc

located in San Diego California during 2009 Mr Cavin also served as Senior Director and Chief Operating

Officer at Arrow Financial Services where he was responsible for the internal and external servicing operations

of the company from 2001 to 2009 Prior to joining Arrow Financial Services Mr Cavin was Senior Manager

with Union Bank of California from 1990 to 2001 Mr Cavin has over 31 years of experience in the collection

industry

Deanna Hatmaker Vice PresidentHuman Resources and Corporate Communications

Ms Hatmaker joined our Company in January 2006 as Vice President-Human Resources Ms Hatmaker

previously served as the Director and Human Resources Officer in the Michigan Administrative Information

Services MATS business unit at the University of Michigan Ann Arbor Michigan from 2003 to 2005 Prior

to joining MATS Ms Hatmaker also served as Vice President Human Resources and as member of senior

management with HR Block Financial Advisors Detroit Michigan Ms Hatmaker has been in the financial

services industry for over 20 years

Edwin Herbert Vice PresidentGeneral Counsel and SecretaryMr Herbert joined our Company in

September 2006 as Vice President and General Counsel and was appointed Secretary during 2009 Mr Herbert

previously served as an equity partner at Shumaker Loop Kendrick LLP in Toledo Ohio where he practiced

law as member of the firms financial institutions practice group from 2004 to 2006 Prior to joining Shumaker

Loop Kendrick LLP Mr Herbert practiced law with Werner Blank LLC from 1998 to 2004 and was

partner with that firm beginning in January 2000 Mr Herbert was Executive Vice President and General

Counsel of ValliCorp Holdings Inc Fresno California from 1994 to 1997 and Executive Vice President and

General Counsel of CFX Corporation Keene New Hampshire from 1997 to 1998 Mr Herbert is member of

the American Bar Association and member of the California Michigan and Ohio bars

Darin Herring Vice PresidentLegal Collections and Business TransformationMr Herring joined

our Company in April 2008 as Vice President-Legal Prior to joining us Mr Herring held various positions at

American Express since 1988 most recently as Vice President Global Commercial Card Services

Mr Herrings prior positions at American Express included Vice President and Regional LeaderGlobal

Reengineering/Six Sigma and DirectorGlobal Reengineering/Six Sigma His background in other business

units at American Express included consumer card operations finance operations and strategic enablement

services

Todd Langusch Vice President and Chief Information OfficerMr Langusch joined our Company

in November 2010 as Vice President and Chief Information Officer Mr Langusch previously served as Chief

Executive Officer of Tech Lock Inc from 2008 to 2010 Tech Lock provides technology consulting services to

clients in the debt collection industry and others Prior to Tech Lock Mr Langusch served as senior director of

information technology and information security at Sallie Mae from 2004 to 2008 Prior to joining Sallie Mae

Mr Langusch served as senior manager of information technology for MCI from 2001 to 2003 MCI is

leading provider of advanced communications services for large business government and international

organizations Mr Langusch is member of the Information Systems Audit and Control Association and an

ACA International Certified Instructor Mr Langusch has over 20
years

of experience in privacy information

security and information technology
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Our common stock is quoted on The NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol AACC Public

trading of our common stock commenced on February 2004 The following table sets forth the high and low

closing sales prices for our common stock as reported by The NASDAQ Global Select Market for the periods

indicated

2010 2009

High Low High Low

Fourth Quarter $6.35 $4.77 $7.51 $5.04

Third Quarter 5.44 3.55 8.62 6.87

Second Quarter 8.16 4.12 9.82 5.22

First Quarter 7.41 5.14 6.46 3.19

On February 2011 the last reported sale price of our common stock on The NASDAQ Global Select

Market was $6.20 per share As of that date there were 34 record holders of our common stock

We have not paid regular dividends on our common stock Our Board of Directors will determine whether

to pay any
dividends in the future This determination may depend on variety of factors that our Board of

Directors considers relevant including our financial condition results of operations contractual restrictions

capital requirements and business prospects In addition our credit agreement limits the aggregate amount of

dividends and other distributions that we may pay to shareholders to $25000000 plus 50% of Consolidated Net

Income as defined in the credit agreement for the period after June 30 2007 through the end of the current fiscal

quarter provided that we are able to borrow at least $15000000 under the credit agreement before and after the

payment

In addition the information contained in the Equity Compensation table under Item 12Security

Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters of this report is

incorporated herein by reference

We did not sell any equity securities during 2010 that were not registered under the Securities Act
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total return of our common stock from December 31 2005

through December 31 2010 against the NASDAQ Index ii the Momingstar Credit Services Index and

iii the stocks comprising peer group index selected by us We are transitioning to the Morningstar Credit

Services Index as we believe published industry index provides better comparison for our common stock than

using peer group index The peer group index will not be utilized in future periods In addition we previously

reported the results of an investment in the Russell 2000 Index We are no longer including this information

because we believe it is redundant when the NASDAQ Index is included The graph assumes that $100 was

invested in our common stock on December 31 2005 as well as in each of the indices described above and

dividends if any were reinvested The companies selected for the peer index are First City Financial Corp

Encore Capital Group Inc Portfolio Recovery Associates Inc and Asta Funding Inc

$140
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$20

Morningstar Credit Services

Peer Group Index
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2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Morningstar Peer

Credit Group

Total Return Date AACC NASDAQ Services Index

12/31/2005 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00

12/31/2006 74.89 110.25 115.94 96.36

12/31/2007 53.94 121.88 93.49 80.70

12/31/2008 26.48 73.10 70.68 46.69

12/31/2009 35.13 106.22 117.11 79.45

12/31/2010 30.73 125.36 116.07 118.93

Item Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated statements of financial position data as of December 31 2006 2007

2008 2009 and 2010 and related selected consolidated statements of operations data for each of the years then

ended have been derived from our consolidated financial statements which have been audited by Ernst Young

LLP 2006-2007 and Grant Thornton LLP 2008-2010 both independent registered public accounting firms

The data should be read in connection with the accompanying consolidated financial statements related notes

and other information included herein

On April 28 2006 the Company purchased 100% of the outstanding shares of PARC As result the

accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AACC and all subsidiaries including
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PARC since the date of acquisition On July 29 2010 the Company conmiitted to exit the healthcare accounts

receivable purchase and collection activities conducted by its PARC subsidiary Subsequently our PARC

subsidiary was dissolved on December 15 2010

In July 2010 LRS was created as new wholly-owned subsidiary of AACC On July 21 2010 LRS

completed an acquisition of substantially all of the assets of BSI As result the accompanying consolidated

financial statements also include the activities of LRS since the date of acquisition

For more detailed information about our corporate history see Item BusinessHistory
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Years Ended December 31

FINANCIAL POSITION DATA
Cash

Purchased receivables net

Total assets

Deferred tax liability net

Total debt including capital lease obligations

Total stockholders equity

OPERATING AND OTHER
FINANCIAL DATA
Cash collections

Operating expenses to cash collections

Acquisitions of purchased receivables at costl
Acquisitions of purchased receivables at face value

Acquisitions of purchased receivables cost as percentage of

face value

December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

in thousands

5636 4935 6043 10474 11307
321318 319772 361809 346199 300841
363774 366416 408171 395409 350583

52864 57525 64470 60165 60632
157260 160301 181550 191268 17080
123903 123097 136628 122419 256178

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

in thousands

328818 334031 369578 371178 340870
60.0% 56.5% 53.0% 55.9% 53.7%

136284 120927 153529 169342 1422322
$3790322 $4416484 $3760348 $5197524 $56223892

3.60% 2.74% 4.08% 3.26% 2.53%2

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

in thousands except per share and dividend data
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA
Revenues

Purchased receivable revenues net 195794 171275 232901 245692 251693
Gain on sale of purchased receivables 1212 399 165 840 2954
Other revenues net 1394 813 1146 1466 226

Total revenues 198400 172487 234212 247998 254873

Expenses

Salaries and benefits 72389 77666 83348 82917 82274
Collections expense 99298 89095 89459 99387 79367
Occupancy 6730 7588 7727 9138 8967
Administrative 9818 8694 10511 10529 8376
Depreciation and amortization 4666 4107 3955 4275 4179
Restructuring charges 4225 906

Impairment of assets 1168 616 267
Loss on disposal of equipment and other assets 214 355 222 137 23

Total operating expenses 197340 188673 195838 207556 183186

Income loss from operations 1060 16186 38374 40442 71687
Other income expense
Interest expense 11204 10169 13024 8146 646
Interest income 34 32 471 2035
Other 68 130 22 151 12
Loss income before income taxes 10068 26191 25404 32918 73064
Income tax benefit expense 8452 9757 9681 12512 27546

Net loss income 1616 16434 15723 20406 45518

Net loss income per share basic 0.05 0.54 0.51 0.63 1.24

Net loss income per share diluted 0.05 0.54 0.51 0.63 1.24

Weighted-average shares basic 30693 30634 30566 32517 36589
Weighted-average shares diluted 30693 30634 30592 32604 36621
Dividends per common share

2.45

Amount of purchased receivables at cost refers to the cash paid to seller to acquire portfolio less buybacks and the

purchase price for accounts that were sold at the time of purchase to another debt purchaser

Includes portfolios from the acquisition of PARC on April 28 2006 with face value of $1.1 billion that were allocated

purchase price value of $8.3 million
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with our consolidated financial

statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report This discussion contains forward-

looking statements that involve risks uncertainties and assumptions such as statements of our plans objectives

expectations and intentions Our actual results may differ materially from those discussed here Factors that could

cause or contribute to the differences include those discussed in Item 1A Risk Factors as well as those discussed

elsewhere in this Annual Report The references in this Annual Report to the US Federal Reserve Board are to the

Federal Reserve Statistical Release dated February 2011 and the Federal Reserve Consumer Credit Historical

Data webs ite www.federalreserve.gov/releases/g19/hist/ or the Federal Reserve Charge-Off and Delinquency

Rates on Loans and Leases at Commercial Banks website www.federalreserve.govlreleases/chargeoff/

Company Overview

We have been purchasing and collecting charged-off accounts receivable portfolios paper from

consumer credit originators since the formation of our predecessor company in 1962 Charged-off receivables are

the unpaid obligations of individuals to credit originators such as credit card issuers including private label card

issuers consumer finance companies telecommunications and utility providers Since these receivables are

delinquent or past due we purchase them at substantial discount Over the last ten years we purchased 1182

consumer debt portfolios with an original charged-off face value of $43.3 billion for an aggregate purchase price

of $1.1 billion or 2.57% of face value net of buybacks We purchase and collect charged-off consumer

receivable portfolios for our own account as we believe this affords us the best opportunity to use long-term

strategies to maximize collections

Macro-economic factors have impacted our results of operations both positively and negatively over the

course of 2009 and 2010 Factors such as reduced availability of credit for consumers depressed housing

market elevated unemployment rates and other factors have had negative impact on us by making it more

difficult to collect from consumers on the paper we have acquired Conversely as result of these negative

macro-economic factors the supply of available paper increased while prices we paid remained at lower levels

than in recent years We have observed indicators that some of these trends may be starting to reverse For

example we are observing increased competition for available paper and depending on credit originator the

supply may be decreasing which results in higher pricing Certain macro-economic factors such as the

unemployment rate also have shown improvement in recent months

Our levels of purchasing increased in 2010 when compared to 2009 We amended our credit agreement in

the second quarter of 2010 which significantly increased our ability to borrow on our revolving credit facility

That increased capacity allowed us to increase purchases of paper during the year In 2010 we purchased

higher percentage of fresh and primary paper than in recent years The cost of paper in the fresh and primary

stages of delinquency is typically higher as percentage of face value however collections tend to be received

sooner and at lower cost In addition since this paper has been charged-off more recently it has longer life

for collection activities

Collections during the second half of 2010 increased hen compared to the same period of 2009 which is

the first time we experienced year-over-year growth since the third quarter of 2008 However full year

collections declined when compared to 2009 as result of the difficult collections environment and macro

economic factors discussed above particularly early in 2010 First half collections were also negatively impacted

by reduced purchasing in 2009 when compared to 2008 because collections on portfolios are usually the

strongest six to 18 months after purchase

Purchased receivable revenues for 2010 were higher than 2009 even though collections were lower This

increase in revenue is primarily related to amortization driven by lower impairments In 2009 we recorded

significant impairments to the carrying values of purchased receivables because we determined that the IRRs
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assigned to certain portfolios were too high in relation to the timing or amount of estimated remaining

collections During 2010 we exceeded our revised collection forecasts for certain portfolios allowing us to

recognize yield increases and reverse certain previously recorded impairments If collections continue to exceed

our expectations we may further increase IRRs or reverse previous impairments However if collections do not

continue to meet expectations we may be required to record additional impairments The increase in revenue on

amortizing portfolios during the year was partially offset by decrease in zero basis collections collections on

fully amortized portfolios which are accounted for as revenue in the period collected These fully amortized

portfolios are generally at least five years old and become more difficult to collect as they continue to age

In addition to the items discussed above our results of operations are influenced by certain industry and

economic trends including

Levels of outstanding consumer creditAccording to the U.S Federal Reserve Board the amount of

outstanding revolving and non-revolving consumer credit was $2.4 trillion in December 2010 which is

consistent with the level of outstanding consumer credit in recent years The level of consumer debt

obligations indicates future charge-offs and availability of paper Tightening credit standards or other

factors in the future may result in lower consumer credit outstanding

Charge-off ratesAccording to the U.S Federal Reserve Board the charge-off rate the rate at which

accounts are charged-off measured as percentage of total outstanding consumer credit increased for

the first two quarters and decreased for the second two quarters of 2010 The
average charge-off rate

for 2010 is higher than the average charge-off rate for 2009 Combined with the stable level of

consumer credit outstanding this indicates that favorable supply environment for debt purchasers is

likely to continue

Supply and pricing environment for purchased receivablesThe supply and pricing of purchased

receivables available in the market is influenced by the levels of outstanding consumer credit and

charge-off rates among other factors In general prices increased in 2010 for paper in all stages of

delinquency with the most significant change in the fresh and primary segments

Impact of macro-economic factorsMacro-economic factors affect consumers ability to satisfy

outstanding debt The residential real estate market in the United States began to experience

significant downturn in the second half of 2007 and real estate values generally remained depressed

during 2010 The unemployment rate and the number of individual bankruptcy filings remained

elevated during 2010 leaving individual consumers with fewer resources available to satisfy their debts

and continued challenging collection environment

We continue to review our business and operations and look for opportunities to become more efficient and

in 2010 completed the following actions

AcquisitionIn July we completed the purchase of substantially all of the assets of BSI software

vendor including the collection software it developed which we had been implementing to replace our

legacy collection platform We made the acquisition to protect our investment in the software acquired

and to enhance our ability to successfully complete implementation In addition we believe this

acquisition allows us to further enhance our collection platform in an efficient and cost effective

manner

Termination of third party agency relationshipWe incurred charge of $5.3 million resulting from

the termination for performance of relationship with third party service provider The charge relates

to cash settlement payment to reimburse the third party for court costs incurred on our behalf that the

third party would otherwise have recovered through commission in future periods

Exited the purchase and collection of healthcare receivablesDuring the year we exited the

healthcare accounts receivable purchase and collection activities conducted by our PARC subsidiary
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and sold substantially all of our healthcare receivables to third party We recognized gain of $0.9

million on the sale of these receivables Because of the sale we Will forego future collections on these

accounts The historical impact of these collections was as follows

Year Ended December 31

in thousands 2010 2009

Collections from non-healthcare receivables $325361.2 $327776.6
Collections from healthcare receivables 3457.3 6254.0

Total collections $328818.5 $334030.6

Closing of the Deerfield Beach office and dissolution of PARCIn connection with ceasing the purchase

and collection of healthcare receivables we closed our Deerfield Beach office and dissolved our PARC

subsidiary Closing the Deerfield Beach office resulted in restructuring charges of $1.3 million which

included an impairment of $0.8 million related to trademark and trade names During 2009 we

recognized related impairment charge of $1.2 million to trademark and trade names We expect this

restructuring action to reduce future operating expenses by approximately $2.5 million per year In

conjunction with dissolving the PARC subsidiary we recognized one-time tax benefit of $5.2 million

Closed officesTn addition to closing our Deerfield Beach office we closed our Chicago and Cleveland call

center collection operations and shifted their inventory of receivables to other collection channels In

conjunction with closing these operations we incurred restructuring charges of $3.0 million We expect

these restructuring actions to reduce future operating expenses by approximately $5.0 million per year

In addition during 2010 as part of our continuous review of our cost structure we implemented number

of additional initiatives focusing primarily on third party vendor spending that are expected to favorably impact

2011 expenses

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected statement of operations data expressed as percentage of total

revenues and as percentage of cash collections for the periods indicated

Percent of Total Revenues Percent of Cash Collections

Years Ended December 31 Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Revenues

Purchased receivable revenues 98.7% 99.3% 99.4% 59.5% 1.3% 63.0%

Gain on sale of purchased receivables 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.4 0.1 0.1

Other revenues o3 as as 0.2

Total revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0 60.3 51.6 63.4

Expenses
Salaries and benefits 36.5 45.0 35.6 22.0 23.3 22.5

Collections expense 50.0 51.7 38.2 30.2 26.7 24.2

Occupancy 3.4 4.4 3.3 2.0 2.3 2.1

Administrative 5.0 5.0 4.5 3.0 2.6 2.8

Depreciation and amortization 2.4 2.4 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.1

Restructuring charges 2.1 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.0

Impairment of assets 0.0 0.7 0.3 0.0 0.3 0.2

Loss on disposal of equipment and other assets 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Total operating expense 99.5 109.4 83.7 60.0 56.5 53.0

Income loss from operations 0.5 9.4 16.3 0.3 4.9 10.4

Other income expense
Interest expense 5.6 5.9 5.6 3.4 3.0 3.5
Interest income 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other

Loss income before income taxes 5.1 15.2 10.8 3.1 7.9 6.9

Income tax benefit expense 4.3 5.7 4.1 2.6 3.0 26

Net loss income 0.8% 9.5% 63% 0.5% 4.9% 4.3%
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Year Ended December 31 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2009

Revenue

We generate substantially all of our revenue from our main line of business the purchase and collection of

charged-off consumer receivables We refer to revenue generated from this line of business as purchased

receivable revenues Purchased receivable revenues is the difference between cash collections and amortization

of purchased receivables

The following table summarizes our purchased receivable revenues including cash collections and

amortization

Percentage of Cash Collections

Years Ended December 31 Years Ended December 31

Percentage
in millions 2010 2009 Change Change 2010 2009

Cash collections $328.8 334.0 $5.2 l.6% 100.0% 100.0%

Purchased receivable amortization 133.0 162.7 29.7 18.3 40.5 48.7

Purchased receivable revenues 195.8 171.3 $24.5 14.3% 59.5% 51.3%

The amortization rate of 40.5% for the year ended December 31 2010 was 820 basis points lower than the

amortization rate of 48.7% for the same period of 2009 The improvement in the amortization rate was primarily

because of net impairments of $49.5 million recorded in 2009 The impairments were result of significant

declines in expectations for future collections on certain portfolios particularly in the 2004 to 2007 vintage years

By contrast results for 2010 included net impairment reversals of $2.3 million Even though amortization as

percent of collections was more favorable in 2010 compared to the prior year revenues absent the effect of

impairments were lower as result of decrease in collections on fully amortized portfolios lower average

carrying value of purchased receivables as result of the impairments recognized in the fourth quarter of 2009
and lower

average IRRs on recent purchases Refer to Supplemental Performance Data on Page 42 for

summary of purchased receivable revenues and amortization rates by year of purchase and an analysis of the

components of collections and amortization

We believe that macro-economic factors affecting consumers liquidity and their ability to repay their

obligations and the low levels of purchasing in 2009 contributed to lower cash collections in 2010 compared to

2009 Macro-economic factors reducing consumers ability to pay included the average unemployment rate over

the twelve-month period which increased from 9.3% in December 2009 to 9.6% in December 2010 depressed

housing market and continued tight credit environment for consumers among other factors In addition during

2009 we invested 21.2% less in purchased receivables than we did in 2008 Generally collections are strongest

on portfolios six months to 18 months after purchase therefore that reduction in purchasing had negative

impact on collections in 2010 primarily during the first half of the year Cash collections include collections

from fully amortized portfolios of $49.4 million and $63.2 million for 2010 and 2009 respectively of which

100% were reported as revenue These fully amortized portfolios are generally at least five years old and

become more difficult to collect as they continue to age

Revenues on portfolios purchased from our top three sellers were $78.0 million and $55.2 million during
2010 and 2009 respectively The top three sellers were the same in both twelve-month periods
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Investments in Purchased Receivables

We generate revenue from our investments in portfolios of charged-off consumer accounts receivable

Ongoing investments in purchased receivables are critical to continued generation of revenues From period to

period we may buy charged-off receivables of varying age types and demographics As result the cost of our

purchases as percent of face value may fluctuate from one period to the next Total purchases consisted of the

following

Years Ended December 31

in millions net of buybacks
2010 2009 Change Percent

Acquisitions of purchased receivables at cost 136.3 120.9 15.4 12.7%

Acquisitions of purchased receivables at face value $3790.3 $4416.5 $626.2 14.2%

Percentage of face value 3.60% 2.74%

Our investment in purchased receivables increased in 2010 compared to the prior year which was consistent

with our strategy to increase purchasing levels over those in 2009 We purchased 41.8% of paper in the fresh and

primary stages of delinquency in 2010 compared to 15.5% during 2009 Fresh and primary paper generally have

higher purchase price than paper
in the other stages of delinquency As result of fluctuations in the mix of

purchases of receivables the costs of our purchases as percent
of face value fluctuate from one period to the

next and are not always indicative of our estimates of total return

Investments under Forward Flow Contracts

Forward flow contracts commit debt seller to sell steady flow of charged-off receivables to us and

commit us to purchase receivables for fixed percentage of the face value Forward flow contracts may be

attractive to us because they provide operational advantages from the consistent amount and type of accounts

acquired Forward flow purchases consisted of the following

Years Ended December 31

in millions net of buybacks
2010 2009 Change Percent

Forward flow purchases at cost 62.8 59.5 3.3 5.5%

Forward flow purchases at face value $1329.2 $1828.4 $499.2 27.3%

Percentage of face value 4.72% 3.25%

Percentage of forward flow purchases at cost of total purchasing 46.0% 49.2%

Percentage of forward flow purchases at face value of total purchasing 35.1% 41.4%

Investments in forward flow contracts were higher in 2010 than in the same period in 2009 but represented

smaller percentage of total purchases because of an increase in other types of purchasing Through 2009

investments in forward flows made up majority of our purchasing which was consistent with our intent to

lower total purchasing levels but maintain our fixed agreements with certain sellers The increase in the average

cost of these purchases in 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily result of increased purchases of more recently

charged-off receivables Fresh and primary paper represented 79.5% of our forward flow purchases in 2010

compared to 16.6% in 2009 Purchases from forward flows in 2010 included 87 portfolios from 17 forward flow

contracts Purchases from forward flows in 2009 included 80 portfolios from 12 forward flow contracts

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are traditionally measured in relation to revenues However we measure operating

expenses in relation to cash collections as we believe this is appropriate because amortization rates the

difference between cash collections and revenues recognized vary from year to year Amortization rates vary
due

to seasonality of collections impairments and other factors and can distort the analysis of operating expenses

when measured against revenues Additionally we believe that the majority of our operating expenses are

variable in relation to cash collections
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The following table summarizes the significant components of our operating expenses

in millions

Compensationrevenue generating

Compensationadministrative

Benefits and other

Total salaries and benefits

Percentage of Cash Collections

Years Ended December 31

Compensation for our revenue generating departments was lower in 2010 due to lower average headcount

for in-house account representatives partially offset by increased incentive compensation Benefits were

favorable to the prior year due to the suspension of the Company matching component of our 401k plan and

favorable healthcare benefits expenses in part result of increased associate contributions for these benefits

Collections Expense The following table summarizes the significant components of collections expense

Forwarding fees include fees paid to third parties to collect on our behalf including our agency firm in India

These fees increased in 2010 compared to 2009 because of higher cash collections generated by third parties

primarily driven by continued increases in non-legal work allocated to our agency firm in India Collections from

such third party relationships were $117.9 million and $109.9 million or 35.9% and 32.9% of cash collections

for 2010 and 2009 respectively Rates paid to forwarding agencies vary based on the age and type of paper that

we outsource Rates also
vary

based on the mi of work performed by our agency firm in India which is

generally at lower rate than on collections we outsource domestically

Years Ended December 31

Percentage

Change Change

Percentage of Cash Collections

Years Ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2010 2009

Salaries and benefits 72.4 77.7 5.3 6.8% 22.0% 23.3%

Collections expense
99.3 89.1 10.2 11.5 30.2 26.7

Occupancy 6.7 7.6 0.9 11.3 2.0 2.3

Administrative 9.8 8.7 1.1 12.9 3.0 2.6

Restructuring and impairment of assets 4.2 1.2 3.0 261.8 1.3 0.3

Other 4.9 4.4 0.5 9.4 1.5 1.3

Total operating expenses $197.3 $188.7 $8.6 4.6% 60.0% 56.5%

Salaries and Benefits The following table summarizes the significant components of our salaries and

benefits expense

Years Ended December 31

Percentage

2010 2009 Change Change 2010 2009

$44.5 $47.3 $2.8 5.8% 13.5% 14.2%

15.4 15.4 0.1 4.7 4.6

12.5 15.0 2.5 16.8 3.8 4.5

$72.4 $77.7 $5.3 6.8% 22.0% 23.3%

Years Ended December 31
Percentage of Cash Collections

Years Ended December 31

Percentage

in millions 2010 2009 Change Change 2010 2009

Forwarding fees $40.8 $37.5 3.3 8.8% 12.4% 11.2%

Court and
process server costs 31.7 22.8 8.9 39.0 9.6 6.8

Lettering campaign and telecommunications

costs 15.5 17.6 2.1 11.9 4.7 5.3

Data provider costs 6.1 5.8 0.3 5.2 1.9 1.7

Other 5A 3.7 L6 1.7

Total collections
expense $99.3 $89.1 $10.2 11.5% 30.2% 26.7%
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Court costs increased year over year as we increased legal activity and also because of increases in court filing

fees in certain jurisdictions Our legal collection model requires an up-front investment in court costs and other fees

before any collections are generated and there may be considerable delay before we generate collections on the

accounts in the legal process This delay can cause change in court costs that is disproportionate to the change in

legal collections In addition we incurred charge of $5.3 million resulting from the termination for performance of

relationship with third party service provider The charge relates to cash settlement payment to reimburse the third

party for court costs incurred on our behalf that the third party would otherwise have recovered through commissions

in future periods We expect to recover these costs through lower commissions on future collections

During 2010 we became more selective in our variable collection activities such as telecommunications

lettering campaigns and use of data provider services resulting in reductions in the related expenses Generally

these costs are higher in the first six months after purchase of portfolio as we ramp up collection activities

Occupancy Occupancy expenses declined to $6.7 million in 2010 from $7.6 million in 2009 primarily as

result of closing our Deerfield Beach and Chicago collection offices during the year In addition during 2009 we

entered into two new lease agreements to replace our facilities in San Antonio and Phoenix now located nearby

in Tempe The new lease agreements in San Antonio and Tempe are for less space than the prior agreements

which resulted in reduced occupancy expense during 2010 We continue to review our capacity to ensure we are

utilizing all of our space effectively

Administrative Administrative expenses increased to $9.8 million in 2010 from $8.7 million for 2009 The

increase is primarily related to defense charges for the FTC investigation including an accrual for estimated

settlement of $1.3 million partially offset by reduction in outside consulting fees

Restructuring and Impairment of Assets Restructuring charges were $4.2 million for 2010 and included

charges related to exiting our healthcare receivable purchase and collection activities and closing three collection

offices The charges included employee termination benefits of $1.7 million contract termination costs of $1.2

million for remaining lease payments write-off of intangible assets of $0.8 million and other exit costs including

the write-off of furniture and equipment of $0.5 million

We recognized an impairment charge of $1.2 million in the third quarter of 2009 related to trademark and

trade names associated with our healthcare collection activities After the additional write-off of $0.8 million in

2010 there was no longer carrying value of trademark and trade names in our consolidated statements of

financial position

Interest Expense Interest expense was $11.2 million for 2010 an increase of $1.0 million compared to

interest expense of $10.2 million for 2009 During the second quarter of 2010 and the fourth quarter of 2009 we

amended our credit agreement which resulted in additional deferred financing costs that will be amortized over

the remaining term of the credit agreement The increase in interest expense was due primarily to higher

amortization of these deferred financing costs of $0.6 million In addition the increase in interest expense was

due to an increase in average borrowings which were $160.8 million during 2010 compared to $153.0 million in

2009 The amendments to our credit agreement included an increase in average interest rates and changes to the

financial covenants As result interest expense will be higher in future periods than it would have been under

the terms of the agreement prior to amendment Refer to Liquidity and Capital Resources for additional

information

Income Taxes We recognized income tax benefits of $8.5 million and $9.8 million for 2010 and 2009

respectively The current year tax benefit reflects federal tax rate of 81.0% and state tax rate of 2.9% net of

federal tax effect For 2009 the federal tax rate was 34.2% and state tax rate was 3.1% net of federal tax effect

The rate differed from the expected federal statutory rate of 35% primarily due to our decision to dissolve

PARC which resulted in benefitof $5.2 million related to worthless stock deduction to be claimed for our

disposition of PARC ii benefit of $2.2 million related to the write-off of intercompany advances to PARC
iii an expense of $0.3 million related to the write-off of intangible assets associated with PARC and iv an

expense of $1.8 million related to the write-off of PARCs prior net operating losses that will no longer be

recognizable in future periods
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Year Ended December 31 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2008

Revenue

We generate substantially all of our revenue from our main line of business the purchase and collection of

charged-off consumer receivables We refer to revenue generated from this line of business as purchased

receivable revenues Purchased receivable revenues is the difference between cash collections and amortization

of purchased receivables

The following table summarizes our purchased receivable revenues including cash collections and

amortization

Percentage of Cash Collections

Years Ended December 31 Years Ended December 31

Percentage
in millions 2009 2008 Change Change 2009 2008

Cash collections 334.0 369.6 $35.6 9.6% 100.0% 100.0%

Purchased receivable amortization 162.7 136.7 26.0 19.1 48.7 37.0

Purchased receivable revenues 171.3 232.9 $61.6 26.5 51.3% 63.0%

The decrease in purchased receivable revenues was primarily the result of lower cash collections and higher

amortization including net impairments in 2009 compared to 2008

We believe that the lower cash collections were primarily result of macro-economic factors affecting

consumers liquidity and their ability to repay their obligations Macro-economic factors reducing consumers

ability to pay include the unemployment rate which increased from 7.4% at December 2008 to 10.0% at

December 2009 falling residential real estate values and tighter credit environment for consumers among
other factors In addition we reduced purchasing in the first half of 2009 in anticipation of increased supply and

therefore lower prices in the second half of the year We purchased over 65% of our receivables during 2009 in

the second half of the year including 35% of our total purchases in the fourth quarter alone By following this

strategy we generated lower cash collections on 2009 investments in purchased receivables than if we had

invested more in paper earlier in the year Cash collections for the
years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

include collections from fully amortized portfolios of $63.2 million and $78.6 million respectively of which

100% were reported as revenue In addition our portfolios become more difficult to collect as they age and we

expect that performance on our older vintages particularly 2006 and earlier will not recover from the current

economic downturn We expect the macro-economic environment to continue to negatively affect collections

during 2010

The increase in amortization of purchased receivables in 2009 compared to 2008 was primarily the result of

$36.5 million increase in net impairments partially offset by lower amortization of purchased receivables

balances caused by lower collections We experienced shortfalls in our actual cash collections versus our

expectations most notably on purchases made before 2007 We believe collections on these older vintages have

been impacted to greater extent by the challenging collectioiis environment and because the accounts are older

and the collection methods that we use often become less effective as accounts age We continually review

number of factors related to our forecast of cash collections In the fourth quarter of 2009 in connection with the

preparation of our financial statements for the quarter and year ended December 31 2009 we observed

significant difference between our estimated and actual cash collections which caused us to perform more

in-depth review of our portfolios and their expected future performance Based on our review we expect these

older vintages to continue to underperform our previous collections forecasts This reduction in future

expectations of cash collections on the 2004-2007 vintages resulted in an impairment of $32.4 million during the

fourth quarter of 2009 Total net impairments recognized in 2009 were $49.5 million compared to $13.0 million

for 2008
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We believe that the discount we applied to the estimated remaining collections on the 2004-2007 vintages

should reduce the magnitude of impairments resulting from the economic downturn recognized on those vintages

in the future The 2008 and newer paper
is not experiencing the same magnitude decline in collections as

compared to expectations generally because the initial expectations for these purchases were set at lower levels

commensurate with the economic downturn in existence at the time of those purchases We expect to continue to

set more conservative initial expectations on purchases in the near future as we recover from the economic

downturn

Purchased receivable revenues fluctuate based on changes in the balance of purchased receivables the IRR

applied to each portfolio and the amount of net impairments recognized Impairments are generated when current

yields assigned to portfolios are too high in relation to the timing and/or amount of current or future collections

When cash collections decline larger portion of collections is allocated to revenue and less is allocated to

amortization of portfolio balances Portfolio balances that amortize too slowly in relation to current or expected

collections lead to impairments which increase the amount of amortization and offset revenue

The amortization rate of 48.7% for 2009 increased 11.7 percentage points from the amortization rate of

37.0% for 2008 We are experiencing lower collection rates relative to purchase price than we have historically

for all vintage years The economic downturn has lowered the amounts that we collect on our investments in

purchased receivables and combined with higher prices on the older vintages due to increased competition

during the 2005-2007 timeframe is causing an increase in total amortization as percentage of cash collection

Refer to Supplemental Performance Data on Page 42 for summary of purchased receivable revenues and

amortization rates by year of purchase

Revenues on portfolios purchased from our top three sellers during vintage years 1997 through 2009 were

$55.2 million and $62.6 million for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively with one of the

three sellers included in the top three in both twelve month periods

Investments in Purchased Receivables

We generate revenue from our investments in portfolios of charged-off consumer accounts receivable

Ongoing investments in purchased receivables are critical to continued generation of revenues From period to

period we may buy charged-off receivables of varying age types and demographics As result the cost of our

purchases as percent of face value may fluctuate from one period to the next Total purchases consisted of the

following

Years Ended December 31

in millions 2009 2008 Change Percent

Acquisitions of purchased receivables at cost 120.9 153.5 $32.6 21.2%

Acquisitions of purchased receivables at face value $4416.5 $3760.3 $656.2 17.4%

Percentage of face value 2.74% 4.08%

Our investment in purchased receivables declined in 2009 versus 2008 because of our strategy to defer

purchasing into the latter part of the year with the expectatiªn that pricing would continue to improve and that

our investments would generate better returns if we purchased at lower price points by waiting Additionally we

were cautious in our investments because borrowing under our credit facility to fund investments in purchased

receivables was potentially limited by our then existing financial covenants that had scheduled step downs during

2009 We considered amending the credit facility to create additional capacity to purchase in late 2008 and the

first half of 2009 but the credit markets were under substantial disruption which made it difficult to justify

amending the credit facility given the anticipated additional cost both up front and ongoing During the fourth

quarter of 2009 the credit markets were more stable allowing us to amend the credit facility under more

favorable terms than if we had amended it before then The amendment increased the interest rates we pay and

adjusted the financial covenants
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Investments under Forward Flow Contracts

Forward flow contracts commit debt seller to sell steady flow of charged-off receivables to us and

commit us to purchase receivables for fixed percentage of the face value Forward flow contracts may be

attractive to us because they provide operational advantages from the consistent amount and type of accounts

acquired Forward flow purchases consisted of the following

Years Ended December 31

in millions 2009 2008 Change Percent

Forward flow purchases at cost 59.5 89.9 30.4 33.8%
Forward flow purchases at face value $1828.4 $1651.9 $176.5 10.7%

Percentage of face value 3.25% 5.44%

Percentage of forward flow purchases at cost of total purchasing... 49.2% 58.6%

Percentage of forward flow purchases at face value of total

purchasing 41.4% 43.4%

Investments in forward flow contracts declined in 2009 from 2008 in substantially the same proportion as

our total purchases declined for the same period Because we expected pricing to decline during 2009 we were

selective in entering into forward flow commitments during the early part of the year so that we were not locked

into above market pricing later in the year Additionally since some forward flow contracts are of twelve

month duration and we did not commit early in the year we lost the opportunity to invest in these contracts

during the latter part of 2009 Purchases from forward flows in 2009 included 80 portfolios from 12 forward flow

contracts Purchases from forward flows in 2008 included 124 portfolios from 14 forward flow contracts

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are traditionally measured in relation to revenues However we measure operating

expenses in relation to cash collections We believe this is appropriate because amortization rates the difference

between cash collections and revenues recognized vary from year to year Amortization rates vary due to

seasonality of collections impairments and other factors and can distort the analysis of operating expenses when

measured against revenues Additionally we believe that the majority of our operating expenses are variable in

relation to cash collections

The following table summarizes the significant components of our operating expenses

Percentage of Cash Collections

Years Ended December 31 Years Ended December 31

Percentage

in millions 2009 2008 Change Change 2009 2008

Salaries and benefits 77.7 83.3 $5.6 6.8% 23.3% 22.5%

Collections expense 89.1 89.5 0.4 0.4 26.7 24.2

Occupancy 7.6 7.7 0.1 1.8 2.3 2.1

Administrative 8.7 10.5 1.8 17.3 2.6 2.8

Other 5.6 4.8 0.8 17.5 1.6 1.4

Total operating expenses $188.7 $195.8 $7.1 3.7% 56.5% 53.0%

The majority of the decrease in operating expenses is result of reductions in salaries and benefits

collections expense and administrative expenses As we experienced year over year declines in cash collections

we reduced operating expenses to reflect the lower levels of cash collections While the dollar amount of

operating expenses declined some categories of operating expenses increased as percentage of cash collections

because the decline in cash collections was greater than the decline in operating expenses We did not reduce

operating expenses proportionately to the decline in cash collections in anticipation of increased purchasing in

the second half of 2009 and into 2010
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Salaries and Benefits Salaries and benefits expense decreased because of lower variable incentive

compensation and benefits driven by lower cash collections The following table summarizes the significant

components of our salaries and benefits expense

Percentage of Cash Collections

Years Ended December 31 Years Ended December 31

Percentage

in millions 2009 2008 Change Change 2009 2008

Compensationrevenue generating $47.3 $51.0 $3.7 7.3% 14.2% 13.8%

Compensationadministrative 15.4 16.0 0.6 4.2 4.6 4.3

Benefits and other 15.0 16.3 1.3 7.9 4.5 4.4

Total salaries and benefits $77.7 $83.3 $5.6 6.8% 23.3% 22.5%

The decrease in collections resulted in lower variable compensation expense for in-house account

representatives In addition we reduced incentive compensation for management because of declining

performance metrics and have suspended the Company matching component of our 401k plan In June of 2009

we began an initiative to increase the number of in-house account representatives By the end of the year we

increased those associates by approximately 20% from mid-second quarter levels Variable compensation will

have an impact on salaries and benefits expense in 2010 depending on the level of cash collections and

achievement of incentive goals

Collections Expense Overall collections expense was relatively flat year over year The following table

summarizes the significant components of collections expense and the changes in each

Percentage of Cash Collections

Years Ended December 31 Years Ended December 31

Percentage

in millions 2009 2008 Change Change 2009 2008

Forwarding fees $37.5 $34.9 2.6 7.4% 11.2% 9.5%

Court and process server costs 22.8 23.7 0.9 3.8 6.8 6.4

Lettering campaign and telecommunications

costs 17.6 18.0 0.4 2.5 5.3 4.9

Data provider costs 5.8 6.8 1.0 15.4 1.7 1.8

Other 5.4 6J ft7 8.9 L7 L6

Total collections expense $89.1 $89.5 $0.4 0.4% 26.7% 24.2%

Forwarding fees include fees paid to third parties to collect on our behalf These fees increased in 2009

compared to 2008 because of higher rates paid partially offset by reduced cash collections generated by third

parties The percent of gross cash collections from such third party relationships were 32.9% and 30.9% for 2009

and 2008 respectively Rates paid to forwarding agencies vary
based on the age and type of paper that we

outsource Late in 2009 we began incurring costs related to our agency relationship with firm in India which

we have engaged to collect on our behalf using our technology and collections model under per seat fee

arrangement We expect fees paid under this relationship to increase in 2010 as the number of seats increases

Court costs and process server costs decreased year over year as we reduced the activity in these categories In

2008 we entered into third party relationship that has allowed us to better match legal costs with the associated

collections During 2008 and 2009 this relationship has resulted in lower court costs offset by higher forwarding

fees based on cash collections In the future we expect to place fewer accounts with this third party During

2009 we became more selective in our variable collection activities such as telecommunications lettering

campaigns and use of data provider services resulting in reductions in the related expenses

Occupancy While occupancy expense remained consistent in 2009 compared to 2008 we continue to

review our capacity to ensure we are utilizing all of our space effectively In late 2008 we entered into sublease

agreement which will expire in early 2010 for portion of our now abandoned Phoenix facility In addition
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during 2009 we entered into two new lease agreements to replace our facilities in San Antonio and Phoenix now
located nearby in Tempe The new lease agreements in San Antonio and Tempe are for less space than the prior

agreements which we expect to reduce occupancy expense
in future periods

Administrative Administrative expenses decreased during 2009 in almost all areas reflecting on our focus

on cost control We intend to continue to be diligent in controlling these costs even as collections retum to

pre-2009 levels

Impairment of Assets Impairment of our trademark and trade names intangible asset was $1.2 million for

the year ended December 31 2009 We performed an assessment of the fair value of the asset using discounted

cash flow methodology and determined that it was below the carrying value primarily as result of decline in

business activity related to the asset During 2008 we decided to no longer service healthcare receivables on

contingent fee basis As result we recognized charge of $0.4 million to impair the net carrying balance of

intangible assets for customer contracts and relationships associated with the contingent healthcare collection

business We also recognized an impairment charge of $0.2 million in the fourth quarter of 2008 to write-off an

investment in new software product after decision to discontinue its implementation

Interest Expense Interest
expense was $10.2 million for the year ended December 31 2009 decrease of

$2.8 million compared to interest
expense

of $13.0 million for 2008 Interest expense was 3.0% of cash

collections during 2009 compared with 3.5% for 2008 The decrease in interest expense was due to lower interest

rates and decreased
average borrowings during 2009 compared to the same period in 2008 Average borrowings

were $153.0 million for the
year

ended December 31 2009 compared to $177.7 million for 2008 During the

fourth quarter of 2009 we entered into an amendment to our credit agreement which included an increase in

average
interest rates and changes to the financial covenants As result interest expense will be higher in future

periods than it would have been under the terms of the agreement prior to amendment The increase in interest

rates will have the effect of increasing interest expense by approximately $1.6 million in 2010 if our average

borrowing levels remain consistent Refer to Liquidity and Capital Resources for additional information

Income Taxes We recognized an income tax benefit of $9.8 million for the year ended December 31 2009

compared to income tax expense
of $9.7 million for the same period in 2008 The current year tax benefit reflects

federal tax rate of 34.2% and state tax rate of 3.1% net of federal tax effect For the year ended

December 31 2008 the federal tax rate was 35.0% and state tax ratewas 3.1% net of federal tax effect The 0.8

percentage point decrease in the federal tax rate was the effect of permanent book verses tax differences and the

net effect of state taxes The overall decrease in tax expense was primarily result of the pre-tax loss of $26.2

million for the
year

ended December 31 2009 compared to pre-tax income of $25.4 million for the same period

of 2008
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Supplemental Performance Data

The following tables and analysis show select data related to our purchased portfolios including purchase

price account volume and mix historical collections cumulative and estimated remaining collections

productivity and certain other data that we believe is important to understanding our business Total estimated

collections as percentage of purchase price provides view of how acquired portfolios generally disclosed by

vintage year have performed as compared to initial purchase price This
percentage reflects how well we expect

our paper to perform regardless of the underlying mix Also included is summary of our purchased receivable

revenues by year of purchase which provides additional vintage detail of collections net impairments or

reversals and zero basis collections

The primary factor in determining pUrchased receivable revenue is the IRR assigned to the carrying value of

portfolios When carrying balances go down or assigned IRRs are lower than historical levels revenue will

generally be lower When carrying balances increase or assigned IRRs go up revenue will generally be higher
Purchased receivable revenue also depends on the amount of impairments or impairment reversals recognized
When collections fall short of expectations or future expectations decline impairments may be recognized in

order to write-down portfolios balance to reflect lower estimated total collections When collections exceed

expectations or the future forecast improves we may reverse previously recognized impairments or increase

assigned IRRs when there are no previous impairments to reverse Zero basis collections are collections on

portfolios that no longer have carrying balance and therefore do not generate revenue by applying an assigned
IIRR These collections are recognized as purchased receivables revenues in the period collected

Portfolio Performance

The following table summarizes our historical portfolio purchase price and cash collections on an annual

vintage basis by year of purchase as of December 31 2010

Total Estimated

Estimated Total Collections as
Number of Purchase

Remaining Estimated Percentage of
Year of Purchase Portfolios Price1 Cash Collections Collections23 Collections Purchase Price

in thousands

2003 76 87147 440671 660 441331 506%
2004 106 86536 269574 5470 275044 318
2005 104 100747 207617 7960 215577 214

20064 154 142232 303466 36419 339885 239
2007 158 169342 248428 83787 332215 196

2008 164 153529 187935 151616 339551 221

2009 123 120927 109096 192519 301615 249

2010 122 136284 33669 270352 304021 223

Total 1007 $996744 $1800456 $748783 $2549239 256%

Purchase price refers to the cash paid to seller to acqpire portfolio less the buybacks and the purchase

price for accounts that were sold at the time of purchase to another debt purchaser

Estimated remaining collections are based in part on historiºal cash collections Please refer to forward-

looking statements within Item 1A Risk Factors on page 13 and Critical Accounting Policies on page
51 for further information regarding these estimates

Estimated remaining collections refers to the sum of all future projected cash collections on our owned
portfolios using up to an 84 month collection forecast from the date of purchase Estimated remaining
collections for pools on the cost recovery method for revenue recognition purposes are equal to the carrying
value There are no estimated remaining collections for pools on the cost recovery method that are fully

amortized
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Includes 62 portfolios from the acquisition of PARC on April 28 2006 that were allocated purchase price

value of $8.3 million

The following table summarizes our quarterly portfolio purchasing since January 2008

in thousands
Number of Purchase Face

Quarter of Purchase Portfolios Price1 Value

Qi 2008 47 21895 539052

Q2 2008 52 64252 1874587

Q32008 42 35567 717807

Q42008 23 31815 628902

Qi 2009 31 21755 736910

Q22009 22 19630 716090

Q3 2009 33 36915 1585198

Q42009 37 42627 1378286

Qi 2010 28 29619 818825

Q22010 41 48535 1498087

Q32010 34 41283 1175309

Q42010 19 16847 298101

Total 409 $410740 $11967154

Purchase price refers to the cash paid to seller to acquire portfolio less buybacks and the purchase price

of accounts that were sold at the time of purchase to another debt purchaser

The following table summarizes the remaining unamortized balances of our purchased receivables portfolios

by year
of purchase as of December 31 2010

in thousands
Unamortized Unamortized

Balance as Balance as

Unamortized Purchase Percentage of Percentage of

Year of Purchase Balance Price1 Purchase Price Total

2003 660 87147 0.8% 0.2%

2004 2926 86536 3.4 0.9

2005 4142 100747 4.1 1.3

20062 17904 142232 12.6 5.6

2007 40672 169342 24.0 12.7

2008 53734 153529 35.0 16.7

2009 77318 120927 63.9 24.0

2010 123962 136284 91.0 38.6

Total $321318 $996744 32.2% 100.0%

Purchase price refers to the cash paid to seller to acquIre portfolio less buybacks and the purchase price

of accounts that were sold at the time of purchase to another debt purchaser

Includes portfolios from the acquisition of PARC on April 28 2006 that were allocated purchase price

value of $8.3 million There is no remaining unamortized balance for these portfolios
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The following table summarizes purchased receivable revenues and amortization rates by year of purchase

Year ended December 312010

Year ended December 312009

________
Year ended December 312008

Collections

66351793

35935075

49142614

62549786

81170136

33669086

$328818490

Revenue

53860550

20699103

25669601

29168202

45049351

21346794

$195793601

Amortization

Rate1

NJM

42.4%

47.8

53.4

44.5

36.6

40.5%

Monthly
Yield2

NIM

6.88%

4.08

3.42

3.91

2.73

5.05%

Net

Impairments Zero Basis

Reversals Collections

$1852856 $41245515

588054 4132956

105467 2375440

849701

825894

$2335443 $49429506

Year of

Purchase

2005 and prior

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

Totals

Year of

Purchase

2004 and prior

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

Totals

Year of

Purchase

2003 and prior

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

Totals

Collections

76818620

22725619

53239336

69890696

83430138

27926188

$334030597

Net
Amortization Monthly Impairments Zero Basis

Revenue Rate1 Yield2 Reversals Collections

59351726 NIM N/M 9916500 $51005995
2276130 90.0% 0.88% 11770000 1968651

19573500 63.2 3.00 19855000 6523756
31214488 55.3 3.05 6994000 3204897
38422017 53.9 2.91 969254 332543
20437420 26.8 3.98 124996

$171275281 48.7% 4.27% $49504754 $63160838

Net
Amortization Monthly Impairments Zero Basis

Collections Revenue Rate1 Yield2 Reversals Collections

86570398 80343561 N/M N/M $1575800 $66525760
32275692 22173829 31.3% 6.93% 4582964 3707110
35638117 14871669 58.3 3.13 4698986 80738
79953394 50894934 36.3 5.30 4627497 7493922
93183368 44063847 52.7 2.88 688813 715897
41957161 20552942 51.0 2.68 18276 101294

$369578130 $232900782 37.0% 5.60% $13040736 $78624721

NIM indicates that the calculated percentage is not meaningful

The monthly yield is the weighted-average yield determined by dividing purchased receivable revenues

recognized in the period by the average of the beginning monthly carrying values of the purchased
receivables for the period presented

Core Amortization

The table below shows components of revenue from purchased receivables the amortization rate and the

core amortization rate We use the core amortization rate to monitor perfonnance of pools with
remaining

balances and to determine if impairments impairment reversals or yield increases should be recorded Core
amortization trends may identify over or under performance compared to forecasts for pools with remaining
balances
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The following factors contributed to the change in amortization rates from the prior year

amortization of receivables balances for 2010 increased compared to prior years Portfolio balances

that amortize too slowly in relation to current or expected collections may lead to impairments If

portfolio balances amortize too quickly and we expect collections to continue to exceed expectations

previously recognized impainnents may be reversed or if there are no impairments to reverse assigned

yields may increase

net impairments are recorded as additional amortization and increase the amortization rate while net

reversals have the opposite effect Net impairment reversals for 2010 reduced total amortization

compared to prior years and

declining zero basis collections in 2010 compared to prior years partially offset the decreased

amortization rate because 100% of these collections are recorded as revenue and do not contribute

towards portfolio amortization

Years Ended December 31

in millions 2010 2009 2008

Cash collections

Collections on amortizihg pools $279.4 $270.8 $291.0

Zero basis collections 49.4 63.2 78.6

Total collections $328.8 $334.0 $369.6

Amortization

Amortization of receivables balances $133.5 $105.9 $103.1

Impairments 1.1 50.3 16.1

Reversals of impairments 3.5 0.8 3.1
Cost

recovery amortization 1.9 7.3 20.6

Total amortization $133.0 $162.7 $136.7

Purchased receivable revenues net $195.8 $171.3 $232.9

Amortization rate 40.5% 48.7% 37.0%

Core amortization rate1 47.6% 60.1% 47.0%

The core amortization rate is calculated as total amortization divided by collections on non-fully amortized

portfolios

Account Representative Tenure and Productivity

We measure traditional call center account representative tenure by two major categories those with less

than one year
of experience and those with one or more years of experience The following table displays the

experience of our account representatives

In-House Account Representatives including Supervisors by Experience

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Oneyearormore1 514 587 515

Less than one year2 365 422 437

Total 879 1009 952

Based on number of average traditional call center Full Time Equivalent FTE account representatives

and supervisors with one or more years of service

Based on number of average traditional call center FTE account representatives and supervisors with less

than one year of service including new associates in training
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Off-Shore Account Representatives1

Years Ended December 31

2010 20092 2008

Number of account representatives 227 17

Based on number of average off-shore account representatives staffed by third party agency measured on

per seat basis

Includes activity beginning in November 2009 averaged over the 12-month period

The following table displays our account representative productivity

Overall Account Representative Collection Averages

Years Ended December 31

2010 20091 20081

Overall collection
averages $164206 $156391 $188357

Prior
year amounts were adjusted to remove supervisors from the collection average which is consistent

with the current presentation Supervisors do not have collection goals therefore we believe this

presentation better represents our collection averages

In-house account representative average collections per FTE increased during 2010 by 5.0% as compared to

2009 Account representative productivity improved as result of 12.7% increase in purchasing in 2010

coupled with more effective training program and better utilization of our standardized collection

methodology In-house account representative average collections
per FTE decreased in 2009 by 17.0% as

compared to 2008 primarily as result of the impact of macro-economic factors on consumers
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Cash Collections

The following tables provide further detailed vintage collectiou analysis on an annual and cumulative

basis

Historical Collections1

$in thousands

Year of

Purchase

Pre-2001

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

20062
2007

2008

2009

2010

Total

in thousands

Year of

Purchase

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

20062
2007

2008

2009

2010

Purchase
Years Ended December 31

Price3 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

$53438 47874 39973 32262 26349 19898 14564 $10283 7200 5167

43029 17630 50327 50967 45713 39865 30472 21714 13351 8738 5610

72255 22339 70813 72024 67649 55373 39839 24529 15957 11367

87147 36067 94564 94234 79423 58359 38408 23842 15774

86536 23365 68354 62673 48093 32276 21082 13731

100747 23459 60280 50811 35638 22726 14703

142232 32751 101529 79953 53239 35994

169342 36269 93183 69891 49085

153529
41957 83430 62548

120927
27926 81170

136284
33669

$71068 $120540 $197820 $267928 $319910 $340870 $371178 $369578 $334031 $328818

Cumulative Collections1

Purchase
Total Through December 31

Price3 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

43029 $17630 67957 $118924 $164637 $204502 $234974 $256688 $270039 $278777 $284387

72255 22339 93152 165176 232825 288198 328037 352566 368523 379890

87147 36067 130631 224865 304288 362647 401055 424897 440671

86536 23365 91719 154392 202485 234761 255843 269574

100747 23459 83739 134550 170188 192914 207617

142232 32751 134280 214233 267472 303466

169342 36269 129452 199343 248428

153529 41957 125387 187935

120927
27926 109096

136284
33669

Cumulative Collections as Percentage of Purchase Price1

Year of Purchase
Total Through December 31

Purchase Price3 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

2001 43029 41% 158% 276% 383% 475% 546% 597% 628% 648% 661%

2002 72255 31 129 229 322 399 454 488 510 526

2003 87147 41 150 258 349 416 460 488 506

2004 86536 27 106 178 234 271 296 312

2005 100747 23 83 134 169 191 206

20062 142232
23 94 151 188 213

2007 169342
21 76 118 147

2008 153529
27 82 122

2009 120927
23 90

2010 136284
25

Does not include proceeds from sales of receivables

Includes portfolios from the acquisition of PARC on April 28 2006 that were allocated purchase price value of $8.3

million

Purchase price refers to the cash paid to seller to acquire portfolio less buybacks and the purchase price for accounts

that were sold at the time of purchase to another debt purchaser
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Seasonality

The success of our business depends on our ability to collect on our purchased portfolios of charged-off
consumer receivables Collections tend to be seasonally higher in the first and second quarters of the

year due to
consumers receipt of tax refunds and other factors Conversely collections tend to be lower in the third and fourth

quarters of the
year due to consumers spending in connection with summer vacations the holiday season and other

factors However revenue recognized is relatively level excluding the impact of impairments due to the

application of the provisions prescribed by the Interest Method of accounting In addition our operating results may
be affected by the timing of purchases of charged-off consumer receivables due to the initial costs associated with

purchasing and integrating these receivables into our systems and collections on portfolios are usually the strongest
six to 18 months after purchase Consequently income and margins may fluctuate from

quarter to quarter

The following table illustrates our quarterly cash collections

Cash Collections

Quarter 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
First 89215330 27.1%$ 94116937 28.2%$100264281 27.1%$ 95853350 25.8%$ 89389858 26.2%
Second 84214073 25.6 87293577 26.1 95192743 25.8 95432021 25.7 89609982 26.3Third 78860926 24.0 77832357 23.3 90775528 24.6 90748442 24.5 80914791 23.7
Fourth 76528161 23.3 74787726 22.4 83345578 22.5 89144650 24.0 80955115 23.8

Total cash collections... $328818490 100.0% $334030597 100.0% $369578130 100.0% $371178463 100.0% $340869746 100.0%

The
following table illustrates cash collections and percentages by source

Years ended December 31
2010 2009 2008 20071 20061

Call center

collections $181415069 55.2% $180469613 54.0% $205536988 55.6% $208500875 56.2% $195329311 57.3%
Legal collections .. 147403421 44.8 153560984 46.0 164041142 44.4 162677588 43.8 145540435 42.7

Total cash

collections $328818490 100.0% $334030597 100.0% $369578130 100.0% $371178463 100.0% $340869746 100.0%

Certain cash collections have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation

The average collection payment size grew 4.5% to $155 during 2010 This increase reflects the net impact
of an 11.0% increase in the size of average call center collection payments and decrease of 3.1% in the size of

average legal payments when compared to 2009 The increase in call center payment size was result of
collections on paper with higher average balances coupled with more effective training program better

utilization of our standardized collection methodology and more targeted lettering and dialing strategies The
overall decline in the size of payments from the legal channel was influenced by improvements in our in-house
dialing and lettering strategies offset by negative trends in our ability to garnish assets The average payment size

of collections fell 7.8% to $148 during 2009 when compared to 2008 Average payments in both of our collection
channels decreased during this period generally as result of the impact of macro-economic factors on
consumers

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically our primary sources of cash have been from operations and bank borrowings We have
traditionally used cash for acquisitions of purchased receivables repayment of bank borrowings purchasing
property and equipment and working capital to support growth We believe that cash generated from operations
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combined with borrowings currently available under our credit facilities will be sufficient to fund our operations

for the next twelve months although no assurance can be given in this regard In the future if we need additional

capital for investment in purchased receivables working capital to grow our business or acquire other businesses

we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securities or increase the availability under our revolving credit

facility

Borrowings

We maintain an amended credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent and

syndicate of lenders named therein that originated on June 2007 the Credit Agreement Under the terms of

the Credit Agreement we have five-year $100.0 million revolving credit facility which expires in June 2012

the Revolving Credit Facility which may be limited by financial covenants and six-year $150.0 million

term loan facility which expires in June 2013 the Term Loan Facility and together with the Revolving Credit

Facility the Credit Facilities The Credit Facilities bear interest at 200 to 250 basis points over the banks

prime rate depending upon our liquidity as defined in the Credit Agreement Alternately at our discretion we

may borrow by entering into one two three six or twelve-month London Inter Bank Offer Rate LIBOR
contracts at rates between 300 to 350 basis points over the respective LIBOR rates depending on our liquidity

Our Revolving Credit Facility includes an accordion loan feature that allows us to request $25.0 million

increase as well as sublimits for $10.0 million of letters of credit and for $10.0 million of swingline loans The

Credit Agreement is secured by first priority lien on substantially all of our assets The Credit Agreement also

contains certain covenants and restrictions that we must comply with which as of December 31 2010 were

Leverage Ratio as defined cannot exceed 1.5 to 1.0 at any time before December 30 2011 or

ii 1.25 to 1.0 at any time thereafter

Ratio of Consolidated Total Liabilities to Consolidated Tangible Net Worth as defined cannot exceed

2.5 to 1.0 at any time on or before December 30 2011 ii 2.25 to 1.0 at any time on or after

December 31 2011 and on or before March 30 2012 iii2.0 to 1.0 at any time thereafter and

Consolidated Tangible Net Worth as defined must equal or exceed $85.0 million plus 50% of positive

consolidated net income for three consecutive fiscal quarters ending December 31 2007 and for each

fiscal year ending thereafter such amount to be added as of December 31 2007 and as of the end of

each such fiscal year thereafter

On May 28 2010 the Company JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A and other lenders entered into Third

Amendment to Credit Agreement Third Amendment The Third Amendment adjusted the levels of the

Leverage Ratio used to set the applicable margin on outstanding borrowings and the respective interest spreads

The Third Amendment also changed certain financial covenant definitions to allow for adjustments related to

charges for the FTC investigation limited to $7.0 million and the net impact of the fourth quarter 2009

purchased receivable impairment charges limited to $20.0 million The changes did not impact total available

borrowing capacity however the financial covenants were adjusted to be less restrictive which in turn increased

our ability to borrow under the terms of the agreement In exchange for amending the Credit Agreement we

incurred deferred financing costs of $0.8 million and $1.8 million in 2010 and 2009 respectively

The financial covenants restrict our ability to borrow against the Revolving Credit Facility At December 31

2010 total available borrowings on our Revolving Credit Facility were $76.1 million however our capacity to

borrow under the terms of the financial covenants was limited to $55.8 million The limitation is based on the

Leverage Ratio our most restrictive covenant at December 31 2010 Our borrowing capacity will be reduced

under this ratio if we experience further declines in cash collections or increases in operating expenses that are

not offset by reduction in outstanding borrowings
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The Credit Agreement contains provision that requires us to repay Excess Cash Flow as defined to
reduce the indebtedness

outstanding under our Term Loan Facility The Excess Cash Flow repayment provisions
are

50% of the Excess Cash Flow for such fiscal
year if the Leverage Ratio was greater than 1.0 to 1.0 as

of the end of such fiscal year

25% of the Excess Cash Flow for such fiscal year if the Leverage Ratio was less than or equal to 1.0 to

1.0 but greater than 0.875 to 1.0 as of the end of such fiscal year or

0% if the Leverage Ratio is less than or equal to 0.875 to 1.0 as of the end of such fiscal year

Based on the Excess Cash Flow provisions we made required payments of $9.0 million and $2.4 million on
the Term Loan

Facility during March 2010 and 2009 respectively Payment of the Excess Cash Flow did not
reduce our total borrowing capacity under the Revolving Credit Facility We are not required to make an Excess
Cash Flow payment for 2010 based on our operating activities primarily driven by our increase in purchases
during the year

Commitment fees on the unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility are paid quarterly in arrears and
are calculated as an amount equal to margin of 0.50% depending on our liquidity on the average amount
available on the Revolving Credit Facility

The Credit Agreement requires us to effectively cap collar or exchange interest rates on notional amount
of at least 25% of the outstanding principal amount of the Term Loan Facility As such we have an interest rate

swap agreement that hedges portion of the interest on the Term Loan Facility Refer to Note of the
consolidated financial statements Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk Management for additional
information

We had $157.3 million and $160.0 million of borrowings outstanding on our Credit Facilities at
December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively of which $133.4 million and $143.8 million was outstanding on the
Term Loan Facility and $23.9 million and $16.2 million was outstanding on the Revolving Credit Facility Along
with the Excess Cash Flow prepayment requirements the Term Loan Facility requires quarterly repayments
totaling $1.5 million annually until expiration The decrease in total outstanding borrowings in 2010 was result

of the required Excess Cash Flow payment of $9.0 million and the
quarterly repayments totaling $1.5 million on

the Term Loan Facility These decreases were partially offset by an increase of $7.7 million on the Revolving
Credit Facility to fund higher portfolio purchases during the year The weighted average interest rate on the

outstanding borrowings including the effect of the interest rate swap at December 31 2010 was 5.30% The
increase in interest rates resulting from the amendment to the Credit Agreement in 2010 will have the effect of

increasing interest expense by approximately $0.8 million in 2011 if our borrowing levels remain consistent

We were in compliance with all covenants of the Credit Agreement as of December 31 2010

Cash Flows

The majority of our purchases of receivables have been funded with internal cash flow and with borrowings
against our Revolving Credit Facility For the

year ended December 31 2010 we invested $137.5 million in

purchased receivables primarily by using internal cash flow Our cash balance increased from $4.9 million at

December 31 2009 to $5.6 million as of December 31 2010 We also made net repayments on our Credit
Facilities of $2.8 million during 2010

Our operating activities provided cash of $7.9 million $31.5 million and $39.7 million for the years ended
December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Cash provided by operating activities for these years was
generated primarily from operating income earned through cash collections as adjusted for non-cash items and
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the timing of payments Of income taxes accounts payable and accrued liabilities We rely on cash generated

from our operating activities and from the principal collected on our purchased receivables included as

component of investing activities to allow us to fund operations and re-invest in purchased receivables Cash

provided by operations has decreased as result of net amortization of receivables balances and the impact of

impairments and higher operating expenses In the current year we recorded net impairment reversals of $2.3

million which is negative non-cash adjustment to net income when determining cash flow from operating

activities In 2009 and 2008 we recorded net impairment charges of $49.5 million and $13.0 million

respectively which is positive non-cash adjustment to net income when determining cash flow from operating

activities Declines in cash collections if not offset by reductions in operating expenses
will decrease cash

provided by operating activities in future periods

Investing activities used cash of $3.5 million $9.1 million and $33.6 million for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The change in cash used by investing activities in 2010 is

result of $137.5 million invested in purchased receivables in the 2010 as compared to $118.3 million in 2009

The increase in purchasing has been partially offset by principal collected on purchased receivables balances of

$135.4 million for 2010 compared to $114.8 million and $124.2 million in 2009 and 2008 respectively We

believe that we have sufficient liquidity available to meet our purchasing objectives During the first half of

2009 we intentionally reduced our level of investment in paper to build capacity to invest more in the second

half of the year
and throughout 2010 As result we used more cash in investing activities for purchases of paper

in 2010 and 2008 compared to 2009

We acquired $2.3 million $6.0 million and $5.7 million in property and equipment in 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively primarily related to software and computer equipment for our new collection platform and

improvements to our telecommunications systems Implementation of the new collection platform has been

funded through cash flow from operating activities and borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility We also

acquired substantially all of the assets of our collection platform software provider during 2010 for $0.8 million

Financing activities used cash of $3.7 million $23.5 million and $10.5 million for 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively primarily due to net repayments on our Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan Facility of $2.8

million $21.5 million and $9.7 million respectively We also made payments for deferred financing fees of $0.8

million $1.8 million and $0.7 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively that were associated with the first

second and third amendments to the Credit Agreement Cash provided by financing activities would increase in

future periods to the extent we use additional net borrowings on our Revolving Credit Facility to fund purchases

of paper

Adjusted EBITDA

We define Adjusted Earnings Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amortization Adjusted EBITDA

as net loss or income plus the benefit provision for income taxes interest expense net depreciation

and amortization share-based compensation gain or loss on sale of assets net non-cash restructuring

charges and impairment of assets purchased receivables amortization and in accordance with our Credit

Facilities certain FTC charges Adjusted EBITDA is not measure of liquidity calculated in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America U.S GAAP and should not be

considered an alternative to or more meaningful than net loss income prepared on U.S GAAP basis

Adjusted EBITDA does not purport to represent cash flow provided by or used in operating activities as defined

by U.S GAAP which is presented in our statements of cash flows In addition Adjusted EBITDA is not

necessarily comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies

We believe Adjusted EBITDA is useful to an investor in evaluating our operating performance for the

following reasons

Adjusted EBITDA is widely used by investors to measure companys operating performance without

regard to items such as interest income taxes depreciation and amortization including purchased
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receivables amortization and share-based compensation which can vary substantially from company
to company depending upon accounting methods and the book value of assets capital structure and the

method by which assets were acquired and

analysts and investors use Adjusted EBITDA as supplemental measure to evaluate the overall

operating performance of companies in our industry

Our management uses Adjusted EBITDA

for planning purposes including in the preparation of our internal annual operating budget and periodic

forecasts

in communications with the Board of Directors stockholders analysts and investors concerning our

financial performance

as significant factor in determining bonuses under managements annual incentive compensation

program and

as measure of operating performance for the financial covenants in our amended Credit Agreement
because it provides information related to our ability to provide cash flows for investments in

purchased receivables capital expenditures acquisitions and working capital requirements

The following table reconciles net loss income the most directly comparable U.S GAAP measure to

Adjusted EBITDA

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Net loss income 1616132 16434097 15723196
Adjustments

Income tax benefit expense 8451668 9757449 9680968
Interest expense net 11196132 10134906 12991942
Depreciation and amortization 4665775 4107635 3954802
Share-based compensation 1194802 1328402 1329298
Gain loss on sale of assets net 998248 44739 56825
Non-cash restructuring charges and impairment of assets 1189900 1167600 616343
Purchased receivables amortization 133024889 162755316 136677348
FTC related charges 1966468

Adjusted EBITDA $142171918 $153257574 $181030722

Adjustments to Adjusted EBITDA for 2010 include charges related to the impairnient of intangible assets

and write-off of furniture and equipment totaling $1.2 million included in Restructuring charges in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations This treatment is consistent with how those expenses
would have been reflected in the reconciliation had they been incurred absent restructuring action The

remaining restructuring charges of $3 million reduced Adjusted EBITDA for 2010

Collections other revenue and operating expenses net of the adjustment items are the primary drivers of

Adjusted EBITDA During 2010 Adjusted EBITDA was $111 million lower than 2009 This decline is

primarily result of decline in cash collections of $5 million combined with an increase in applicable

operating expenses of $64 million These operating expenses include $5 million charge for contract

termination and $3 million related to the restructuring actions discussed above For 2009 the decline in

Adjusted EBITDA of $27 million compared to 2008 was result of $35 million decrease in collections

offset in part with decrease in applicable operating expenses of $7 million
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Future Contractual Cash Obligations

The following table summarizes our future contractual cash obligations as of December 31 2010

Years Ending December 31

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter

Operating lease

obligations 5045861 4626019 4193017 $4240392 $3857759 $1555114

Capital lease

obligations 103425 112828 23242

Purchase obligations 1497960 1426045 776045

Forward flow

obligations1 2999200

Revolving credit2 23900000

Term loan3 1500000 1500000 130359956

Contractual interest on

derivative

instruments 2198781 946268

Total4 $13345227 $32511160 $135352260 $4240392 $3857759 $1555114

We have three forward flow contracts that have terms beyond December 31 2010 with the last contract

expiring in February 2011 One forward flow contract expires in January 2011 with estimated monthly

purchases of approximately $0.9 million The remaining two forward flow contracts expire in February

2011 and have estimated monthly purchases of approximately $1.0 million

To the extent that balance is outstanding on our Revolving Credit Facility it would be due in June 2012 or

earlier as defined in the Credit Agreement Interest on our Revolving Credit Facility is not included within

the amount outstanding as of December 31 2010

To the extent that balance is outstanding on our Term Loan Facility it would be due in June 2013 The

variable interest is not included within the amount outstanding as of December 31 2010

We have liability of $1.0 million relating to uncertain tax positions which has been excluded from the

table above because the amount and fiscal
year

of the payment cannot be reliably estimated

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We currently do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements

Critical Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

We generally account for our revenues from collections on our purchased receivables by using the Interest

Method in accordance with U.S GAAP which requires making reasonable estimates of the timing and amount of

future cash collections Application of the Interest Method requires the use of estimates primarily estimated

remaining collections to calculate projected IRR for each pool These estimates are primarily based on

historical cash collections and payer dynamics If future cash collections are materially different in amount or

timing from the remaining collections estimate earnings could be affected either positively or negatively The

estimates of remaining collections are sensitive to the inputs used and the performance of each pool Performance

is dependent on macro-economic factors and the specific demographic makeup of the debtors in the pooi Higher

collection amounts or cash collections that occur sooner than projected will have favorable impact on reversal

of impairments or an increase in yields and revenues Lower collection amounts or cash collections that occur

later than projected will have an unfavorable impact and may result in impairments of receivables balances
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Impairments to purchased receivables reduce our Consolidated Tangible Net Worth and put pressure on the

financial covenants in our Credit Facilities

We use the cost recovery method when collections on particular portfolio cannot be reasonably predicted

The cost recovery method may be used for pools that previously had an IRR assigned Under the cost recovery

method no revenue is recognized until we have fully collected the pooi balance

We adopted the Interest Method in January 2005 and apply it to purchased receivables acquired after

December 31 2004 The provisions of the Interest Method that relate to decreases in expected cash flows amend

previously followed guidance for consistent treatment and apply prospectively to purchased receivables acquired

before January 2005 We purchase pools of homogenous accounts receivable and record each pool at its

acquisition cost Pools purchased after 2004 may be aggregated into one or more static pools within each quarter

based on common risk characteristics Risk characteristics of purchased receivables are assumed to be similar

since purchased receivables are usually in the late stages of the post charged-off collection cycle We therefore

aggregate most pools purchased within each quarter Pools purchased before 2005 may not be aggregated with

other pool purchases Each static pooi either aggregated or non-aggregated retains its own identity and does not

change over the remainder of its life Each static pool is accounted for as single unit for recognition of revenue

principal payments and impairments

Each static pool of receivables is statistically modeled to determine its projected cash flows based on

historical cash collections for pools with similar characteristics An IRR is calculated for each static pooi of

receivables based on projected cash flows The IRR is applied to the remaining balance of each static pool of

accounts to determine the revenue recognized Each static pool is analyzed at least quarterly to assess the actual

performance compared to the expected performance This review includes an assessment of the actual results of

cash collections the work effort used and expected to be used in future periods the components of the static pool

including type of paper the average age of purchased receivables certain demographics and other factors that

help us understand how pool may perform in future periods Generally to the extent the differences in actual

performance versus expected performance are favorable and the results of the review of pool demographics is

also favorable the IRR is adjusted prospectively to reflect the revised estimate of cash flows over the remaining

life of the static pooi If the review of actual performance results in revised cash flow estimates that are less than

the original estimates and if the results of the review lead us to believe the decline in performance is not

temporary the JRR remains unchanged and an impairment is recognized If cash flow estimates increase

subsequent to recording an impairment reversal of the previously recognized impairment is made prior to any

increases to the IRR

These periodic reviews and any adjustments or impairments are discussed with our Audit Committee

Goodwill and Intangible Assets not Subject to Amortization

We periodically review the carrying value of intangible assets not subject to amortization including

goodwill to determine whether an impairment may exist U.S GAAP requires that goodwill and certain

intangible assets not subject to amortization be assessed annually for impairment using fair value measurement

techniques

Specifically goodwill impairment is determined using two-step test The first step of the goodwill

impairment test is used to identify potential impairment by comparing the fair value of reporting unit with its

book value including goodwill If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its book value goodwill is

considered not impaired and the second step of the impairment test is unnecessary If the book value of the

reporting unit exceeds its fair value the second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the

amount of impairment loss if any The second step of the goodwill impairment test compares the implied fair

value of the reporting units goodwill with the book value of that goodwill If the book value of the reporting

units goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill an impairment loss is recognized in an amount
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equal to that excess The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the amount of

goodwill recognized in business combination That is the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of

the assets and liabilities of that unit as if the reporting unit had been acquired in business combination and the

fair value of the reporting unit was the purchase price paid to acquire the reporting unit

The estimate of fair value of our goodwill reporting unit the purchased receivables operating segment is

determined using various valuation techniques including market capitalization and an analysis of discounted cash

flows At the time of the annual goodwill impairment test November 2010 market capitalization was

substantially higher than book value and goodwill was considered not to be impaired However 24% decrease

in market capitalization would have resulted in book value greater than market capitalization As result of

declines in the Companys stock price throughout the first nine months of 2010 discounted cash flow analysis

was performed as of September 30 2010 discounted cash flow analysis requires various judgmental

assumptions including assumptions about future cash flows growth rates and discount rates The Company

based assumptions about future cash flows and growth rates on its budget and long-term plans The Company

used discount rate of 19.6% which reflected our estimate of cost of equity and our assessment of the risk

inherent in the reporting unit The fair value of goodwill using discounted cash flow analysis exceeded the book

value as of September 30 2010 However 90 basis points increase in the discount rate or decrease in cash

flow of approximately $1.5 million in each year would result in an excess of book value over fair value and an

indication that goodwill may be impaired

The annual impairment test for other intangible assets not subject to amortization for example trademark

and trade names consists of comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset with its carrying value If the

carrying value of the intangible asset exceeds its fairvalue an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal

to that excess The estimates of fair value of intangible assets not subject to amortization are determined using

various discounted cash flow valuation methodologies Significant assumptions are inherent in this process

including estimates of discount rates and future cash flows Discount rate assumptions are based on an

assessment of the risk inherent in the respective intangible assets and include estimates of the cost of debt and

equity for market participants in our industry During the third quarter of 2010 we decided to no longer purchase

and collect healthcare accounts receivable As result we recognized an impairment charge for the net book

value of intangible assets for trademark and trade names associated with the healthcare collection activities of

$0.8 million which is included in Restructuring charges in the accompanying consolidated statements of

operations We previously performed discounted cash flow analysis of our trademark and trade names as of

September 30 2009 using discount rate of 18% and determined that the carrying value exceeded the fair value

We recorded an impairment of Si .2 million which is included in Impairment of assets in the accompanying

consolidated statements of operations

Income Taxes

We record tax provision for the anticipated tax consequences of the reported results of operations The

provision for income taxes is computed using the asset and liability method under which deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences
of temporary differences between the financial

reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities and for operating losses and tax credit carry-forwards Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted thx rates and laws that will be in effect when the

differences are expected to be reversed

We believe it is more likely than not that forecasted income including income that may be generated as

result of certain tax planning strategies together with the tax effects of the deferred tax liabilities will be

sufficient to fully recover the remaining deferred tax assets In the event that all or part
of the deferred tax assets

are determined not to be realizable in the future valuation allowance would be established and charged to

earnings in the period such determination is made Similarly if we subsequently realize deferred tax assets that

were previously determined to be unrealizable the respective valuation allowance would be reversed resulting in

positive adjustment to earnings in the period such determination is made In addition the calculation of tax
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liabilities involves significant judgment in estimating the impact of uncertainties in the application of complex

tax laws Resolution of these uncertainties in manner inconsistent with our expectations could have material

impact on our results of operations and financial position We account for uncertain tax positions using

recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax

position taken or expected to be taken in tax return

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the

accompanying consolidated financial statements for further information

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Our exposure to market risk relates to the interest rate risk with our Credit Facilities Accordingly we may
periodically enter into interest rate swap agreements for non-trading purposes to modify the interest rate exposure

associated with our outstanding debt The outstanding borrowings on our Credit Facilities were $157.3 million

$160.0 million and $181.6 million as of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively In September 2007
we entered into an amortizing interest rate swap agreement whereby on quarterly basis we swap variable rates

equal to three-month LIBOR for fixed rates on the notional amount of $125.0 million Every year thereafter on

the anniversary of the swap agreement the notional amount decreases by $25.0 million The outstanding

unhedged borrowings on our Credit Facilities were $107.3 million as of December 31 2010 Interest rates on

unhedged borrowings may be based on the prime rate or LIBOR at our discretion Assuming 200 basis point

increase in interest rates on the unhedged borrowings interest expense would have increased approximately $1.9

million for each of the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

The swap was determined to be highly effective in hedging against fluctuations in variable interest rates

associated with the underlying debt since we entered into the agreement Interest rates have decreased since we
entered into our swap agreement reducing the fair value and resulting in liability balance Additional declines

in interest rates will further reduce the fair value while increasing interest rates will increase the fair value

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements filed herewith are set forth on the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on

page F-i of the separate financial section of this Annual Report

Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

We have no information to report that is required by Item 304b of Regulation S-K

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report we carried out an evaluation under the supervision and

with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer CEO and Chief Financial

Officer CFO of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures

pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 The disclosure controls and procedures include

those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately

and fairly reflect our transactions and dispositions of assets provide reasonable assurance that transactions

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of our management and directors and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
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timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of our assets that could have material effect on

the financial statements

Based upon that evaluation and as of that date our CEO and our CFO concluded that our disclosure

controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level to cause information required to be

disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 to be recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Commissions rules and forms and

that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management including our CEO and CFO as

appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Refer to the Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting located on page F-2 of

the separate financial section of this Annual Report which is incorporated herein by reference

There have been no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during our fiscal

quarter ended December 31 2010 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our

internal controls over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The Company has adopted code of business conduct applicable to all directors officers and associates and

which complies with the definition of code of ethics set forth in Section 406c of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 and the requirement of code of ethics prescribed by Rule 4350n of The NASDAQ Marketplace Rules

The code of business conduct is accessible at no charge on the Companys website at www.assetacceptance.com

In the event we make any amendment to or grant any waiver of provision of our code of business conduct that

applies to the principal executive financial or accounting officer or any person performing similar functions

that requires disclosure under applicable SEC rules we intend to disclose such amendment or waiver the nature

of and reasons for it along with the name of the person to whom it was granted and the date on our website

The other information required by Item 10 is included in the Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting

of Stockholders of the Company to be held May 12 2011 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission the Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference Information about our Executive

Officers is set forth in Part Supplemental Item under the caption Executive Officers of the Company

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is included in the Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders of the Company to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Conmiission and is incorporated

herein by reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by Item 12 is included in the Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders of the Company to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is incorporated

herein by reference
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The following table contains information about our securities that may be issued upon the exercise of

options warrants and rights under all of our equity compensation plans as of December 31 2010

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by

stockholders

Number of

Securities to be

Issued upon
Exercise of

Outstanding

Options Warrants

and Rights

1309262

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of

Outstanding Options
Warrants and Rights

$10.27

Number of Securities

Remaining Available

For Future Issuance

Under Equity

Compensation Plans

Excluding

Outstanding Options
Warrants And

Rights

2246420

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is included in the Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders of the Company to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is incorporated

herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is included in the Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders of the Company to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is incorporated

herein by reference
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statements filed herewith are set forth in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on

page F-i of the separate financial section of this Annual Report which is incorporated herein by reference

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Annual Report

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Asset Contribution and Securities Purchase Agreement among Asset Acceptance Holdings LLC
AAC Holding Corp Consumer Credit Corp their respective shareholders and AAC Investors Inc

dated September 30 2002 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 filed with Asset Acceptance

Capital Corp Registration Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-109987

2.2 Share Exchange Agreement dated October 24 2003 among Asset Acceptance Capital Corp AAC

Investors Inc RBR Holding Corp and the other parties thereto Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 2.2 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Registration Statement on Form S-i

Registration No 333-109987

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 3.1 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Annual Report on Form 10-K

originally filed on March 25 2004

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Asset Acceptance Capital Corp as of July 25 2007 Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 3.1 filed with Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 31 2007

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with Asset

Acceptance Capital Corp Registration Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-109987

10.1 Form of Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement among Asset Acceptance Capital

Corp and its stockholders Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 filed with Asset Acceptance

Capital Corp Registration Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-109987

10.2 Lease dated November 17 2000 between Brooklyn Heights Business Park Limited and Asset

Acceptance Corp for the property located at 600 Safeguard Plaza Brooklyn Heights Ohio as

amended Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp

Registration Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-109987

10.3 Second Amendment to Lease Agreement for property located at 600 Safeguard Plaza Brooklyn

Heights Ohio Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital

Corp Annual Report on Form 10-K originally filed Febrtiary 27 2006

10.4 Lease Agreement entered into on September 17 2009 between Asset Acceptance LLC and Gateway

Montrose Inc for the property located at 1100 West Grove Parkway Suite 101 Tempe Arizona

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q originally filed on November 2009

10.5 Lease Agreement entered into April 17 2009 between Asset Acceptance LLC and TDC Prue Road

L.P for the property located at 5250 Prue Road San Antonio Texas Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q originally

filed on August 2009

10.6 Business Lease dated August 25 2003 between First Industhal Development Services Inc and Asset

Acceptance LLC for the property located in Hillsborough County Florida as amended by First

Amendment to Lease dated December 29 2003 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 filed

with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Registration Statement on Form S-i Registration

No 333-109987
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.7 Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated as of December 15 2008 between Asset Acceptance

LLC and WI Commercial Properties Inc WICP for the property located in Hilisborough County

Florida Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp

Annual report on Form 10-K originally filed on March 2009

10.8 Lease Agreement dated October 31 2003 by and between Van Dyke Office LLC and Asset

Acceptance LLC for the property located at 28405 Van Dyke Avenue Warren Michigan

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Registration

Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-109987

10.9 First Amendment to Lease Agreement and Second Amendment to Lease Agreement for property

located at 28405 Van Dyke Avenue Warren Michigan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29

filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Amendment No ito Registration Statement on Form S-i

Registration No 333-123 178

10.10 Third Amendment to Lease Agreement for property located at 28405 Van Dyke Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Quarterly Report on Form iO-Q

originally filed on May 10 2006

10.11 Fourth Amendment to Lease Agreement for property located at 28405 Van Dyke Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

originally filed on August 2006

10.12 Employment Agreement dated January 21 2009 between Asset Acceptance LLC and Rion

Needs Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q originally filed on May 2009

10.13 Employment Agreement dated February 18 2010 between Asset Acceptance LLC and Deborah

Everly Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q originally filed on April 30 2010

10.14 Employment Agreement dated May 17 2010 between Asset Acceptance LLC and Reid Simpson

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q originally filed on July 30 2010

10.15 Agreement between Ontario Systems Corporation and Lee Acceptance Corp dated June 26 1992 as

amended Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp

Registration Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-109987

10.16 Credit Agreement dated June 2007 between Asset Acceptance Capital Corp and JPMorgan Chase

Bank National Association Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 included with the Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2007

10.17 First Amendment to the Credit Agreement dated June 2007 between Asset Acceptance Capital

Corp and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A and other lenders Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

included with the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 11 2008

10.18 Second Amendment to the Credit Agreement dated October 27 2009 between Asset Acceptance

Capital Corp and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A and other lenders Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 included with the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 2009

10.19 Third Amendment to the Credit Agreement dated May 28 2010 between Asset Acceptance Capital

Corp and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A and other lenders Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

included with the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2010

10.20 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 included

with the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 20 2007
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.2 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Performance Based Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 included with the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 20 2007

10.22 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated effective October 29 2008 Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Annual Report on Form 10-K

originally filed on March 2009

10.23 2009 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan for Management Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q originally filed on

May 2009

10.24 2010 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan for Management Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1 filed with Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q originally filed on

April 30 2010

21.1 Subsidiaries of Asset Acceptance Capital Corp

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Grant Thomton LLP

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer dated March 2011 relating to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer dated March 2011 relating to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Registrant dated March

2011 pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 relating to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2010

Filed herewith

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

59



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant

has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on March

2011

ASSET ACCEPTANCE CAPITAL CORP

By Is RION NEEDS

Rion Needs

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated and on March 2011

Signature Title

Is RI0N NEEDS

Rion Needs

/5/ REID SIMPSON

Reid Simpson

President Chief Executive Officer and Director principal

executive officer

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer and principal accounting officer

/5/ NATHANIEL BRADLEY IV

Nathaniel Bradley IV

Chairman of the Board and Director

IS JENNIFER ADAMS

Jennifer Adams

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

/s TERRENCE DANIELS

Terrence Daniels

Is DONALD RAIDER

Donald Haider

/s ANTHONY IGNACZAK

Anthony Ignaczak

/s WILLIAM JACOBS

William Jacobs

/s EUGENE LOCKHART

Eugene Lockhart

/5/ WILLIAM PICKARD

William Pickard
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Asset Acceptance Capital Corp

Asset Acceptance Capital Corp the Company management is responsible for
establishing and

maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules

13a-15f The Companys internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with United States

generally accepted accounting principles

Under the supervision and with the participation of management including its principal executive officer

and principal financial officer the Companys management assessed the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the framework set forth in Internal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission the COSO criteria

Based on this assessment management concluded that the Companys internal control over financial

reporting was effective as of December 31 2010 based on the COSO criteria Grant Thornton LLP an

independent registered public accounting firm has issued report on the Companys internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31 2010 That report is included herein

Asset Acceptance Capital Corp

Is RION NEEDS

President and Chief Executive Officer

March 2011

IsI Rnm SIMPSON

Senior Vice PresidentFinance and Chief Financial Officer

March4 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Asset Acceptance Capital Corp

We have audited Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Delaware corporation and subsidiaries internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Asset

Acceptance Capital Corp and subsidiaries management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control

over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on Asset Acceptance Capital Corp and subsidiaries internal control over

financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We
believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Asset Acceptance Capital Corp and subsidiaries maintained in all material respects
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on criteria established in

Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by COSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated statements of financial position of Asset Acceptance Capital Corp and
subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations
stockholders equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended
December 31 2010 and our report dated March 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial

statements

Is GRANT THORNTON LLP

Southfield Michigan

March 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Asset Acceptance Capital Corp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Asset Acceptance

Capital Corp Delaware corporation and subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2010 and 2009

and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and comprehensive income and cash

flows for each of the three
years

in the period ended December 31 2010 These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of Asset Acceptance Capital Corp and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and

2009 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Asset Acceptance Capital Corp and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated March

2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting

Is/GRANT THORNTON LLP

Southfield Michigan

March 2011
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ASSET ACCEPTANCE CAPITAL CORP

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31 December 31
2010 2009

ASSETS

Cash 5635503 4935248

Purchased receivables net 321318255 319772006

Income taxes receivable 3760731 5553181

Property and equipment net 13055723 14521666

Goodwill 14323071 14323071

Intangible assets net 1079065

Other assets 5680237 6231732

Total assets $363773520 $366415969

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Liabilities

Accounts payable 2958214 3002299

Accrued liabilities 25178707 21294388

Income taxes payable 1407794 1196071

Notes payable 157259956 160022514

Capital lease obligations 202479 278459

Deferred tax liability net 52863654 57524754

Total liabilities 239870804 243318485

Stockholders equity

Preferred stock $0.01 par value 10000000 shares authorized no shares issued

and outstanding

Common stock $0.01 par value 100000000 shares authorized issued shares

33248915 and 33220132 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively 332489 332201

Additional paid in capital 149438202 148243688

Retained earnings 17138085 18754217

Accumulated other comprehensive loss net of tax 1680370 2955451
Common stock in treasury at cost 2627339 and 2616424 shares at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively 41325690 41277171

Total stockholders equity 123902716 123097484

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $363773520 $366415969

See accompanying notes
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ASSET ACCEPTANCE CAPITAL CORP

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31

Revenues

Purchased receivable revenues net

Gain on sale of purchased receivables

Other revenues net

Total revenues

Expenses

Salaries and benefits

Collections expense

Occupancy

Administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Restructuring charges

Impairment of assets

Loss on disposal of equipment and other assets

Total operating expenses

Income loss from operations

Other income expense
Interest

expense

Interest income

Other

Loss income before income taxes

Income tax benefit expense

Net loss income

Weighted-average number of shares

Basic

Diluted

Loss earnings per common share outstanding

Basic

Diluted

$195793601 $171275281 $232900782

1212042 399373 165040

1394177 812947 1146494

198399820 172487601 234212316

72388974 77666083 83348494

99298403 89095287 89458611

6729589 7588100 7727356

9818058 8694344 10510635

4665775 4107635 3954802

4224899

1167600 616343

213794 354634 221865

197339492 188673683 195838106

1060328 16186082 38374210

11203730 10168671 13023938

7598 33765 31996

68004 129442 21896

10067800 26191546 25404164

8451668 9757449 9680968

1616132 $16434097 15723196

30693315 30633936 30566031

30693315 30633936 30592317

0.05 0.54 0.51

0.05 0.54 0.51

See accompanying notes

2010 2009 2008
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Comprehensive income

Purchase of treasury shares ... 167004 167004
Issuance of common stock 49955 500 500
Compensation expense under

share-based compensation

plan

Balance at December 31 2008 33169552 $331696
___________

Comprehensive income

Net loss

Other comprehensive

income

Unrealized gain on cash

flow hedge net of

deferred

tax of $86 1004

Comprehensive loss

Purchase of treasury shares

Issuance of common stock 50580

Compensation expense under

share-based compensation

plan

Balance at December 31 2009 33220132 $332201

Comprehensive income

Net loss

Other comprehensive

income

Unrealized gain on cash

flow hedge net of

deferred tax of

$616929

Comprehensive loss

Purchase of treasury shares

Issuance of common stock 28783

Compensation expense under

share-based compensation

plan

Balance at December 31 2010 33248915 $332489

See accompanying notes

ASSET ACCEPTANCE CAPITAL CORP

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive Income

Accumulated
Number Additional Other Common Total

of Common Comprehensive Paid in Retained Comprehensive Stock in Stockholders
Shares Stock Loss Income Capital Earnings Loss net of tax Treasury Equity

Balance at January 12008 33119597 $331196 $145610742 $19465118 $2012127 $40975677 $122419252
Comprehensive income

Net income 15723196 15723196 15723196
Other comprehensive

income

Unrealized loss on cash

flow hedge net of

deferred tax of

$1464836 2652735 2652735 2652735

$13070461

1305049
__________ _________ ___________

1305049

$146915791 35188314 $4664862 $41142681 $136628258

$16434097 16434097 16434097

1709411 1709411 1709411

$14724686

134490 134490
505 505

1328402
___________ _________ ___________

1328402

$148243688 18754217 $295545l $41277171 $123097484

1616132 1616132 1616132

1275081 1275081 1275081

341051

48519 48519
288 288

1194802
__________ _________ ___________

1194802

$149438202 17138085 $1680370 $41325690 $123902716
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ASSET ACCEPTANCE CAPITAL CORP

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss income

Adjustments to reconcile net loss income to net cash provided by

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of deferred financing costs

Deferred income taxes

Share-based compensation expense

Net impairment reversal impairment of purchased

receivables

Non-cash revenue

Loss on disposal of equipment and other assets

Gain on sale of purchased receivables

Non-cash restructuring charges and impairment of assets

Changes in assets and liabilities

Decrease increase in other assets

Increase decrease in accounts payable arid other accrued

liabilities

Decrease increase in net income taxes receivable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in purchased receivables net of buybacks 137489164
Principal collected on purchased receivables 135373084

Proceeds from sale of purchased receivables 1730236

Purchase of property and equipment 2347584
Payments made for asset acquisition 793750
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 5255

____________

Net cash used in investing activities 3521923
_____________

Cash flows from financing activities

Borrowings under notes payable

Repayments of notes payable

Payment of deferred financing costs

Repayment of capital lease obligations

Purchase of treasury shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash

Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest net of capitalized interest

Net cash received paid for income taxes

Non-cash investing and financing activities

Change in fair value of swap liability

Change in unrealized loss on cash flow hedge

Change in purchased receivable obligations

Capital lease obligations incurred

See accompanying notes

2010 2009 2008

1616132 16434097 15723196

4665775

1285437

5278029
1194802

2335443
12752

213794

1212042
1189900

4107635

670559

7806252
1328402

49504755

1499743
354634

399373
1167600

3954802

506821

5770054

1329298

13040736

575006
221865

165040
616343

164376 2016356 845756

7621184

2004173

7885043

397257
1081410

31531809

118319478

114750304

399863

5976404

4197

9141518

49200000

70727486
1835926

134490

23497902

1107611
6042859

4935248

53490
149088

39672911

152289315
124211618

167405

5658784

7800

33561276

128000000

137700000
660575
15927

166753

10543255

4431620
10474479

6042859

112100000

114862558

775808
75980
48519

3662865

700255

4935248

5635503

10184277

5177813
9593119 12588205

869787 3724444

1892010 2570415
1275081 1709411

2399832 2399832

278459

4117571

2652735
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ASSET ACCEPTANCE CAPITAL CORP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Asset Acceptance Capital Corp Delaware corporation and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the

Company are engaged in the purchase and collection of defaulted and charged-off accounts receivable

portfolios These receivables are acquired from consumer credit originators primarily credit card issuers

including private label card issuers consumer finance companies telecommunications and other utility

providers resellers and other holders of consumer debt The Company may periodically sell receivables from
these portfolios to unaffiliated companies

In addition the Company finances the sales of consumer product retailers referred to as finance contract

receivables and licenses proprietary collection software application referred to as licensed software

Reporting Entity

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Asset Acceptance Capital

Corp AACC and all wholly owned subsidiaries All significant intercompany balances and transactions have

been eliminated in consolidation The Company currently has three operating segments one for purchased

receivables one for finance contract receivables and one for licensed software The finance contract receivables

and licensed software operating segments are not material and therefore are not disclosed separately from the

purchased receivables segment

Effective August 31 2009 the Company completed reorganization which merged three non-operating
subsidiaries into AACC The reorganization did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated

financial position results of operations or cash flows During 2010 the Company ceased operations and

subsequently dissolved its Portfolio Acquisition Recovery Corporation PARC wholly owned subsidiary
Refer to Note Restructuring Charges and Note 13 Income Taxes for additional information related these

actions

Revenue Recognition

The Company accounts for its investment in purchased receivables using the guidance provided in Financial

Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standard Codification ASC Subtopic 310-30 Loans and
Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality Interest Method Refer to Note Purchased

Receivables and Revenue Recognition for additional discussion of the Companys method of accounting for

purchased receivables and recognizing revenue

Cash

The Company maintains cash balances with high quality financial institutions Management periodically
evaluates the creditworthiness of such institutions Cash balances may be in excess of the amounts insured by the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

Seasonality

Collections tend to be seasonally higher in the first and second quarters of the
year due to consumers

receipt of tax refunds and other factors Conversely collections tend to be lower in the third and fourth quarters
of the year due to consumers spending in connection with summer vacations the holiday season and other

factors However revenues remain relatively level excluding the impact of impairments due to the application
of the Interest Method of revenue recognition In addition the Companys operating results may be affected by
the timing of purchases of charged-off consumer receivables due to the initial costs associated with purchasing
and loading these receivables into the Companys systems Consequently income and margins may fluctuate

from quarter to quarter
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Collections from Third Parties

The Company regularly utilizes unaffiliated third parties primarily attorneys and other contingent collection

agencies to collect certain account balances on behalf of the Company in exchange for percentage of the

balance collected or fixed fee The Company receives net proceeds and records as gross cash collections

received by the unaffiliated third parties The Company records the fee paid to the third parties and the

reimbursement of certain legal and other costs as component of collections expense The percent of gross cash

collections from third party relationships were 35.9% 32.9% and 30.9% for the years ended December 31 2010
2009 and 2008 respectively

Accrued Liabilities

The details of accrued liabilities were as follows

December 31

Accrued payroll benefits and bonuses

Accrued contract termination costsl

Accrued general and administrative expenses2

Fair value of derivative instruments

Deferred rent

Accrued restructuring charges3

Accrued interest
expenses

Deferred revenue

Purchased receivables4

Other accrued expenses

Total accrued liabilities
___________ ___________

The Company terminated relationship with third party service provider that resulted in $5280000

accrual for reimbursement of court costs incurred by the third party on the Companys behalf

Accrued general and administrative expenses included $1250000 related to litigation contingency as of

December 31 2010 see Note 10 Contingencies for more information

The restructuring charges of $2594245 are related to closing the chicago Illinois Cleveland Ohio and

Deerfield Beach Florida offices refer to Note Restructuring Charges for additional information

The rights title and interest of an acquired portfolio was transferred to the Company as of December 31

2009 however funding occurred during January 2010

Concentrations of Risk

For the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company invested 68.9% and 67.0% net of

buybacks respectively in purchased receivables from its top three sellers One seller is included in the top three

in both years

Interest Expense

Interest expense includes interest on the Companys credit facilities unused facility fees the ineffective

portion of the change in fair value of the Companys derivative financial instrument refer to Note Derivative

Financial Instruments and Risk Management interest payments made on the interest rate swap and

amortization of deferred financing costs During the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the

Company recorded interest expense of $11203730 $10168671 and $13023938 respectively including the

amortization of deferred financing costs of $1285437 $670559 and $506821 respectively

2009

6858421

3243887

4673159

3152922

641556

2010

6007874

5280000

4849348

2781149

2738363

2594245

367974

287127

272627

$25178707

2399832

324611

$21294388
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Interest expense of $13854 $48129 and $87229 related to software developed for internal use was

capitalized during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Earnings Loss Per Share

Earnings loss per share reflect net earnings loss divided by the weighted-average number of shares

outstanding Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding equals basic weighted-average shares outstanding as

result of the net loss for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 Diluted weighted-average shares

outstanding for the year ended December 31 2008 included 26286 dilutive shares related to outstanding stock

options deferred stock units restricted shares and restricted share units collectively the Share-Based Awards
There were 821763 outstanding Share-Based Awards that were not included within the diluted weighted-average

shares as their fair value or exercise price exceeded the market price of the Companys common stock at

December 31 2008 and thus were anti-dilutive

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite lives arising from business combinations are amortized over their estimated

useful lives ranging from five to seven years using the straight-line methOd Goodwill and trademark and trade

names with indefinite lives are not amortized instead these assets are reviewed annually to assess recoverability

or more frequently if impairment indicators are present Impairment charges are recorded for intangible assets

when the estimated fair value is less than the book value Refer to Note 12 Fair Value for additional

information about the fair value of goodwill and other intangible assets

The first step of the goodwill impairment test compares the fair value of reporting unit with the book

value including goodwill If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its book value goodwill is not

considered impaired The estimate of fair value of the Companys reporting unit the purchased receivables

operating segment is determined using various valuation techniques including market capitalization and an

analysis of discounted cash flows At the time of the Companys annual goodwill impairment test in the fourth

quarter of 2010 market capitalization was substantially higher than book value and goodwill was not considered

to be impaired

During the third quarter of 2010 the Company decided to no longer purchase and collect healthcare

accounts receivable As result the Company recognized an impairment charge for the net book value of

intangible assets for trademark and trade names associated with the healthcare collection operations of $812400

This impairment is recorded in Restructuring charges in the accompanying consolidated statements of

operations Refer to Note Restructuring charges for further information on impairment of assets

During the third quarter of 2009 the Company completed its periodic valuation of trademark and trade

names and determined that the book value exceeded the fair value as result of decline in business activity

associated with this intangible asset As result the Company recognized an impairment charge for the

difference between the fair value and the book value of $1167600 Refer to Note 12 Fair Value for more

information about the fair value calculation This impairment is included in Impairment of assets in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations

During the first quarter of 2008 the Company decided to no longer service medical receivables on

contingent fee basis As result the Company recognized an impairment charge for the net book value of

intangible assets for customer contracts and relationships associated with the contingent collection business of

$445 651 This impatnnent is recorded in Impairment of assets in the accompanying consolidated statements of

operations Refer to Note Property and Equipment for further information on impairment of assets
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Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives that are not amortized consisted of the following

December 31

2010 2009

Goodwill
$14323071 $14323071

Trademark and trade names
812400

Total goodwill and other intangible assets $14323071 $15135471

Other intangible assets having original estimated useful lives ranging from five to seven years consisted of
the

following

December 31

2010 2009

Non-compete agreements
1000000

Other
intangible assets

840000
Total other intangible assets

1840000
Less accumulated amortization

1573335
Net other intangible assets

266665

During 2010 the Company reviewed other intangible assets and disposed of those that no longer had value
to the Company which included intangibles associated with the dissolved PARC subsidiary Refer to Note
Restructuring charges for additional information associated with dissolving PARC The accumulated
amortization is netted against other intangible assets which is included in

Intangible assets net in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position Amortization expense was $266665 $206452 and
$242849 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively There is no estimated future
amortization expense for

intangible assets at December 31 2010

Comprehensive Income

Components of comprehensive income are changes in equity other than those resulting from investments byowners and distributions to owners Net income loss is the primary component of comprehensive income
Currently the Companys only component of comprehensive income other than net income loss is the changein unrealized gain or loss on derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges net of tax The aggregate amount of such
changes to equity that have not yet been recognized in net income are reported in the equity portion of the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position as Accumulated other comprehensive loss net oftax

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is estimated using available market information and other valuation
methods Refer to Note 12 Fair Value for more information

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America U.S GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period Significant

items related to such estimates include the timing and amount of future cash collections on purchased
receivables deferred tax assets goodwill and share-based compensation Actual results could differ from those
estimates making it reasonably possible that change in these estimates could occur within one year
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The following accounting pronouncements have been issued and are effective for the Company in or after

fiscal year 2010

In December 2010 the FASB issued guidance that clarifies that when presenting comparative financial

statements public entity should disclose revenue and earnings of combined entity as though the current

period business combinations had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period

This guidance also expands the supplemental pro forma disclosures to include description of the nature and

amount of material nonrecurring pro
forma adjustments directly attributable to the business combination

included in the reported pro forma revenue and earnings This guidance is effective prospectively for business

combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of fiscal year beginning on or after

December 15 2010 The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have material impact on the Companys

financial position results of operations or cash flows

In December 2010 the FASB issued guidance that clarifies the requirements to perform step two when

testing for impairment of goodwill for reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts It clarifies that

when the carrying amount of reporting unit is zero or negative an entity must assume that it is more likely than

not that goodwill impairment exists The entity is then required to perform an additional test to determine

whether goodwill has been impaired and calculate the amount of that impairment This guidance is effective for

interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2010 The adoption of this guidance is not

expected to have material impact on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

In July 2010 the FASB issued guidance which requires new disclosures about the allowance for credit

losses and the credit quality of financing receivables The requirements are intended to enhance transparency

regarding credit losses and the credit quality of loan and lease receivables Under this guidance allowance for

credit losses and fair value are to be disclosed by portfolio segment while credit quality information impaired

financing receivables and nonaccrual status are to be presented by class of financing receivable The disclosures

are to be presented at the level of disaggregation that management uses when assessing and monitoring the

portfolios risk and performance This guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending on or

after December 15 2010 The adoption of this guidance did not have material impact on the Companys

financial position results of operations or cash flows

In February 2010 the FASB issued guidance that no longer requires SEC filers to disclose the date through

which it has evaluated subsequent events and the basis for that date The adoption of this guidance did not have

material impact on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

In January 2010 the FASB issued guidance which requires additional disclosures ielated to the components

of the reconciliation of fair value measurements using unobservable inputs to and transfers between levels in the

hierarchy of fair value measurement This guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods

beginning after December 15 2009 except for certain provisions related to level disclosures which are

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 The adoption of this guidance did not have

material impact on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

In June 2009 the FASB issued guidance intended to improve the relevance representational faithfulness

and comparability of the information that reporting entity provides in its financial statements about transfer of

financial assets the effects of transfer on its financial position financial performance and cash flows and

transferors continuing involvement if any in transferred financial assets This guidance is effective for annual

reporting periods beginning after November 15 2009 Early adoption was prohibited The adoption of this

guidance did not have material impact on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows
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Purchased Receivables and Revenue Recognition

Purchased receivables are receivables that have been charged-off as uncollectible by the originating

organization and many times have been subject to previous collection efforts The Company acquires pools of

homogenous accounts which are the rights to the unrecovered balances owed by individual debtors through such

purchases The receivable portfolios are purchased at substantial discount generally more than 90% from their

face values due to deterioration of credit quality since origination and are initially recorded at the Companys
acquisition cost which equals fair value at the acquisition date Financing for purchasing is provided by the

Companys cash generated from operations and from borrowings on the Companys revolving credit facility

The Company accounts for its investment in purchased receivables using the Interest Method when the

Company has reasonable expectations of the timing and amount of cash flows expected to be collected Pools

purchased after 2004 may be aggregated into one or more static pools within each quarter based on common risk

characteristics and payer dynamics Risk characteristics of purchased receivables are considered to be similar

since purchased receivables are usually in the post charged-off collection cycle The Company therefore

aggregates most pools purchased within each
quarter Pools purchased before 2005 may not be aggregated Each

static pool either aggregated or non-aggregated retains its own identity and does not change over the remainder

of its life Each static pool is accounted for as single unit for recognition of revenue principal payments and

impairments

Collections on each static pool are allocated to revenue and principal reduction based on an internal rate of

return IRR The IRR is the rate of return that each static pooi requires to amortize the cost or carrying value

of the pool to zero over its estimated life Each pools IRR is determined by estimating future cash flows which

are based on historical collection data for poois with similar characteristics In addition the estimated future cash

flows may also be impacted by internal or external factors Internal factors that may have an impact on estimated

future cash flows include revisions to initial and post-acquisition recovery scoring and modeling estimates

operational strategies and changes in productivity related to turnover and tenure of the Companys
collection staff External factors that may have an impact on the estimated future cash flows include overall

market pricing for new purchases new laws or regulations relating to collection efforts or new interpretations
of existing laws or regulations and the overall condition of the economy

The actual life of each pool may vary but will generally range between 36 and 84 months depending on the

expected collection period Monthly cash flows greater than revenue recognized will reduce the carrying value of

each static pool Monthly cash flows lower than revenue recognized will increase the carrying value of each

static pool Each static pool is reviewed at least quarterly and compared to historical trends and operational data

to determine whether it is performing as expected This comparison is used to determine future estimated cash

flows If revised cash flow estimates are greater than original estimates the IRR is increased prospectively to

reflect the revised estimate of cash flows over the remaining life of the static pool If revised cash flow estimates

are less than original estimates the IRR remains unchanged and an impairment is recognized If cash flow

estimates increase in periods subsequent to recording an impairment reversal Of the
previously recognized

impairment is made prior to any increases to the IRR

Agreements to purchase receivables typically include general representations and warranties from the sellers

covering account holder death bankruptcy fraud and settled or paid accounts prior to sale These representations
and warranties permit the return of certain ineligible accounts from the Company back to the seller The general
time frame to return accounts is within 90 to 180 days from the date of the purchase agreement Proceeds from

returns also referred to as buybacks are applied against the carrying value of the static pool

The cost recovery method is used when collections on particular portfolio cannot be reasonably predicted
When appropriate the cost recovery method may be used for pools that previously had an IRR assigned to them
Under the cost recovery method no revenue is recognized until the Company has fully collected the cost of the

portfolio As of December 31 2010 the Company had 14 unamortized pools on the cost recovery method with
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an aggregate carrying value of $962461 or about 0.3% of the total carrying value of all purchased receivables

The Company had 50 unamortized pools on the cost recovery method with an aggregate carrying value of

$2271595 or about 0.7% of the total carrying value of all purchased receivables as of December 31 2009

Although not its usual business practice the Company may periodically sell on non-recourse basis all or

portion of pool to unaffiliated parties The Company does not have any significant continuing involvement

with the sold poois subsequent to sale Proceeds of these sales are compared to the carrying value of the accounts

and gain or loss is recognized on the difference between proceeds received and the carrying value which is

included in Gain on sale of purchased receivables in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

The Company sold receivables during the year
ended December 31 2010 that had carrying value of $518194

of which $518168 was related to healthcare receivables sold The Company received proceeds from the sales of

$1730236 of which $1399550 was related to healthcare receivables See Note Restructuring Charges for

more information on the sale of healthcare receivables The agreements to sell receivables typically include

general representations and warranties

Changes in purchased receivables portfolios were as follows

Beginning balance

Investment in purchased receivables net of buybacks

Cost of sale of purchased receivables net of returns

Cash collections

Purchased receivable revenues

Ending balance

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009

319772006 361808502

135089331 120719310

518193 490
328818490 334030597

195793601 171275281

321318255 319772006

Accretable yield represents the amount of revenue the Company expects over the remaining life of existing

portfolios Nonaccretable yield represents the difference between the remaining expected cash flows and the total

contractual obligation outstanding face value of purchased receivables Changes in accretable yield were as

follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009

466199721 534985144

195793601 171275281
150336777 202468909

6721957 99979051

Ending balance1 427464854 466199721

Accretable yields are function of estimated remaining cash flows and are based on historical cash

collections Refer to Forward-Looking Statements within Item 1A Risk Factors on page 13 and Critical

Accounting Policies on page 51 for further information regarding these estimates

Cash collections include collections from fully amortized pools of which 100% of the collections were

reported as revenue Components of cash collections from fully amortized pools were as follows

Years Ended December 31

Fully amortized before the end of their expected life

Fully amortized after the end of their expected life

Accounted under the cost recovery method

Total cash collections from fully amortized pools

2010

$10834078
28270936

10324492

$49429506

2009

$22960625

28933883

11266330

$63160838

2008

$30689189

41845346

6090186

$78624721

Beginning balance1

Revenue recognized on purchased receivables net

Additions due to purchases

Reclassifications from tO nonaccretable yield

F-15



Changes in purchased receivables portfolios under the cost recovery method were as follows

Years Ended December 31

2910 2009

Beginning balance 2271595 9804318
Addition of portfolios 1242870 805898

Buybacks impairments and resale adjustments 637227 1016913
Cash collections until fully amortized 1914777 7321708

Ending balance 962461 2271595

During the year ended December 31 2010 the Company recorded net impairment reversals of $2335443
and net impairments of $49504754 and $13040736 during the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008
respectively related to its purchased receivables The net impairment reversals increased revenue and the

carrying value of purchased receivable portfolios during 2010 whereas net impairments reduced revenue and the

carrying value of the purchased receivable portfolios during 2009 and 2008

Changes in the purchased receivables valuation allowance were as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Beginning balance $104416455 71949326 $62091755
Impairments 1140757 50274254 16112536
Reversal of impairments 3476200 769500 3071800
Deductions1 14757712 17037625 3183165

Ending balance 87323300 $104416455 $71949326

Deductions represent valuation allowances on purchased receivable portfolios that became fully amortized

during the period and therefore the balance is removed from the valuation allowance since it can no longer

be reversed

Notes Payable

The Companys amended credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent and

syndicate of lenders named therein originated on June 2007 the Credit Agreement Under the terms of the

Credit Agreement the Company has five-year $100000000 revolving credit facility which expires in June

2012 the Revolving Credit Facility and six-year $150000000 term loan facility which expires in June 2013

the Term Loan Facility and together with the Revolving Credit Facility the Credit Facilities The Credit

Facilities bear interest at 200 to 250 basis points over the banks prime rate depending upon the Companys
liquidity as defined in the Credit Agreement Alternately at the Companys discretion the Company may
borrow by entering into one two three six or twelve-month contracts based on the London Inter Bank Offer

Rate LIBOR at rates between 300 to 350 basis points over the respective LIBOR depending on the

Companys liquidity The Companys Revolving Credit Facility includes an accordion loan feature that allows it

to request $25000000 increase as well as sublimits for $10000000 of letters of credit and for $10000000 of

swingline loans The Credit Agreement is secured by first priority lien on substantially all of the Companys
assets The Credit Agreement also contains certain covenants and restrictions that the Company must comply
with which as of December 31 2010 were

Leverage Ratio as defined cannot exceed 1.5 to 1.0 at any time on or before December 30 2011 or

ii 1.25 to 1.0 at any time thereafter

Ratio of Consolidated Total Liabilities to Consolidated Tangible Net Worth as defined cannot exceed

2.5 to 1.0 at any time on or before December 30 2011 ii 2.25 to 1.0 at any time on or after

December 31 2011 and on or before March 30 2012 iii 2.0 to 1.0 at any time thereafter and
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Consolidated Tangible Net Worth as defined must equal or exceed $85000000 plus 50% of positive

consolidated net income for three consecutive fiscal quarters ending December 31 2007 and for each

fiscal year ending thereafter such amount to be added as of December 31 2007 and as of the end of

each such fiscal year thereafter

On May 28 2010 the Company JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A and other lenders entered into Third

Amendment to Credit Agreement Third Amendment The Third Amendment adjusted the levels of the

Leverage Ratio used to set the applicable margin on outstanding borrowings and the respective interest spreads

The Third Amendment also changed certain financial covenant definitions to allow for adjustments related to

charges for the Federal Trade Commission FTC investigation limited to $7000000 and the net impact of

the fourth quarter
2009 purchased receivable impairment charges limited to $20000000 The changes did not

impact total available borrowing capacity however the financial covenants were adjusted to be less restrictive

which in turn increased the Companys ability to borrow under the terms of the agreement In exchange for

amending the Credit Agreement the Company incurred deferred financing costs of $775808 and $1835926 for

the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

The Credit Agreement contains provision that requires the Company to repay Excess Cash Flow as

defined to reduce the indebtedness outstanding under its Term Loan Facility The annual repayment of the

Companys Excess Cash Flow was first effective with the issuance of its audited consolidated financial

statements for fiscal year 2008 and the Company made required payments of $8962558 and $2427486 in

March 2010 and 2009 respectively The Excess Cash Flow payment if required is due within 10 days of the

issuance of the annual financial statements The repayment provisions are

50% of the Excess Cash Flow for such fiscal year if the Leverage Ratio was greater than 1.0 to 1.0 as

of the end of such fiscal year

25% of the Excess Cash Flow for such fiscal year if the Leverage Ratio was less than or equal to 1.0 to

1.0 but greater than 0.875 to 1.0 as of the end of such fiscal year or

0% if the Leverage Ratio is less than or equal to 0.875 to 1.0 as of the end of such fiscal year

The Company is not required to make payment on its Term Loan Facility based on the Excess Cash Flow

provisions for the year ended December 31 2010

Commitment fees on the unused portion of the Revolving Credit Facility are paid quarterly in arrears and

are calculated as an amount equal to margin of 0.50% on the average amount available on the Revolving Credit

Facility

The Credit Agreement requires the Company to effectively cap collar or exchange interest rates on

notional amount of at least 25% of the outstanding principal amount of the Term Loan Facility Refer to Note

Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk Management for additional information

The Company had $157259956 and $160022514 of borrowings outstanding on its Credit Facilities as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively of which $133359956 and $143822514 was outstanding on the

Term Loan Facility respectively and $23900000 and $16200000 was outstanding on the Revolving Credit

Facility respectively The Term Loan Facility requires quarterly repayments totaling $1500000 annually until

March 2013 with the remaining balance due in June 2013 The weighted average interest rates on the total

amount outstanding at December 31 2010 and 2009 were 5.30% and 5.69% respectively The weighted average

interest rates on the amount outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility at December 31 2010 and 2009

were 3.88% and 3.11% respectively

The Company was in compliance with all covenants of the Credit Agreement as of December 31 2010
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Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk Management

Risk Management

The Company may periodically enter into derivative financial instruments typically interest rate swap agreements to

reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on variable-rate debt and their impact on earnings and cash flows The

Company does not utilize derivative financial instruments with level of complexity or with risk greater than the exposure
to be managed nor does it enter into or hold derivatives for trading or speculative purposes The Company periodically
reviews the creditworthiness of the swap counterparty to assess the counterpartys ability to honor its obligation
Counterparty default would further

expose the Company to fluctuations in variable interest rates

The Company records derivative financial instruments at fair value Refer to Note 12 Fair Value for additional
information

Derivative Financial Instruments

In September 2007 the Company entered into an amortizing interest rate swap agreement whereby on quarterly basis
it swaps variable rates under its Term Loan Facility for fixed rates At inception and for the first year the notional amount of
the swap was $125000000 Every year thereafter on the anniversary of the swap agreement the notional amount decreases

by $25000000 As of December 31 2010 the notional amount was $50000000 This swap agreement expires on
September 13 2012

The Companys financial derivative instrument is designated and qualifies as cash flow hedge The effective portion
of the gain or loss is reported as component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income AOCI in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements To the extent that the hedging relationship is not effective the ineffective portion of the

change in fair value of the derivative is recorded in interest expense Hedges that receive designated hedge accounting
treatment are evaluated for effectiveness at the time that they are designated as well as throughout the hedging period

Changes in fair value are recorded as an adjustment to AOCI net of tax Amounts in AOCI will be reclassified into earnings
under certain situations for example if the occurrence of the transaction is no longer probable or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting In these situations all or portion of the transaction would be ineffective The Company does not expect to reclassify

any material amount currently included in AOCI into earnings due to ineffectiveness within the next twelve months

As of December 31 2010 the Company did not have any fair value hedges

The following tables summarize the fair value of derivative instruments

_____________
December 312009

Financial

Position Fair

______________
Location Value

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Interest rate swap Accrued liabilities $2781149 Accrued liabilities $4673159
Total derivatives designated as hedging instruments

$2781149 $4673159

The following tables summarize the impact of derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Amount of

Gain Loss
Location Recognized in Income

Location of of Gain Loss Ineffective
Gain or Recognized in Portion and
Loss Income Amount Excluded

Reclassified
Ineffective from Effectiveness

_______________________________
from

Portion and Testing
AOCI into Amount

Years Ended
Years Ended December 31 Years Ended December 31 uiforn December 31

________
2010 2009 2008 Portion 2010 2009 2008 Testing 2010 2009 2008

Interest
Interest

$1266639 $11 11398 $61 13779 expense ... $3158649 $3681813 $1996208 Expense .. $3173 $2366 $2642

$1266639 $1111398 $6113779 Total $3158649 $3681813 $1996208 Total $3173 $2366 $2642

December 312010

Financial

Position Fair

Location Value

Amount of Gain or Loss
Recognized in AOCI
Effective Portion

Derivative

Interest rate

swap

Total

Amount of Gain or Loss Reclassified

from AOCI into Income
Effective Portion
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following

December 31

2010 2009

Computer equipment and software 20152371 19453679

Furniture and fixtures 5696062 6096969

Office equipment 3968191 4087986

Leasehold improvements 2183151 2456788

Equipment under capital leases 278459 278459

Total property and equipment at cost 32278234 32373881

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 19222511 17852215

Net property and equipment 13055723 14521666

Property and equipment is recorded at cost Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to

operations as incurred Material leasehold improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining life

of the lease The Company records depreciation and amortization expense on straight-line basis with lives

ranging from three to ten years During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company decided to discontinue the

implementation of software product As result the Company recognized an impairment charge of $170692

the amount previously invested to implement this software product in Impairment of assets in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations Refer to Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets within

Note Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further information on

additional impairment of assets and amortization of intangible assets Depreciation and amortization expense was

$4399110 $3901183 and $3711953 for property and equipment and $266665 $206452 and $242849 for

intangible assets for the years
ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

The Company capitalizes qualifying computer software development costs Costs incurred during the

application development stage are capitalized and amortized over the softwares useful life on straight-line basis

beginning when the project is completed Costs associated with preliminary project stage activities training

maintenance and all other post implementation stage activities are expensed as incurred The Companys policy

provides for the capitalization of certain direct payroll costs for employees who are directly associated with internal

use computer software projects as well as external direct costs of services associated with developing or obtaining

intemnnl use software including interest expense Capitalizable personnel costs are limited to the time directly spent

on such projects For the years
ended December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company capitalized $170234 and

$220559 respectively of these direct payroll costs related to software developed for internal use

Associate Benefits

The Company maintains defined contribution profit sharing plan with 40 1k features for substantially all

associates Associates may contribute up to the annual maximum amount determined by the Internal Revenue Service

$16500 for 2010 plus an additional $5500 catch-up for eligible associates to the plan each year The Company

matched 100% on the first 3% contributed by each participants salary deferrals and matched 50% on the next 3%

contributed by each participants salary deferrals until the match was suspended in September 2009 The Companys

related expense was $1125100 and $1817208 for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively and

there was no expense in 2010 There was no unpaid contribution as of December 31 2010 and 2009

The Company is self-insured for health and prescription drug benefits The Company recognized expense for

health and prescription drug benefits related administration stop-loss insurance and other employee related

insurance premiums of $6040459 $7626312 and $7835525 for the years
ended December 31 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively The expense
is based on actual and estimated claims incurred Accrued liabilities in the

accompanying consolidated statements of financial position include $500000 $633000 and $540000 for estimated

health and prescription drug benefits incurred but not paid as of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively
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Acquisition

On July 21 2010 the Company completed purchase of substantially all of the assets of BSI eSolutions
LLC BSI for $793750 The Company had been implementing BSI developed collection platform to replace
its legacy debt collection software and completed this transaction to protect its investment in the software

technology From the date of acquisition the results of operations related to the acquisition of these assets have
been included in the Companys accompanying consolidated financial statements

The following is an allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed

Assets acquired

Accounts receivable net 122510
Software

857827
Property and equipment 20000

Liabilities assumed

Accrued liabilities 28787
Deferred revenue 177800
Net assets acquired 793750

This asset purchase did not have material impact to the Companys revenue or earnings for the year ended
December 31 2010 As result supplemental pro forma financials have not been provided

Restructuring Charges

On July 29 2010 the Company announced its commitment to no longer purchase and collect healthcare

accounts receivable Subsequently the Company sold its healthcare accounts to third party and closed its

Deerfield Beach Florida office Proceeds from the sale were $1399550 and the Company recognized gain of

$881383 which is included in Gain on sale of purchased receivables in the accompanying consolidated

statements of operations

On October 2010 and December 30 2010 the Company announced its plans to close its call center

operations in the Chicago Illinois and Brooklyn Heights Cleveland Ohio offices respectively The Company
recognized restructuring charges for these actions and for closing the Deerfield Beach office of $4224889
during the year ended December 31 2010 These charges include employee termination benefits contract

termination costs for the real estate leases write-off of furniture and equipment impairment of intangible assets

and other exit costs The employee termination benefits contract termination costs and other exit costs require
the outlay of cash of approximately $3000000 while the impairment of intangible assets and write-off of
furniture and equipment of approximately $1200000 represent non-cash charges

The components of restructuring charges were as follows

Year Ended

December 31
2010

Employee termination benefits $1702103
Contract termination costs 1184751
Impairment of intangible assets 812400
Write-off of furniture and equipment 377500
Other

148145

Total restructuring charges $4224899
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The restructuring liability as of December 31 2010 was $2594245 The changes in the liability balance

during the year ended December 31 2010 were as follows

Employee Contract Fixed

Termination Termination Assets and

Benefits Costs Other Total

Restructuring liability as of January 2010

Costs incurred and charged to expense 1702103 1184751 525645 3412499

Payments 676674 38989 48754 764417

Adjustments to furniture and equipment 53837 53837

Restructuring liability as of December 31 2010 $1025429 $1145762 $423054 $2594245

As of December 31 2010 the actions to close the Deerfield Beach office were substantially complete The

actions to close the Chicago and Cleveland offices are expected to be completed in the first half of 2011 There

were no restructuring charges in 2009 or 2008

Share-Based Compensation

The Company adopted stock incentive plan the Stock Incentive Plan during February 2004 that

authorizes use of stock options stock appreciation rights restricted stock grants and units performance share

awards and annual incentive awards to eligible key associates non-associate directors and consultants The

Company reserved 3700000 shares of common stock for issuance in conjunction with share-based awards to be

granted under the plan of which 2246420 shares remain available to be granted as of December 31 2010 The

purpose of the plan is to promote the best interests of the Company and its stockholders by encouraging

associates and other participants to acquire an ownership interest in the Company thus aligning their interests

with those of stockholders and ii to enhance the ability of the Company to attract and retain qualified

associates non-associate directors and consultants No participant may be granted options during any one fiscal

year to purchase more than 500000 shares of common stock

Based on historical experience the Company uses an annual forfeiture rate of 15% for associate grants

Grants made to non-associate directors vest immediately and therefore have no associated forfeitures

Share-based compensation expense and related tax benefits were as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Share-based compensation expense $1194802 $1328402 $1305298

Tax benefits 472903 496096 497420

The Companys share-based compensation arrangements are described below

Stock Options

The Company utilizes the Whaley Quadratic approximation model an intrinsic value method to calculate

the fair value of stock awards on the date of grant using the assumptions noted in the following table Changes to

the subjective input assumptions can result in different fair market value estimates With regard to the

Companys assumptions stated below the expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the

Companys stock and managements estimate of the volatility over the contractual term of the options The

expected term of the options are based on managements estimate of the period of time for which the options are

expected to be outstanding The risk-free rate is derived from the five-year U.S Treasury yield curve on the date

of grant
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The following table summarizes the assumptions used to determine the fair value of stock options granted

Options issue year 2010 2009 2008

Expected volatility 57.20%-59.90% 51.37%-54.53% 46.50%

Expected dividends 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Expected term Years Years Years

Risk-free rate 2.20%-2.42% l.98%-2.06% 3.09%

As of December 31 2010 the Company had options outstanding for 1012063 shares of its common stock

under the Stock Incentive Plan These options have been granted to key associates and non-associate directors of

the Company Option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the

Companys stock at the date of grant and have contractual terms ranging from seven to ten years The options

granted to key associates generally vest between one and five years from the grant date whereas the options

granted to non-associate directors generally vest immediately The fair value of stock options is expensed on

straight-line basis over the vesting period

The related compensation expense was as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Salaries and benefits1 $393390 $355046 $295743

Administrative expenses2 147297 166937 205045

Total $540687 $521983 $500788

Salaries and benefits include amounts for associates

Administrative
expenses include amounts for non-associate directors

The following table summarizes all stock option transactions from January 2010 through December 31
2010

Weighted-Average Aggregate
Options Weighted-Average Remaining Intrinsic

Outstanding Exercise Price Contractual Term Value

in years

Beginning balance 930417 $11.54

Granted 136958 6.77

Forfeited or expired 55312 7.88

Outstanding at December 31 2010 1012063 11.09 5.71 $435125

Exercisable at December 31 2010 729165 $13.18 5.69 $108781

The weighted-average grant date fair value of the options granted during the years ended December 31 2010
2009 and 2008 was $3.17 $2.06 and $5.86 respectively No options were exercised during 2010 2009 and 2008

As of December 31 2010 there was $614339 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to

nonvested stock options granted under the Stock Incentive Plan which is comprised of $569326 for options

expected to vest and $45013 for options not expected to vest Unrecognized compensation expense for options

expected to vest is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 1.99 years

Deferred Stock Units

As of December 31 2010 the Company granted 58437 deferred stock units DSUs of its common stock

to non-associate directors under the Companys Stock Incentive Plan DSUs represent the Companys obligation

to deliver one share of common stock for each unit at later date elected by the non-associate director such as
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when his or her board service ends DSUs vest immediately upon grant and are not subject to forfeiture DSUs do

not have voting rights but would receive common stock dividend equivalents in the form of additional DSUs

The value of each DSU is equal to the market price of the Companys stock at the date of grant

The fair value of the DSUs granted is expensed immediately to correspond with the vesting schedule The related

expense for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 included $99983 $87512 and $125019

respectively and is included in Administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

The following table summarizes all DSU related transactions from January 2010 through December 31 2010

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date

DSUs Fair Value

Beginning balance 39721 $8.39

Granted 18716 5.34

Ending balance 58437 $7.41

There was no unrecognized compensation expense
related to nonvested DSUs as of December 31 2010

Restricted Shares and Restricted Share Units

The Company grants restricted shares and restricted share units restricted shares and restricted share units

are referred to as RSU5 to key associates and non-associate directors under the Stock Incentive Plan Each

RSU is equal to one share of the Companys common stock The value of the RSUs is equal to the market price

of the Companys stock at the date of grant

The RSUs granted to associates generally vest over two to four years based upon service or performance

conditions RSUs granted to non-associate directors generally vest when the non-associate director terminates his

or her board service At December 31 2010 51875 of the RSUs granted to associates will vest contingent on the

attaimnent of performance conditions When RSUs vest participants have the option of selling portion of

vested shares to the Company in order to cover payroll tax obligations The Company expects to repurchase

approximately 26000 shares for RSUs that are expected to vest in 2011

The fair value of the RSUs is expensed on straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the number

of RSUs that are expected to vest For RSUs with performance conditions if those conditions are not expected to

be met the compensation expense previously recognized is reversed The related compensation expense net of

reversals was as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Salaries and benefits1 $450911 $604084 $525344

Administrative expenses2 103221 114823 154147

Total $554132 $718907 $679491

Salaries and benefits include amounts for associates

Administrative expenses include amounts for non-associate directors

The Company issues shares of common stock for RSUs as they vest The following table summarizes all

RSU related transactions from January 2010 through December 31 2010

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date

Nonvested RSUs RSUs Fair Value

Beginning balance 232951 8.12

Granted 95698 6.41

Vested and issued 28783 10.43

Forfeited 61104 6.66

Ending balance 238762 7.52
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As of December 31 2010 there was $1059945 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to

nonvested RSUs which is comprised of $498055 for RSUs expected to vest and $561890 for RSUs not

expected to vest Unrecognized compensation expense for RSUs expected to vest is expected to be recognized
over weighted-average period of 2.17 years

10 Contingencies

Litigation Contingencies

The Company is involved in certain legal matters that management considers incidental to its business The

Company recognizes liabilities for contingencies and commitments when loss is probable and estimable The

Company recognizes expense for defense costs when incurred The Company does not expect these routine legal

matters either individually or in the aggregate to have material adverse effect on the Companys financial

position results of operations or cash flows

As previously reported the Federal Trade Commission FTC commenced an investigation into the

Companys debt collection practices under the Fair Credit Reporting Act the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act
and the Federal Trade Commission Act The FTC staff forwarded draft pleadings and proposed consent decree

to the Company for consideration The Company and its counsel continue to have discussions with the FTC staff

to resolve the matter As of December 31 2010 the Companys best estimate of the amount of loss was
$1250000 and an accrual for that amount has been included in the Companys consolidated financial statements

While the final amount the Company may pay to resolve the matter could be more than the amount accrued the

Company is unable to estimate range of possible loss at this time in view of the status of its ongoing
discussions with the FTC

Registration Rights Agreement

The Company has registration rights agreement with certain stockholders Pursuant to the agreement the

Company will pay all costs related to any secondary securities offering requested by these stockholders and the

stockholders may sell any outstanding shares owned by them The Company filed registration statement on
behalf of one of the selling stockholders in 2008 to register 10932051 shares of common stock held by the

stockholder and paid $45246 in costs related to the registration statement The selling stockholders collectively
retain the right to request two additional registrations of specified shares under the registration rights agreement
in which case the Company will be required to bear applicable offering expenses in the period in which any
future offering occurs

11 Long-Term Commitments

Leases

The Company has several operating leases primarily for office space The leases expire at various dates

through 2016 before consideration of renewal options The total amount of rental payments due over the lease

term are charged to rent expense using the straight-line method over the term of the lease The difference

between rent expense recorded and the amount paid is credited or charged to Deferred rent which is included
in Accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position Total rent expense
related to operating leases was $5298373 $6178355 and $6134193 for the years ended December 31 2010
2009 and 2008 respectively
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The following is schedule of future minimum lease payments under operating and capital leases together

with the present value of the net minimum lease payments related to capital leases as of December 31 2010

Operating Capital

Leases Leases

Years ending December 31

2011 5045861 103425

2012 4626019 112828

2013 4193017 23242

2014 4240392

2015 3857759

20l6andthereafter 1555114

Total minimum lease payments $23518162 239495

Less amount representing interest 37016

Present value of net minimum lease payments $202479

Other Long-Term Commitments

The Companys Term Loan Facility requires quarterly repayments totaling $1500000 annually until March

2013 with the remaining balance due in June 2013 To the extent that balance is outstanding on the Companys

Revolving Credit Facility it would be due in June 2012 or earlier as defined in the Credit Agreement Refer to

Note Notes Payable for more details about the Companys Credit Facilities The Company has contractual

interest due on derivative instruments totaling $3145049 through September 2012

Employment Agreements

The Company has three employment agreements with certain executive members of management Such

agreements call for the payment of base compensation bonuses based on achievement of financial and operating

metrics and certain benefits such as medical insurance All three employment agreements automatically renew

on their expiration date for one year unless the executive or the Company terminates the employment agreement

in writing The agreements also include confidentiality and non-compete provisions and provide for

compensation after separation under certain circumstances including change of control

Forward Flow Agreements

The Company is party to several forward flow agreements
that allow for the purchase of defaulted consumer

receivables at pre-established prices The expected remaining purchase price of receivables to be acquired under

existing forward flow agreements at December 31 2010 was $2999200

12 Fair Value

The Company groups assets and liabilities at fair value in three levels based on the markets in which the

assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value These levels

are

Level 1Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active markets

Level 2Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for

identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-based valuation

techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market

Level 3Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use at least one significant assumption

not observable in the market These unobservable assumptions reflect estimates of assumptions

that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
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Disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments often requires the use of estimates The

Company uses the following methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value of financial instruments

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other Significant
Total Recorded Fair Markets for Observable Unobservable

Value at Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
December 31 2010 Level Level Level

Interest rate swap liability $2781149 $2781149

The fair value of the interest rate swap represents the amount the Company would pay to terminate or
otherwise settle the contract at the financial position date taking into consideration current unearned gains and
losses The fair value was determined using market approach and is based on the three-month LIBOR curve for

the remaining term of the swap agreement Refer to Note Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk

Management for additional information about the fair value of the interest rate swap

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and certain intangible assets not subject to amortization are assessed annually for impairment
using fair value measurement techniques Specifically goodwill impairment is determined using two-step test
The first step of the goodwill impairment test is used to identify potential impairment by comparing the fair value

of reporting unit with its book value including goodwill If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its book
value goodwill is considered not impaired and the second step of the impairment test is unnecessary If the book
value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value the second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed to

measure the amount of impairment loss if any The second step of the goodwill impairment test compares the

implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill with the book value of that goodwill If the book value of the

reporting units goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill an impairment loss is recognized in an

amount equal to that excess The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the amount
of goodwill recognized in business combination That is the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of
the assets and liabilities of that unit as if the reporting unit had been acquired in business combination and the
fair value of the reporting unit was the purchase price paid to acquire the reporting unit

The estimate of fair value of the Companys goodwill is determined using various valuation techniques

including market capitalization which is Level input and an analysis of discounted cash flows which
includes Level inputs At the time of the annual goodwill impairment test November 2010 market
capitalization was substantially higher than book value and goodwill was considered not to be impaired In

response to declines in the Companys stock price throughout the first nine months of 2010 which is triggering
event requiring review for potential impairments discounted cash flow analysis was performed as of

September 30 2010 discounted cash flow analysis requires various judgmental assumptions including

assumptions about future cash flows growth rates and discount rates The Company based assumptions about
future cash flows and growth rates on its budget and long-term plans Discount rate assumptions are based on an

assessment of the risk inherent in the reporting unit The fair value of goodwill using discounted cash flow

analysis exceeded the book value as of September 30 2010 The fair value of goodwill using market

capitalization approach significantly exceeded book value as of December 31 2010

The annual impairment test for other intangible assets not subject to amortization for example trademark

and trade names consists of comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset with its carrying value If the

carrying value of the intangible asset exceeds its fair value an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal
to that excess The estimates of fair value of intangible assets not subject to amortization are determined using
various discounted cash flow valuation methodologies which include Level inputs Significant assumptions are
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inherent in this process including estimates of discount rates and future cash flows Discount rate assumptions

are based on an assessment of the risk inherent in the respective intangible assets and include estimates of the

cost of debt and equity for market participants in the Companys industry During the third quarter of 2010 the

Company decided to no longer purchase and collect healthcare accounts receivable As result the Company

recognized an impairment charge for the net book value of intangible assets for trademark and trade names

associated with the healthcare collection activities of $812400 which is included in Restructuring charges in

the accompanying consolidated statements of operations The Company performed discounted cash flow

analysis of its trademark and trade names as of September 30 2009 and determined that the carrying value

exceeded the fair value The Company recorded an impairment of $1167600 which is included in Impairment

of assets in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

The following disclosures pertain to the fair value of certain assets and liabilities which are not measured at

fair value in the accompanying consolidated financial statements

Purchased Receivables

The Company initially records purchased receivables at cost which is discounted from the contractual

receivable balance The balance of purchased receivables is amortized in accordance with the Interest Method

The carrying value of receivables was $321318255 and $319772006 at December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively The Company computes the fair value of purchased receivables by discounting the estimated future

cash flows generated by its forecasting model using an adjusted weighted-average cost of capital The fair value

of purchased receivables approximated the carrying value at both December 312010 and 2009

Credit Facilities

The Companys Credit Facilities had carrying amounts of $157259956 and $160022514 as of

Dedember 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The fair value of the Credit Facilities approximated carrying value at

both December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The Company computed the fair value of its Credit Facilities

based on quoted market prices

13 Income Taxes

The Company recorded an income tax benefit of $8451668 for the year ended December 31 2010 with an

effective income tax rate of 83.9% The rate differed from the federal statutory rate mainly due to permanent tax

differences related to the dissolution of PARC that included benefit of $5166286 related to worthless stock

deduction benefit of $2153752 related to the write-off of intercompany advances to PARC an expense of

$284340 related to the write-off of intangible assets associated with PARC and an expense of $1796698

related to write-off of PARCs prior net operating loses During 2010 the Company received net tax refunds of

$5177813 for the refund of taxes previously paid and the carry back of operating losses to prior years

The provision of income tax benefit expense consisted of the following

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Current benefit expense

Federal $3384068 $2227444 $3131841

State 210429 276247 779073

Total current expense 3173639 1951197 3910914

Deferred expense

Federal 4607441 6930779 5478063

State 670588 875473 291991

Total deferred expense 5278029 7806252 5770054

Total income tax benefit expense $845 1668 $9757449 $9680968
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The differences between the total income tax benefit expense and the income tax expense benefit

computed using the applicable federal income tax rate of 35% per annum was as follows

Federal tax benefit expense at statutory rate

Increase decrease in income taxes resulting from

State income tax benefit expense

Worthless stock deduction

Forgiveness of debt expense

Write-off of deferred tax assets

Impairment of intangible asset

Effect of tax rate changes

Other adjustments net

Effective income tax benefit expense

Effective income tax rate

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

$3523730 $9 167041 $8891457

533809 776176 797689

5166286

2153752
2659471

284340 408660

384830 192913 67026

366928 415805 75204

$845 1668 $9757449 $9680968

83.9% 37.3% 38.1%

Net operating loss carryforwards may expire before they are used As of December 31 2010 the Company
had generated federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $9300000 and $700000
respectfully The federal net operating loss can be used for 20-year period and will expire in 2030 The state net

operating losses have expiration periods that
vary by state which range from to 20 years The Company

expects to be able to utilize these net operating loss carryforwards and therefore has not recorded valuation

allowance

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax effect of temporary differences

between the tax basis of assets or liabilities and the reported amounts in the financial statements

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following for the years presented

1837420

2071462

1430461

1717708

691964

232231

823787

8805033

61387862

2438181

883897

303673

92967

1223207

66329787

$57524754

December 31 December 31
2010 2009

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforward

Stock options

Accrued
expenses

Interest rate swap agreement

Charge-off adjustment

Intangible assets

Other

Total

Deferred tax liabilities

Purchased receivables revenue recognition

Property and equipment

Transaction costs

Prepaid expenses

Deferred revenue

Other

Total

Net deferred tax liabilities

9316300

2425434

1535327

1100779

671584

231138

386387

15666949

64319898

2465823

882055

172724

690103

68530603

$52863654
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Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2009 deferred tax liability classifications to conform with

the 2010 presentation The reclassifications had no effect on net income or net balance sheet positions

The Company uses recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement

recognition of uncertain tax positions The changes in unrecognized tax benefits were as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009

Beginning balance 994732 $895845

Additions based on tax positions taken in current year 53542

Additions based on tax positions taken in prior years 47026 45578

Reductions for tax positions taken in prior years 268 233

Ending balance $1041490 $994732

As of December 31 2010 the Company had gross unrecognized tax benefits of $1041490 that if

recognized would result in net tax benefit of $676969 and would favorably affect the Companys effective tax

rate It is expected that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will not change significantly in the next twelve

months

The penalties and interest associated with uncertain tax positions are recorded as part of the provision for

income taxes These amounts as of December 31 2010 and 2009 were approximately $187000 and $140000

respectively

The federal income tax returns of the Company for the years 2007 through 2009 are subject to examination

by the IRS generally for three years after the latter of their extended due date or when they are filed The state

income tax returns and other state tax filings of the Company are subject to examination by the state taxing

authorities for various periods generally up to four years after they are filed
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14 Selected Quarterly Operating Results unaudited

The following tables set forth summary of the Companys consolidated results on quarterly basis for the

years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 The information for each of these quarters is unaudited and in the

Companys opinion has been prepared on basis consistent with the Companys audited consolidated financial

statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report This information includes all adjustments consisting only

of normal recurring adjustments the Company considered necessary for fair presentation of this information

when read in conjunction with the Companys consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing

elsewhere in this Annual Report Results of operations for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results

for full year or any future periods

Quarterly Financial Data

Quarter

First Second Third Fourth

2010

Total revenues $51554664 $50914851 $48467817 47462488
Total operating expenses 48353884 46783642 47990110 54211856
Income loss from operations 3200781 4131209 477707 6749369
Net income loss 356517 774457 4246262 6993368
Total comprehensive income loss 558994 1205510 4377919 6483474
Weighted average number of shares

Basic 30670728 30682152 30703735 30716034
Diluted 30739269 30781363 30741207 30716034

Earnings loss per common share outstanding

Basic 0.01 0.03 0.14 0.23
Diluted 0.01 0.03 0.14 0.23

Quarter

First Second Third Fourth

2009

Total revenues $56991198 $49081953 $47673821 18740629
Total operating expenses 47001669 45060679 48097751 48513584
Income loss from operations 9989529 4021274 423930 29772955
Net income loss 4602144 842287 1641668 20236860
Total comprehensive income loss 5071834 1544518 1473973 19867065
Weighted average number of shares

Basic 30610988 30623320 30642866 30657948
Diluted 30624101 30711491 30642866 30657948

Earnings loss per common share outstanding

Basic 0.15 0.03 0.05 0.66
Diluted 0.15 0.03 0.05 0.66
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Quarterly Changes in Valuation Allowance for Purchased Receivables

2010

Beginning balance

Impairments

Reversal of impairments

Deductions1

Ending balance

2009

Beginning balance

Impairments

Reversal of impairments

Deductions1

Ending balance

Quarter

First Second Third Fourth

$104416455 $98882900 96494500 92122200

99680 284189 240042 516846

1348900 893500 1233800
5633235 1323689 3718842 4081946

98882900 $96494500 92122200 87323300

Quarter

First

71949326

3791000

341700
1713600

73685026

Second

$73685026

7144000

298000
314771

$80216255

Third

80216255

6916938

129800
14417938

72585455

Fourth

72585455

32422317

591317

$104416455

Deductions represent impairments on purchased receivable portfolios that became fully amortized during

the period and therefore the balance is removed from the valuation allowance since it can no longer be

reversed
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